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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

Case No.

	

JA- -Z000- :153

APPLICATION OF NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC.
FOR A CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO OFFER INTRASTATE

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES

NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc . ("Applicant' or "NEXTLINK Long

Distance"), a Washington corporation wholly owned by NEXTLINK Communications,

Inc . ("NEXTLINK Communications") hereby submits this Application to the Missouri

Public Service Commission ("Commission") requesting an Order that :

(a) grants Applicant a Certificate of Service Authority to provide interexchange

telecommunications services pursuant to Chapter 392 ofthe Missouri Revised Statutes ;

(b) grants competitive status to Applicant ; and

(c) waives certain Commission rules and statutory provisions pursuant to Section

392.420, RSMo Cumm. Supp. 1992 . In support of this Application, the following

information is provided :

In the Matter of the )

Application ofNEXTLINK )
Long Distance Services, Inc. for a )
Certificate of Service Authority and )
Necessity to Offer Intrastate )
Interexchange Telecommunications )
Services in the State of Missouri )



1 . CONTACTS

Applicant's Counsel :

Questions or inquiries regarding this Application should be directed to

Rebecca R. Reed
DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP
1155 Connecticut Avenue, NW
Suite 700
Washington, DC 20036
T: (202) 508-6620
F: (202) 508-6699

Copies of any correspondence should also be sent to the following designated

representative of the Applicant:

Mr. Doug Kinkoph
Vice President Regulatory and External Affairs
NEXTLINK Ohio, Inc .
Two Easton Oval, Suite 300
Columbus, Ohio 43219

The toll free number to call for customer care nationwide is 1-800-900-6398 .

Applicant has designated the following as local counsel :

James A. Keams
Bryan Cave LLP
One Metropolitan Square, Suite 3600
St . Louis, MO 63102-2750
Phone : (314) 259-2680

2.

	

ORGANIZATION AND OWNERSHIP OF APPLICANT

NEXTLINK Communications is a telecommunications company founded in 1994

to provide local, long distance and enhanced communications services . NEXTLINK

Communications maintains its principal place ofbusiness at 500 108` Ave. N.E., Suite

2200, Bellevue, Washington 98004 . NEXTLINK Communications is controlled by Eagle



River Investments, L.L .C., which in turn is majority owned and controlled by Craig O.

McCaw, a leader and pioneer in the telecommunications industry . A copy of NEXTLINK

Communication's Articles of Incorporation is attached as Exhibit A.

NEXTLINK Long Distance is a corporation organized under the laws of the State

of Washington, and is also headquartered at 500 108' Ave. N.E., Suite 2200, Bellevue,

Washington 98004 . Applicant is a wholly owned subsidiary of NEXTLINK

Communications . A copy of the Applicant's Articles of Incorporation is attached as

Exhibit B.

NEXTLINK Long Distance's Certificate of Authority to transact business in the

State of Missouri is attached to this Application as Exhibit C.

3 .

	

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

Applicant intends to operate as a provider of facilities-based and resold long

distance services throughout the entire state of Missouri . Applicant intends to provide

Operator Services as well as Prepaid Calling Cards .

The Applicant's Operator Services will be offered to end users at traffic

aggregator locations under the same terms, conditions and rates as Applicant's services

offered directly to customers . The Applicant agrees to comply with all requirements

established by the Missouri Commission for the provisioning of operator services .

	

In

addition, Applicant agrees not to collect location surcharges at traffic aggregator

locations .

A grant of a Certificate of Service Authority to the Applicant will benefit the

citizens of Missouri and the public interest generally by giving customers a source from

which to obtain competitive, reliable, and efficient telecommunications services .



4.

	

MANAGERIAL AND TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS

The NEXTLINK Communications companies possess the technical and

managerial qualifications required to provide telecommunications services throughout the

State of Missouri . NEXTLINK Communications, through its operating subsidiaries, is

certified to provide local and long distance telecommunications services in numerous

states, including Missouri . ` NEXTLINK Communications already operates 23 facilities-

based SONET-based fiber optic networks providing local dialtone and long distance

services in 38 markets in 14 states .

The NEXTLINK Communications companies are managed by an able team of

officers who have many years of combined experience in the telephony field . This

successful operational experience is evidence of NEXTLINK's technical and managerial

capability to deliver the services discussed above in a fashion that is satisfactory to

consumers . Brief Biographies of the officers of NEXTLINK Communications are

attached as Exhibit D.

5.

	

AFFILIATED INTERESTS OF THE APPLICANT

The Applicant is a wholly owned subsidiary ofNEXTLINK Communications . As

such, its affiliated interests include state subsidiaries of NEXTLINK Communications

that either currently provide or will provide telecommunications services in their

respective states . These include NEXTLINK Affinity, NEXTLINK Arizona,

' These states are Arizona, California, Colorado, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland,
Missouri, Nevada, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas,
Washington, and Wisconsin. Only local certification has been obtained in Michigan, Utah, Virginia and
Washington D.C ., as long distance certification is not required in these states . Local certification has also
been obtained in Indiana . Long distance certification has been obtained in Alabama, New Hampshire, New
Mexico, Oregon and West Virginia . Local and long distance certification is pending in Mississippi .
NHXTLINK Communications has never been denied authority to offer service in any state .



NEXTLINK California, NEXTLINK Colorado, NEXTLINK Connecticut, NEXTLINK

Delaware, NEXTLINK Florida, NEXTLINK Georgia, NEXTLINK Illinois, NEXTLINK

Indiana, NEXTLINK Kentucky, NEXTLINK Louisiana, NEXTLINK Maryland,

NEXTLINK Massachusetts, NEXTLINK Michigan, NEXTLINK Minnesota,

NEXTLINK Mississippi, NEXTLINK Missouri, NEXTLINK Nevada, NEXTLINK New

Hampshire, NEXTLINK New Jersey, NEXTLINK New York, NEXTLINK North

Carolina, NEXTLINK Ohio, NEXTLINK Oregon, NEXTLINK Pennsylvania,

NEXTLINK Tennessee, NEXTLINK Texas, NEXTLIIVK Utah, NEXTLINK Virginia,

NEXTLINK Washington, NEXTLINKDC, NEXTLINK West Virginia, and NEXTLINK

Wisconsin.

The NEXTLINK Companies have not been a party to any administrative or

judicial proceeding that resulted in 1) the suspension, revocation, or denial of the

authority, license, or certification of the Applicant or its officers, directors, or affiliates to

provide utility service, or 2) a reprimand, penalty, or conviction ofthe Applicant, its

officers, directors, or affiliates related to operations, gross misrepresentations, fraudulent

transactions, or securities violations, or 3) an adjudication of bankruptcy or a

reorganization in bankruptcy of applicant or its officers, directors, or affiliates .

The Applicant, its officers, directors and its affiliates have never abandoned

service in violation of applicable statutes, regulations or orders .

6 .

	

FINANCIAL QUALIFICATIONS

The NEXTLINK Communications companies also possess adequate financial

resources to provide the proposed services . The company is well financed and has

sufficient assets . As a wholly owned subsidiary of NEXTLINK Communications, the



Applicant will have the financial resources of its parent company available to it .

NEXTLINK Communications' Form 10Q for the quarterly period ending September 30,

1998 and its IOKSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997 are attached as Exhibit

E.

7.

	

PROPOSED TARIFF

Applicant's proposed tariff is attached as Exhibit F.

8.

	

STATEMENT OF COMPETITIVENESS

Upon entry into the market, the Applicant has no market share in Missouri and

respectfully requests to qualify as a competitive carrier. Several dominant long distance

carriers already exist in Missouri . The Applicant will compete in Missouri for customers

with these dominant carriers and will provide customers with high quality service, greater

price and service options for telephone users. Applicant therefore believes that its

proposed services will be subject to sufficient competition to justify a lesser degree of

regulation .

9.

	

RULES WAIVER

Applicant also requests, pursuant to Section 392.420, RSMo (Cum. Supp . 1992),

that the Commission waive the application ofthe following rules and statutory provisions

as it relates to the regulation of Applicant and classify its services as competitive :

392.240(1)

	

Rates-reasonable average return on investment.
392.270

	

Property valuation .
392.280

	

Depreciation rates .
392.290

	

Issuance of stocks and bonds .
392.310

	

Issuance of stocks and bonds .
392 .320

	

Issuance of stocks and bonds .
392 .330

	

Issuance of stocks and bonds.
392.340 Reorganization .



4 CSR 240-10.020
4 CSR 240-30.010(2) (C)
4 CSR 240-30.040
4 CSR 240-32 .030(1) (B)
4 CSR 240-32.030(1) (C)
4 CSR 240-32.030(2)
4 CSR 240-32.050(3-6)
4 CSR 240-32.070(4)
4 CSR 240-33.030
4 CSR 240-33.040(5)

Income on depreciation fund investments .
Posting exchange rates at central offices .
Uniform Systems of Accounts
Exchange boundary maps.
Record of access lines .
Records kept within states .
Telephone directories .
Coin Telephones .
Inform customers of .lowest prices service .
Finance fee .

The above-referenced rules and statutory provisions have been waived for other

interexchange carriers in prior cases.

	

Applicant believes that the waiver of these rules

will allow it to provide customers in Missouri with competitive prices and services .

CONCLUSION

In light of the foregoing, Applicant respectfully submits that the public interest,

convenience and necessity would be served by a grant of this Application for a Certificate

of Service Authority to offer intrastate and interstate Interexchange Telecommunications

Services throughout the State of Missouri .



DATED this

	

dayof~999.

Respectfully submitted,

By:

NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC.
NEJXTLINK COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

becca R. Reed
DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP
1155 Connecticut Avenue, NW
Suite 700
Washington, DC 20036

James A. Kearns
Mo Bar No . 004536
Bryan Cave, LLP
One Metropolitan Square, Suite 3600
St . Louis, MO 63102-2750

Counsel for NEXTLINK Communications Companies



Certificate of Service

l, James A. Kearns, hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this application
has been served, via US Mail, prepaid, on the General Counsel's Office of the Missouri
Public Service Commission and the Office of Public Counsel ofthe State ofMissouri this
24th day of September.



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN
to before me this

	

day
of

	

:SIA

	

, 1999 .

R. Gerard Salemme, being first duly sworn under oath, states that he is Senior
Vice President, External Affairs and Industry Relations of NEXTLINK Long Distance
Services, Inc ., that he has read the foregoing Application and that the matters stated
therein are true, accurate and complete to the best of his knowledge and belief.

Notary Public _ n

	

v\ 0, 7T . L-'AV 0;

Mf CammiNiOuZqib" O*,bei 3J,2~

VERIFICATION
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Pursuant to 1102 ofthe General Corporation Law ofDelaware, the undersigned does
hereby submit this Catificsne of incorporation ror the purpose offorming a business corporation.

r.W=13993519f\DE Cat lncorpl.doe

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF

NEWNEXTIX1K COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Name. 'Ibe name ofthe corporation is :

NEWNEXILINK COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

NowNE)CDI,IMC Communications, Inc, is referred to as the 'Corporation" hereafter in
this Ccrtificate orrncurporadon .

2.

	

Purpaee. The nature ofthe business orpuT=to be conducted or
promoted by the Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may
be arganizcd underthe General Corporation LawofDelaware.

3.

	

Shares. Il e Corporation shall have authority to issue One Hundred Fifty-
four Million Four Hundred Sixty-Seven Thousand Six Hundred (154,467,600) shares of
common stock (the "Common Stock"j which shall be divided into two classes, One Hundred
Ten Million ThrerRundrcd Thirty-Four Thousand (110,334,000) shares ofClass A Common
Stock, par value $0.02 per share (the "Class A Common Stack") . and Forty-Four Million One
Hrmdnd ThirtyThree Thousand Six Hundred (44.133,600) shares ofClass B Common Stock,
par value $0.02 per share (the "Class B Common Stock"): The Corporation shall have authority
w issue TwentyFive Million (25,000,000) snares of preferred stock, par value S.01 per share
(the 'Preferred Stock').

	

.

The Class A and Glass B Cotamon Stock are eroded to vote on all matters which come
before the ctoeldrolders Subjectto the diirealial voting powerhetcafta described in this
paragraph 3, all Common Stock shall vote together as a single class. Fach Shane ofClass A
Common Stock shall have one (1) vale and each share of Class B Common Stockstall have ten
(10) votes on all mallas on which holdersofCommon Stock are entitled to vote. Fach :hate ofClass B Common Stock maybe convened, At any time and at the option ofthe holder. into one
share of Class A Common Stock. Each share ofClass A Common Stockmay also be converted .
at the option ofthe Corporation as detormined in the sole discretion of Its Board ofDirectors,
into one sbarc ofClass A Common Stock at any time such Class B Common Stock is

Page 1-CERTIFICATE OF INCORPOILAnON

SAASE of MZAWAM
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'aT BY :DIIT SEATTLE

	

: 5-18-98 :11 :15A1t :

	

DAT SEATTLE-

	

3027318017 :1 3/ 5

transferred, or is pmaentrxt to theCompany fox transfer on the ComImuy's records by the holder
of such ClassB Common Stock. whether such transfer n:aults from a contr:u:Wal obligation of
the holder. by operation of law, by achange in control of the holder, by testanumtary disposition
or gift. or for any other reason .

FAcept withregard to the differential vesting power heminbcfore described in thix
parngaph 3. the LassA Common Stock andthe Class B Common Stock shall carry identical
ehaxactc isties, rights, preference;and limitation, including but not limited to partieaputing equally
in any dividends when and as declared by the Directors out offunds lawfully available therefor and
in any distribution resulting from a liquidation or distribution ofassets, whether voluntary or
involuntary, in each ease avbjett to any preferential rights 6zauted to tmy series ofPreferred Stock
that may be then outstanding.

Shares offreferred Stock ofthe Corporation may he issued from time to time in one
or mot classes or series, each of which class or series shall have such distinctive designation or
tillu as dvtll be fixed by rite BoardofDirectory ofthe Corporation (the "Board of13irottors") and
recorded in a Certificate ofDesignations adoptW anal filed as required by § 151 ofthe General
Corporation LawofDelaware prior to the issuance ofany sham thereof. Each such clans or series
of Preferred Stock shall have suchvoting powers, full or limited, or no voting powers, and such
preftaonees and relative participating. option or other special rights and such gtmlifiemuom .
limitations or rcstrictiont thereof, as hm11 be stated in such resolution or resolution& providing for
the issue of such class or series ofPreferred Stock a% maybe adopted from time to time by the
Board of Directors prior to the issuance ofanyshares thereofpum=t to the authority hereby
expressly vested in it . all in accordance with the laws ofdie State of Delaware.

4.

	

Bylaws. In furtherance and not inlimitation ofthepower conferred by
statute. the bylaws ofthe Corporation nsay be made, altered, amendedor repealed by the
stockholders or by a majority ofthe entire Board ofDirectors.

5.

	

Rg&tered Agent and Office. 'iho name ofthe initial registered agent of
this corporationawlthe address of its initial registered office are as follows:

lame

	

Add
The Corporation TrustCompany

	

1209 r)nmge Street
Wilmington,DE 19801

	

._
A)tr.idostU G..-"s+-j

8.

	

Directors. Thenumber ofdirectors ofthis corporation shall be determined
in the manner spedfsed by the Bylaws and maybe increased or decreased from time to time in the
mm=provided therein. The Initial Board ofDirectors shall consistofone directorandhis name
and address ate as follows:

Page 2 - CERTIFICATE OPINCORPORATION
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follows:

Namc

	

Address

RBruce Easter, Jr.

	

NEXTLINK Communications,be.
155 308th AvenueNE
Ste. 810
Bellevue,WA 9x004

Theterm ofthe initial directors shall be until the first unnual meeting of the stockholders or
until their successors arc elected and qualified, unless removed in accordance with the provisions of
the Bylaws. Jledions ofdirectors need notbe by written ballot.

9.

	

Incorporator . Thename andmailing address ofthe itteorporator at as

10. Indemairrcation.

.Grog F. Adams

.Davis Wright Trcmamc
2600 Ceatrtry Square
1501 Fourth Avenue
Seattle, WA 98101-1688

(a)

	

"MCorpondtion shall indemnify to the fullest extent permitted under aid In
accordance with the laws ofthe State ofMlaware any person who was or is aparty or is threatened
to be made aparty to arty threatened, pmdlng or completed uction. suit or proceeding, whether
civit, criminal, administrative or investigative by reason ofthe fact thathe or she Is orwasa
director, officer, employee or agent ofthe Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the
Corporation as adirector, officer, trustee, employee or agent ofor in say othercapacity with
another curporatim partnership,joint venture, trust or other eattxpSse, against expenses(Including
attorneys' fees and costs),judgments, fines and amounts paid in sctt1ement actually andreasonably
incurredby biro or her isconnection with such action.tacit or proceeding ifbe or she acted in gcxwd
faith and is ameaner he orshe reasonably believed to bo inor not opposed to the best interests of
the Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding. hadno reasonable cause to
believe his conduct wasunlawful.

(b)

	

Mpenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding
shall (inthe cast ofanyaction, suitor pmceedlng against adinxtor ofthe Corporation) or may(in
the case ofany action, suit or proceeding against an offrar, trustee. employee or agent) be paid by
the Corporation in advanceofthe Seal disposition ofsuch action, suit or proceeding as authorixod

Page 3 - CERMCATEOF INCORPOPA710N
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by the Board ofDirectors upon receipt ofan undertaking by or on behalfof the indcrnnifed parson
to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determind that he or she is not entitled to be
indemniGcd by the Corporation as authorised in this paragraph 10 .

(c)

	

Theindemnification andotherrights set forth inthis paragraph 10 shall not
be exclusive of any provisions with respect theism in the bylaws or any other contract or agreement
between the Corporation andany officer. director. employee or agent ofthe Corporation.

(d)

	

Neitherthe amendment nor repeal ofthis paragraph 10. subparagraph (a),
(b) or (c). nor the adoptionofanyprovision ofthis Certificate ofIncorporation inconsistent with
this paragraph 10, subparagraph (a), (b) or(4 shall climiratte or reduce the effca ofthis paragraph
10. subpar4paphr (a}, (b) and (c), in respectofanymatter occurring before such amendment.
repeal oradoption ofan inconsistent provision or in t+eapect ofany cause ofaction, suit or claim
relating to any such matter winch would have given rise to a right ofIndemnification or right to
receive expenses pursuamto this paragraph 10. subparagraph (al (b) or (c). Ifsuch provision had
notbeen so amended or repealed or ifaprovision inconsistent therewithhadnot been so adopted.

11 .

	

13mltatioa of Director Liability. Adirector shall have no liability to the
corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach offiduciary duty as a dircctor,
except for anybreach ofthe director's dutyofloyaltyto the corporation or its stockholdcts, acts or
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional rnisconduct or aknowing violation oflaw
by the director, conduct violating § 174 ofthe General corporation 1aw ofneiaware, orfor any
transaction from which the dire=will personally receive abenefit In money, property or services
to which the director is not legally entitled . Ifthe General Corporation l.nw ofDelaware is
hereafter amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or limitingthe personal liability
ofdirectors, then the liability of a director shall be eliminated or limited to Qu full extent permitted
by the General Corporation LawofDelaware, as so amended. Anyrepeal or modification ofthis
Article shall not adversely affctt any right orprotection ofa director ofthe corporation existing at
the time of such repeal or modificationfor or with respect w an as or omission ofsuch director
occurring prior to such mph or modiflauion.

TIL UNDERSIGNED, being the incorporator harcinbefom named, for the purpose
offorming aCorporationpursuant to the General C:orpexafionLcWofDclawatr, executes this
Certificate. hereby declaring and catifying tbat tltt

	

hisact anddeed andthe facts herein stated
ere true and, accordingly, has l>cratrtto set his bar 1the ." e

	

MS.
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b6t osJ'oy
ARTICLES OFINCORPORATION

OF

NEXTLINKLONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC.

Pursuant to RCW 23B.02.020 of the Washington Business Corporation Act, the
undersigned does hereby submit these Articles of Incorporation for the purpose of forming a
business corporation .

ARTICLE I

NAME

The name ofthis corporation is NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC.

ARTICLE II

PURPOSES

This corporation is organized for the following purposes :

To engage in any business, trade or activity that may be conducted lawfully by a
corporation organized under the Washington Business Corporation Act .

ARTICLE III

SHARES

This corporation is authorized to issue one thousand (1,000) shares of common stock with
no par value .

ARTICLE IV

PREEMPTIVERIGHTS

_ _ ;> o~? . : c, o

Each Shareholder shall have preemptive rights to acquire additional shares which may be
issued by this corporation to the extent preemptive rights apply to such shares under the
Washington Business Corporation Act.



ARTICLE V

NO CUMULATIVEVOTING

At each election for directors, every shareholder entitled to vote at such election has the
right to vote in person or by proxy the number of shares held by such shareholder for as many
persons as there are directors to be elected. No cumulative voting for directors shall be permitted .

ARTICLE VI

BYLAWS

The Board of Directors shall have the power to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws or adopt
new Bylaws . Nothing herein shall deny the concurrent power of the shareholders to adopt, alter,
amend or repeal the Bylaws.

ARTICLE VII

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION - Page 2
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REGISTERED AGENTAND OFFICE

ARTICLEVM

DIRECTORS

The name of the initial registered agent of this corporation and the address of its initial
registered office are as follows :

Registered Agent

	

Office

DWTR&J Corp.

	

2600 Century Square
1501 Fourth Avenue
Seattle, WA 98101-1688

A.

	

The number of directors of this corporation shall be determined in the manner
specified by the Bylaws and may be increased or decreased from time to time in the manner
provided therein.

B.

	

The term of the initial directors shall be until the first annual meeting of the
shareholders or until their successors are elected and qualified, unless removed in accordance with
the provisions ofthe Bylaws .



ARTICLE IX

SHAREHOLDER VOTING REOUIREMENTS FOR CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

In order to obtain shareholder approval in connection with the following corporate actions,
such actions must be approved by each voting group of shareholders entitled to vote thereon by a
majority of all the votes entitled to be cast by that voting group: amendment of the Articles of
Incorporation; a plan ofmerger or share exchange ; the sale, lease, exchange, or other disposition of
all, or substantially all, of the corporation's assets other than in the usual and regular course of
business ; or dissolution ofthe corporation.

ARTICLE X

INCORPORATOR

The name and address ofthe incorporator are as follows :

Name

	

Address

JeffBelfiglio

	

1800 Bellevue Place
10500 N.E. 8a Street
Bellevue, Washington 98004

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION - Page 3
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ARTICLE XI

LIMITATION t F DIRECTORS' LIABILITY

A director shall have no liability to the corporation or its shareholders for monetary
damages for conduct as a director, except for acts or omissions that involve intentional misconduct
by the director, or a knowing violation of law by the director, or for conduct violating RCW
23B.08.310, or for any transaction from which the director will personally receive a benefit in
money, property or services to which the director is not legally entitled . If the Washington
Business Corporation Act is hereafter amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or
limiting the personal liability of directors, then the liability of a director shall be eliminated or
limited to the full extent permitted by the Washington Business Corporation Act, as so amended.
Any repeal or modification of this Article shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a
director of the corporation existing at the time of such repeal or modification for or with respect to
an act or omission ofsuch director occurring priorto such repeal or modification.



ARTICLE JQI

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION - Page 4
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INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 1 . Right to Indemnification. Each person who was, or is threatened to be made a
party to or is otherwise involved (including, without limitation, as a witness) in any actual or
threatened action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by
reason ofthe fact that he or she is or was a director or officer ofthe corporation or, while a director
or officer, he or she is or was serving at the request ofthe corporation as a director, trustee, officer,
employee or agent of another corporation or ofa partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise,
including service with respect to employee benefit plans, whether the basis of such proceeding is
alleged action in an official capacity as a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent or in any other
capacity while serving as a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent, shall be indemnified and
held harmless by the corporation, to the frill extent permitted by applicable law as then in effect,
against all expense, liability and loss (including attorney's fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise
taxes or penalties and amounts to be paid in settlement) actually and reasonably incurred or suffered
by such person in connection therewith, and such indemnification shall continue as to a person who
has ceased to be a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit ofhis or
her heirs, executors and administrators ; provided, however, that except as provided in Section 2 of
this Article with respect to proceedings seeking to enforce rights to indemnification, the corporation
shall indemnify any such person seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part
thereof) initiated by such person only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the
board ofdirectors of the corporation. The right to indemnification conferred in this Section 1 shall
be a contract right and shall include the right to be paid by the corporation the expenses incurred in
defending any such proceeding in advance of its final disposition ; provided, however, that the
payment of such expenses in advance of the final disposition of a proceeding shall be made only
upon delivery to the corporation of an undertaking, by or on behalf of such director or officer, to
repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined that such director or officer is not
entitled to be indemnified under this Section 1 or otherwise .

Section 2. Right ofClaimant to Bring Suit . Ifa claim under Section 1 ofthis Article is not
paid in full by the corporation within sixty (60) days after a written claim has been received by the
corporation, except in .the case of a claim for expenses incurred in defending a proceeding in
advance of its final disposition, in which case the applicable period shall be twenty (20) days, the
claimant may at any time thereafter bring suit against the corporation to recover the unpaid amount
of the claim and, to the extent successful in whole or in part, the claimant shall be entitled to be
paid also the expense of prosecuting such claim. The claimant shall be presumed to be entitled to
indemnification under this Article upon submission of a written claim (and, in an action brought to
enforce a claim for expenses incurred in defending any proceeding in advance of its final
disposition, where the required undertaking has been tendered to the corporation), and thereafter the
corporation shall have the burden ofproof to overcome the presumption that the claimant is not so
entitled . Neither the failure of the corporation (including its board of directors, independent legal
counsel or its shareholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such



action that indemnification of or reimbursement or advancement of expenses to the claimant is
proper in the circumstances nor an actual determination by the corporation (including its board of
directors, independent legal counsel or its shareholders) that the claimant is not entitled to
indemnification or to the reimbursement or advancement of expenses shall be a defense to the
action or create a presumption that the claimant is not so entitled .

Section 3 . Nonexclusivity of Riphts. The right to indemnification and the payment of
expenses incurred in defending a proceeding in advance of its final disposition conferred in this
Article shall not be exclusive of any other right which any person may have or hereafter acquire
under any statute, provision of the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, agreement, vote of
shareholders or disinterested directors or otherwise.

Section 4 . Insurance. Contracts and Funding. The corporation may maintain insurance, at
its expense, to protect itself and any director, trustee, officer, employee or agent of the corporation
or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense,
liability or loss, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify such person
against such expense, liability or loss under the Washington Business Corporation Act. The
corporation may, without fiuther shareholder action, enter into contracts with any director or officer
of the corporation in furtherance of the provisions of this Article and may create a trust fund, grant
a security interest or use other means (including, without limitation, a letter of credit) to ensure the
payment ofsuch amounts as may be necessary to effect indemnification as provided in this Article .

Section 5. Indemnification of Emplovees and Agents ofthe Corporation. The corporation
may, by action of its board of directors from time to time, provide indemnification and pay
expenses in advance of the final disposition of a proceeding to employees and agents of the
corporation with the same scope and effect as the provisions of this Article with respect to the
indemnification and advancement of expenses of directors and officers of the corporation or
pursuant to rights granted pursuant to, or provided by, the Washington Business Corporation Act or
otherwise.

These Articles ofIncorporation shall be effective upon filing .

DATED this 25* day ofFebruary, 1999 .

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION - Page 5
F:\DOCS\38936\1\LongDistance Services AOI.doc 02125/99

ARTICLE J{IlI

EFFECTIVE DATE

JEFF BELFIGLI , incorporator



DATED this 25'" day ofFebruary, 1999 .

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION - Page 6
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ONSENTMSERVE ASREGISTERED_AGENT

DWTR&J Corp., a Washington corporation, hereby consents to serve as Registered Agent,
in the State of Washington, for NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC. DWTR&J
Corp . understands that as agent for said corporation, it will be responsible to receive service of
process in the name of said corporation; to forward all mail to said corporation ; and to immediately
notify the office of the Secretary of State in the event of its resignation, or of any changes in the
registered office address of2600 Century Square, 1501 Fourth Avenue, Seattle,WA 98101-1688 .

DWTRBJ CORP., a Washington corporation

2600 Century Square
1501 Fourth Avenue
Seattle, Washington 98101-1688
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UBI Number : 601 935 809

I, RALPH MUNRO, Secretary of State of the State of Washington and custodian of its seal,
hereby issue this

CERTIFICATE OFINCORPORATION

to

NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC.

a Washington Profit corporation . Articles of Incorporation were filed for record in this
office on the date indicated below .

Date : February 26, 1999

Given undermy hand andthe Seal oftheState
of Washington at Olympia, the State Capital

RdpliMunro, Secretary1%3100-5



S.OS.470

Rebecca McDoweU Cook
Secretary of State

CORPORATION DIVISION - CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
All

WHEREAS,
NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC .

Y

USIN71 G IN MISSOURI THE NAME
a==NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC .

HAS COMPLIED WITH THE GENERAL AND BUSINESS CORPORATION LAW
``'` WHICH GOVERNS FOREIGN CORPORATIONS ; BY FILING IN THE OFFICE

1. OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF MISSOURI AUTHENTICATED FVIDENCE
L,I.1 0F ITS INCORPURATION AND GOOD STANDING UNDER THEAWS OF THE

STATE OF WASHINGTON .

THEREFORE, I, REBECCA McDOWELL COOK . SECRETARY OF
;,P' STATESTATE OF THt STATE OF MISSOURI, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT SAID
- ;CORPORATION IS FROM THIS DATE DULY AUTHORIZED TO TRANSACT

Business IN THIS STATE AND IS --NTITLED TO ALL RIGHTS AND
:;PRIVILEGES GRANTED TO 4REIGN CORPORATIONS UNDER TH{E-GENERAL
AND BUSINESS CORPORATION LAW OF MISSOURI .

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE SET MY
HAND AND IMPRINTED THE GREAT SEAL OF
THE STATE OF MISSOURI, ON THIS, THE
16TH DAY OF JUNE, 1999 "
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irviirite a future date, as follows :

State of Missouri
Rebecca McDoweH Cook, SemiPINT D

Corporation DivisiorAND CERTIFICATE Of
AUTHORITY ISSUED

Application for Foreign Corporation JUN 16 1099
For a Certificate of Authority ,
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ANY
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l AWY ~)~ 9TA(Submit in duplicate with filing fee of $155.00)
(1) The corporation,. name is NPXTLINIC Long Distance Services, Inc .

and it is organized and existing under the lawsof Washington

(2)Thename itwill useinMissouri is MTLtNtt Long »istance Services . Inc .

(3)The date of its incorporation was2gbruarv

	

26.1994

	

, and the period of its duration Is : Perpetual
mo¢thPoaylyrx

(4) The address of itsprincipal place of business Suite 2200, 500 - loath Avenue N .B., Belltavue, S1TA 98004
wad.

	

lstwc/Lip

(S)The name and address ofits registered agent and office in the State ofMissouri is
Corporation Service Coltpany d/b/a CSC-L&Wyern Tnnnrrx,cating 5amico Coegany

221 Bolivar Street , Jefferson City, Mi ssouri
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(6) ope?ntilif~~~o~.e~~)eco

	

ui il~~ac~ontsss¢e~3 ce . To engage in any act or activity
for which corporations may be organized,

(7) The name of iu officers and directors and their business addresses are as follows :
(officers)

	

Naaae

	

Address

	

City/Stawmp

President see attached of:icers/directors rider

Vice President

Secretary

Treasurer

(Board of Directors)

Dirutoc

	

aao aCeaeSad offieeea/dircce~~a +-1Qet

Director

Director

Director

(8) The effective date of this document is the date it is filed by the Secretary of State of Missouri, unless you

In afftrmadpn thereof, the f

	

stated above are true .

(Due tray not be more than 90 days aitr tha filing due N this office)

"

	

Jay D. Hu11, Assistant Secretary
(Aoth ' ed a

	

tar of officer or chsiman of the MM)

	

tTitk)

	

tl)1te a ~tgnuarc)

Note: You must have a current certificate ofgood vrtnding or certificate of existence with this application.
This may be obtained from the Secretary of State or other authority that issues corporate charters .
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Directors :

George M. Tronsrue TTI

R. Btucc Easter, Jr .

Kathleen Iskra

Officers :

George M. Tronsrue III

Charles P . Daniels

Ian LuMFlC

R BrJce Easter, Jr.

Kathleen Iskra

R . Gerard Salentme

Michael MCHale

Jay D. Hull

Rkhdrd A. Montfort, Jr.

NEXTLI-NKLONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC.

OFFICERS/DIRECTORS RIDER

The address for each ofthe following directors and officers is :

500 - 108x' Avenue N F.
Suite 2200
Beliavuc, WA 98004
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CEO, COO, President

Vice President

vice President

Vice President, Secretary, General Counsel
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Senior Vice President

Vice President

Assistant Secretary

Assistant Secretary



BIOGRAPHIES OF NEXTLINK OFFICERS

George M. Tronsrue
III

President and Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Tronsrue has been President ofNEXTLINK Communications, Inc., since July 1998 and Chief
Operating Officer ofNEXTLINK since October 1997 . Prior to that, Mr. Tronsrue was part ofthe initial
management team of ACSI from February 1994 to September 1997, and was responsible for planning and
overseeing the operations ofACSI for its first three years serving as Chief Operating Officer, President,
Strategy and Technology Development Division and Executive Vice President, Planning and Development.
Prior to that, Mr. Tronsrue served as the Regional Vice President of the Central Region of Teleport
Communications Group ("TCG"), and as Vice President, Emerging Markets overseeing the start-up of
TCG's initial eight cable television partnerships . Before TCG, Mr. Tronsrue was at MFS Communications
from its inception in 1987 until 1992 . At MFS, Mr. Tronsrue served as Vice President, Corporate Planning
and Information Management; Vice President, Field Sales ; Vice President and General Manager for MFS
New York during its first year of operations and Executive Vice President, MFS Internet. Prior to MFS,
Mr. Tronsrue served at MCI from 1983 to 1986 in a variety of engineering and operations roles,
culminating as Director ofOperations, Michigan and Ohio .

R Gerard Salemme
Senior Vice President, External Affairs and Industry Relations

Charles P. Daniels
Vice President & Chief Technology Officer

R Bruce Easter, Jr.
Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary

Mr. Salemme has been Senior Vice President, External Affairs and Industry Relations of NEXTLINK since
July 1997 . Prior tojoining NEXTLINK, Mr. Salemme was Vice President, Government Affairs at AT&T
Corporation from December 1994 . Prior tojoining AT&T, Mr. Salemme was Senior Vice President,
External Affairs at McCaw Cellular from 1991 to December 1994.

Mr. Daniels has been Vice President, ChiefTechnology Officer ofNEXTLINK since July 1997 . Prior to
that, Mr. Daniels was Vice President, Chief Marketing officer ofNEXTLINK from November 1995 . From
1992 to 1995, Mr. Daniels worked for MCI where he was the founder and Program Manager ofthe network
MCI Developers Lab. Mr. Daniels was also a founding member of MCI's Advanced Technology Group .
Prior to joining MCI, Mr. Daniels worked for Manufacturers Hanover Trust from 1989 to 1992 as Vice
President, Strategic Technology & Research, where he was responsible for evaluating and implementing
new technologies that either reduced costs or generated new revenue .

Mr. Easter has been Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary ofNEXTLINK since January 1995 .
From 1986 to December 1994, he was an associate and then partner in the law firm of Davis Wright
Tremaine in Seattle, Washington, where he focused on communications law and media matters .



Kathleen H. Iskra
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Ms. Iskra has been Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer ofNEXTLINK since January
1996 . Prior to that, she was President and ChiefExecutive Officer of Horizon Air, a wholly-owned
subsidiary ofAlaska Air Group . Prior to her appointment at Horizon Air, Ms. Iskra served as staffVice
President of Finance and Controller ofAlaska Airlines and Alaska Air Group . Ms. Iskra's service with
Alaska began in 1987, when she was appointed Controller . Prior to joining Alaska, she was an audit
manager with Arthur Andersen .

Janice E. Loichle
Vice President, Chief of Local Exchange Operations

NEXTLINK since October 1996. Prior to that, Ms. Loichle was President ofNEXTLINK Solutions (an
enhanced services subsidiary) from July 1995 . Prior to joining NEXTLINK, Ms. Loichle was Executive
Vice President at U.S . Signal in Detroit and Grand Rapids, Michigan from April 1993 to July 1995 . At
U.S . Signal, Ms . Loichle was responsible for Finance, Systems, Administration and was also involved in
the initial CLEC development in Grand Rapids . From 1990 to 1993, Ms. Loichle was Assistant Vice
President of Finance for SP Telecom in San Francisco . Prior to that, Ms . Loichle was Vice President of
Financial Operations for Lexitel/Allnet/ALC in Birmingham, Michigan from December 1980 to October
1989 .

Michael J. McHale, Jr.
Chief Marketing Officer

Mr. McHale has been Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer ofNEXTLINK since November 1997 .
Prior to joining NEXTLINK, Mr. McHale served as Vice President and General Manager of the Phoenix
market and Regional Vice President at Teleport Communications Group, Inc . from 1993, developing the
Phoenix market from its inception . Prior to that, from 1991 to 1993, he was Vice President, Product
Marketing and Development at MFS Intelenet, Inc . and was responsible for planning and implementing
MFS's initial introduction ofswitched services in New York City .

Richard A. Montfort, Jr.
Assistant Secretary

Mr. Montfort has been Assistant Secretary of NEXTLINK since July 1998 . From October 1992 to
February 1998, he was associated with the law firm ofPreston Gates & Ellis in Seattle, Washington, where
he focused on securities law and mergers and acquisitions .

Jay D. Hull
Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secretary

Mr. Hull has been Assistant Secretary ofNEXTLINK since August 1998 . Mr. Hull began practicing law in
1984 and become a partner at Davis Wright Tremaine in Portland, Oregon in 1991 . He represented
NEXTLINK at Davis Wright Tremaine from the time NEXTLINK was formed in 1994 .
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Item 1 . Description of Business

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.
NEXTLINK Capital, Inc.

PART I

Capitalized terms used herein which are not otherwise defined have the respective meanings ascribed to
them in the Glossary. beginning on page 19.

Overview

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc . ("NEXTLINK" or the "Company") was founded in 1994 by
Craig O. McCaw, its largest and controlling shareholder, to provide local facilities-based telecommunications
services to its targeted customer base of small and medium-sized businesses . In July 1996, NEXTLINK
became one of the first competitive local exchange carriers ("CLECs") in the United States to provide
facilities-based switched local services under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the "Telecom Act"),
which opened the entire local exchange market to competition . In each of the markets it serves, NEXTLINK
seeks to become a principal competitor to the incumbent local exchange carrier ("ILEC") for its targeted
customers by providing an integrated package of high quality local, long distance and enhanced telecommuni-
cations services at competitive prices . In October 1997, the Company completed an initial public offering of
shares of its Class A Common Stock .

The market potential for competitive telecommunications services is large and growing . Industry sources
estimate that in 1996 the total revenues from local and long distance telecommunications services were
approximately 5183 billion, of u-hich approximately $101 billion were derived from local exchange services
and approximately 582 billion from long distance services. Based upon FCC information, aggregate revenues
for local and long distance services grew at a compounded annual rate of approximately 5.590 between 1991
and 1996 . The Telecom Act, the FCC's issuance of rules for competition and pro-competitive policies
developed by state regulatory commissions, has created opportunities for new entrants, including the
Company, to capture a portion of the ILEC's dominant, and historically monopoly controlled, market share of
local services . The development of switched local services competition, however, is in its early stages, and the
Company believes that CLECs currently serve fewer than 5% of the total business lines in the United States .

The Company's targeted customer base within the national telecommunications market is small to
medium-sized businesses, generally those businesses %with fewer than 50 access lines . Based on consultants'
reports, the Company estimates that as of year end 1996, there were approximately 170 million access lines
nationwide, including approximately 55 million business lines .

The Company develops and operates high capacity, fiber optic networks with broad market coverage in a
growing number of markets across the United States . In its switched local service markets, the Company
offers its customers a bundled package of local and long distance services and also offers dedicated
transmission and competitive access services to long distance carriers and end users . In addition, NEXTLINK
offers several non-network-based enhanced communications services to customers nationwide, including a
variety of interactive voice response ("IVR") products .

The Company currently operates 16 facilities-based networks providing switched local and long distance
services in 26 markets in eight states . The Company anticipates developing additional new markets during
1998 which, together with its existing markets, are expected to have a total of approximately 15 million
addressable business lines by the end of 1998. The Company's goal is to add or expand markets to increase its
addressable business lines for markets in service or under development to approximately 21 million by the end
of 1999 .



The Company's g

	

oftargeting 15 million addressable business I

	

by year end 1998 represents a 36°o
increase over the Company's previous objective. The Company has increased its line targets based principally
on three factors: initial success in establishing networks and launching services in major metropolitan markets
in Los Angeles, Chicago and Philadelphia ; the Company's significant growth in the sale and installation of
access lines throughout all markets; and the Company's review of several potential target markets, %khich
underlined the significant market opportunities available to NEXTLINK in those markets.

NEXTLINK is pursuing its targeted customer base in markets of all sizes. In larger markets, the
Company has operational networks in Los Angeles, Chicago and Philadelphia, and networks under develop-
ment in New York City, the San Francisco Bay' Area and Atlanta. The Company also has operational
networks in medium-sized markets such as Las Vegas and Nashville as well as smaller markets that have been
clustered in Orange County, California and central Pennsylvania . The Company will enter large markets on a
stand-alone basis where it is economically attractive to do so and where competitive and other market factors
warrant such entry. The Company also considers pursuing smaller markets where it can extend or cluster an
existing network with relatively little incremental capital. The Company anticipates that the addressable
business lines in the larger markets that it is currently operating and developing will represent the majority of
the Company's addressable business lines by year end 1998 and 1999.

NEXTLINK has experienced significant growth in its customer base . NEXTLINK's customer access
lines in service have increased from 8,511 access lines at December 31, 1996 to 50,131 access lines at
December 31, 1997 . This growth is attributable to both new network launches as well as significant increases
in growth rates in those markets where the Company launched service in 1996 . For markets launched in 1996,
the Company has increased its access lines in service by 248% . from 8,511 to 29,591 at December 31, 1996
and 1997, respectively, representing 51'90 of the Company's overall increase in access lines in service over the
respective periods. The Company has also improved the quarterly rate of access line installations from 1,604 in
the fourth quarter of 1996 to 19.187 in the fourth quarter of 1997 . Approximately 327c of the increase in total
quarterly installations was driven by an increase in quarterly installations in those markets launched in 1996,
where installations increased from 1,604 in the fourth quarter 1996 to 7,293 in the fourth quarter of 1997 .

NEXTLINK believes that a critical factor in the successful implementation of its strategy is the quality
of its management team and their extensive experience in the telecommunications industry. The Company has
built a management team that it believes is %%ell suited to challenge the dominance of the ILECs in the local
exchange market . Craig O . McCaw. the Company's founder and largest and controlling shareholder,
Steven W. Hooper; the Company's Chairman of the Board, Wayne M. Perry, the Company's Vice Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, James F. Voelker, the Company's President, and George M. Tronsrue I II, the
Company's Chief Operating Officer, each has 15 or more years of experience in leading companies in
competitive segments of the telecommunications industry . In addition, the presidents of the Company's
operating subsidiaries and the Company's senior officers have an average of 14 years of experience in the
telecommunications industry . Mr . Hooper and Mr. Perry were members of the senior management team at
McCaw Cellular Communications, Inc. ("McCaw Cellular") during the years in which it became the nation's
largest cellular telephone company. Following McCaw Cellular's sale to AT&T Corp. in 1994, Messrs . Perry
and Hooper were Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, respectively, of AT&T Wireless Services, Inc.

Market Opportunity

Prior to 1984, AT&T Corp . ("AT&T") dominated both the local exchange and long distance
marketplace by owning the operating entities that provided both local exchange and long distance services to
most of the U.S . population . While long distance competition began to emerge in the late 1970s, the critical
event triggering the growth of long distance competition was the breakup of AT&T and the separation of its
local and long distance businesses as mandated by the Modified Final Judgment relating to the breakup of
AT&T (the "MFJ") . To foster competition in the long distance market, the MFJ Prohibited AT&T's divested
local exchange businesses, the Regional Bell Operating Companies ("RBOCs"), from acting as a single
source provider of telecommunications services .



The Company believesthat a similarly critical event occurred in 1996 with the passage of the Telecom
Act . In most locations throughout the United States, the ILEC has operated with a virtual monopoly over the
provision of most local exchange services . However, just as competition slowly emerged in the long distance
business prior to the MFJ, competitive opportunities also have slowly emerged over the last 10 years at the
local level .

Industry sources estimate that in 1996 the total revenues from local and long distance telecommunica-
tions services were approximately 5183 billion, of which approximately $101 billion were derived from local
exchange services and approximately $92 billion from intorLATA long distance services. Based upon FCC
information. aggregate revenues for local and long distance services grew at a compounded annual rate of
approximately 5.5% between 1991 and 1996. Although the MFJ relating to the breakup of AT&T established
the preconditions for competition in the market for long distance services in 1984, the market for local
exchange services has been, until recently, virtually closed to competition and has largely been dominated by
regulated monopolies. Efforts to open the local exchange market began in the laic 1980s on a state-by-state
basis when competitive access providers ("CAPS") began offering dedicated private line transmission and
special access services . These types of services together currently account for approximately 1290 of the total
local exchange revenues . CAPS were restricted, often by state laws, from providing the other, more frequently
used services such as basic and switched services, which today account for approximately 8890 of local
exchange revenues .

The Telecom Act and the FCC's issuance of rules for competition, particularly those requiring the
interconnection of all networks and the interchange of traffic among the ILECs and the CLECs, as well as
pro-competitive policies already developed by state regulatory commissions, have caused fundamental changes
in the structure of the local exchange markets. Although a recent decision by the United States Court of
Appeals for the Eighth Circuit substantially limits the FCC's jurisdiction and expands the state regulators'
jurisdiction to set and enforce rules governing the development of local competition, most states have already
begun to establish rules for local competition that are consistent uith the FCC rules overturned by the Eighth
Circuit . See "--Regulatory Overview."

These developments create opportunities for new entrants offering local exchange services to capture a
portion of the ILEC's dominant, and historically monopoly controlled, market share of local services. The
development of switched local services competition, however, is in its early stages and the Company believes
that CLECs currently serve fewer than 590 of the total business lines in the United States .

NEXTLINK believes that the provisions of the Telecom Act requiring the ILECs to cooperate on a
technical level with competitors are as significant as the Telecom Act's provisions eliminating state laws
barring competitors from entering the local exchange services market . Under the Telecom Act, the FCC and
start regulators are required to ensure that ILECs implement :

"

	

Interconnection--provides competitors the right to connect to the ILECs' networks at any techni-
cally feasible point and to obtain access to its rights-of-way;

"

	

Unbundling of the Local Network -- allows competitors to purchase and utilize components of the
ILECs' network selectively ;

"

	

Reciprocal Compensation-establishes the framework for pricing between the CLEC and the ILEC
for use of each other's networks; and

"

	

Number Portability-allows ILEC customers to retain their current telephone numbers when they
switch to a CLEC.

In addition, the Telecom Act provides that ILECs that are subsidiaries of R8OCs cannot combine in-
region, long distance services across local access and transport areas ("LATAs") with the local services they
offer until they have demonstrated that they have complied with certain regulatory requirements relating to
local competition, See "-- Regulatory Overview." One federal district court has ruled that the Telecom Act's
restrictions on RBOC long distance entry am unconstitutional. This decision has been stayed pending appeal .
See " - Federal legislation." The Company believes it will have an opportunity to gain market share in
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certain markets by combining local and long distance services in a single offering to its customers before that
market's ILEC, if it is a subsidiary of a RBOC, is permitted to do so.

Business Strategy

The Company has built an end user-focused, locally oriented organization dedicated to providing
switched local and long distance telephone service at competitive prices to small and medium-sized
businesses . The key components of the Company's strategy to become a leading provider of competitive
telecommunications services and to maximize penetration of its targeted customer base are :

Provide Integrated Telecommunications *Services to Small and Medium-Sized Businesses . The
Company primarily focuses its sales efforts for switched local and long distance services on small and
medium-sized businesses and professional groups, those businesses having fewer than 50 business lines .
The Company's market research indicates that these customers prefer a single source for all of their
telecommunications requirements, including products, billing, installation, maintenance and customer
service . The Company has chosen to focus on this segment based on its expectations that higher gross
margins will generally be available on services provided to these customers as compared with larger
business, and that ILECs may be less likely to apply significant resources towards retaining these
customers. The Company expects to attract and retain these customers through a direct sales effort by
offering : (i) bundled local and long distance services, as well as the Company's enhance communications
services; (ii) up to a 10% to 15% discount to comparable pricing by the ILEC as well as promotional
discounts, depending on the individual market; and (iii) responsive customer service and account
management provided on a local level .

Foster Decentralised Local Management and Control. The Company believes that its success is
enhanced by building locally based management teams that are responsible for the Company's success in
each of their operational markets . The Company has recruited experienced entrepreneurs and industry
executives as presidents of each of the Company's operating subsidiaries, many of whom have previously
built and led their own start-up telecommunications businesses . The local presidents and their teams are
charged with achieving growth objectives in their respective markets and have decision making authority
in key operating areas, including customer care, network growth and building connectivity, and managing
the relationship and provisioning efforts with the ILEC . The Company has established an incentive based
compensation policy for these management teams that is based upon the achievement of targeted growth
and operational objectives . The Company believes that this local management focus will provide a critical
competitive edge in customer acquisition and retention in each market .

Further Develop Effective Direct Sales and Customer Care Organizations. NEXTLINK is building
a highly motivated and experienced direct sales force and customer care organization that is designed to
establish a direct and personal relationship with its customers . The Company has expanded its sales force
from 98 salespeople at year end 1996 to 223 salespeople at December 31, 1997 . The Company expects to
further increase its sales force to approximately 350 salespeople by year end 1998 . Salespeople are given
incentives through a commission structure that targets 40% of a salesperson's compensation to be based
on performance . To ensure customer satisfaction, each customer will have a single point of contact for
customer care who is responsible for solving problems and responding to customer inquiries . The
Company has expanded its customer care organization from 36 customer care employees at year end
1996 to 162 customercare employees at December 31, 1997 . The Company expects to further increase its
customer care organization to approximately 275 customer care employees by year end 1998 .

Continuously Improve Provisioning Processes to Accelerate Revenue Growth . The Company be-
lieves that a significant ongoing challenge for CLECs will be to continuously improve provisioning
systems, which include the complex process of transitioning ILEC customers to the Company's network .
Accordingly, the Company will continue to identify and focus, as a key competitive strategy, on
implementing best provisioning practices in each of its markets that will provide for rapid and seamless
transitions of customers from the ILEC to the Company. To support the provisioning of its services, the
Company has begun the long-term development and implementation of a comprehensive information



technology platform geared toward delivering information and automated ordering and provisioning
capability directly to the end user as well as to the Company's internal staff. The Company believes that
these practices and its comprehensive information technology platform, as developed, will provide the
Company with a long-term competitive advantage and allow it to more rapidly implement switched local
services in its markets and to shorten the time between the receipt of a customer order and the generation
of revenues . The Company's improving capacity to provision access lines to its networks is reflected in the
number of access lines installed per business day. For those markets in which the Company has offered
switched local services since 1996, the rate increased from 44 installations per business day in the first
quarter of 1997 to 309 per business day in the fourth quarter of 1997 .

Develop High Capacity Fiber Optic Networks with Broad Market Coverage. NEXTLINK designs
its networks with a long-term view focusing on three key elements . First, the Company designs and builds
its networks to provide extensive coverage of those areas where the density of business lines is highest and
to enable the Company to provide direct connections to a high percentage of nearby commercial buildings
and ILEC central offices situated near the network. Over time, this broad coverage is expected to result in
a higher proportion of traffic that is both originated and terminated on the Company's networks, which
should provide higher long-term operating margins. In addition, the Company is participating in the
FCC's Local Multipoint Distribution Service ("LMDS") auction which, depending on the bidding and
deployment costs, may offer an economically efficient means to supplement the Company's fiber network
build-out in some localities . Furthermore, a wireless local loop alternative may create competitive
pressure on high unbundled loop costs in certain areas. Second, the Company constructs high capacity
networks that utilize large fiber bundles capable of carrying high volumes of voice, data, video and
Internet traffic as well as other high bandwidth services. This strategy should reduce potential "overbuild"
costs and provide added network capacity as the Company adds high bandwidth services in the future . In
Atlanta, Chicago, New York and Newark . New Jersey, the Company will utilize leased dark fiber and
fiber capacity to launch facilities-based services and begin building a customer base in advance of
completing construction of its own fiber optic network in these markets. Third. the Company employs a
uniform technology platform based on Nortel DMS 500 switches, associated distribution technology and
other common transmission technologies enabling the Company to (i) deploy features and functions
quickly in all of its networks, (ii) expand switching capacity in a cost effective manner and (iii) lower
maintenance costs through reduced training and spare parts requirements. The Company currently has 12
operational Nortel DMS 500 switches . including one installed switch at the Company's testing and
network operations control center ("NEXTLAB") . For economic or strategic reasons, the Company may
in the future elect to utilize other switch vendors and may also acquire and utilize non-Nortel switches in
connection with acquisitions of other companies. The Company plans to install three additional Nortel
DMS 500 switches by June 1995 . The Company also utilizes unbundled loops from the ILEC to connect
the Company's switch and network to end user buildings and is evaluating other alternatives for building
connectivity, including wireless connections, for the "last mile" of transport.

Continue hfarket Expansion.

	

The Company's goal is to add markets and market clusters to increase
its addressable business lines to approximately 15 million by the end of 1998 and 21 million by the end of
1999 . The Company anticipates continued expansion into new geographic areas, including additional
large markets, as opportunities arise either through building new networks, acquiring existing networks or
other telecommunications companies, or acquiring or leasing dark fiber and fiber capacity . NEXTLINK
also believes that its strategy of operating its networks in clusters (i) offers substantial advantages
including economies of scale in management, marketing, sales and network operations, (ii) enables the
Company to capture a greater percentage of regional traffic and to develop regional pricing plans, because
the Company believes that a significant level of traffic terminates within 300 miles of its origination and
(iii) provides opportunities in smaller markets that are too small to develop on a stand-alone basis.

Offer Enhanced Communications Services. NEXTLINK offers customers value-added services
such as the Company's IVR products that are not dependent on the Company's local facilities . The
Company offers its enhanced communications services in all of its markets, as well as in areas of planned



network expansion. The Company believes these services increase its visibility in attracting local
exchange customers when it operates networks in these markets.

The Company's Telecommunications Services

Local and Long Distance Services

The Company commenced the offering of switched local and long distance services in seven markets on
July 4, 1996, and in 18 additional markets in 1997. In February 1998, the Company launched switched local
and long distance services in Chicago, Illinois and expects to commence the offering of switched local and long
distance services in additional markets, including the south San Francisco Bay Area, New York City, Atlanta
and Newark (NJ) areas, during the remainder of 1998 . The Company focuses its product offering on basic
telecommunications services, which it believes are the core of local exchange services . Pricing, which is
determined and implemented by the Company's operating subsidiary in each local market, has been generally
10% to 15% lower than the pricing for comparable local services from the ILEC and the Company also makes
promotional offering prices available from time to time . The Company's current product offering includes:

"

	

Standard dial tone, including touch tone dialing, 911, and operator assisted calling;

"

	

Multi-trunk services, including direct inward dialing (DID) and direct outward dialing (DOD);

"

	

Long distance service, including 1+, 8001888 and operator services ;

"

	

Voice messaging with personalized greetings, send, transfer, reply and remote retrieval capabilities ;
and

"

	

Directory listings and assistance .

Currently, the Company offers CAP services in 26 markets, focusing on long distance carriers and the
private line needs of high volume customers. In addition, data services that are currently offered by the
Company include Ethernet . TOKEN rings. and Fiber Distributed Data Interface (FDDI) .

The Company's CAP services, which are used as both primary and back-up circuits, fall into three
principal categories : (1) special access circuits that connect end users to long distance carriers, (2) special
access circuits that connect long distance carriers' facilities to one another and (3) private line circuits that
connect several facilities owned by the same end user.

Enhanced Communications SeiTices

NEXTLINK's IVR platform allows a consumer to dial into a computer-based system using a toll-free
number and a touch tone phone and, by following a customized menu, to access a variety of information and to
leave, simultaneously, a profile of the caller behind for use by either NEXTLINK or its clients. Currently,
NEXTLINK provides four types of 1VR services :

LeoveWord-prompts the consumer to leave messages of any length or complexity, ranging from
catalog requests and contest entries to specific product questions and surveys;

Dealer Locator- helps a consumer to locate the nearest dealer of the client's products by instantly
identifying the consumer's area and responding with the names, addresses and phone numbers of the
client's locations within any desired mileage radius;

Automated Order £ntrv-allows consumers to purchase products using the interactive phone service
24-hours a day, with real-time order and credit card confirmation as well as arranging for delivery of
the new item to the consumer's desired address ; and

Interactive Call Center-provides the consumer with a menu of selections that include Dealer
Locator, Automated Order Entry and other functions, including receiving a catalog, registering the
warranty of a product, contest entry and an option for callers to be forwarded to a live operator.



Sales and Customer Care

Overview

Sales Force

Customer Care

The Company anticipates that it will continue to explore other enhanced communications services
opportunities and may acquire, invest in or establish marketing relationships with additional service providers
in the future that support its overall business and marketing strategies .

The Company utilizes a two-pronged sales strategy in each of its markets, one directed to the sale of local
and long distance services and the other to enhanced communications services . The primary sales efforts in the
Company's markets are for switched local and long distance services focusing on small and medium-sized
businesses and professional groups with fewer than 50 business lines . The Company's market research
indicates that these customers prefer a single source for all of their telecommunications requirements,
including products, billing, installation, maintenance and customer service . The Company utilizes a direct
sales effort offering combined local and long distance services with prices that are generally at a 10% to 15%
discount from the ILEC. Providing a combination of local and long distance services provides the Company's
customers a level of convenience that has been generally unavailable since the break-up of AT&T. The
Company is also marketing its enhanced communications services through a separate direct sales force in each
market, which is expected to increase the number of customers for all of NEXTLINK's telecommunications
services in that market at a faster rate . In addition, the Company is continuing its sales efforts for traditional
CAP services to long distance carriers and large commercial users .

The Company is building a highly motivated and experienced direct sales force and customer care
organization that is designed to establish a direct and personal relationship with its customers . The Company
seeks to recruit salespeople with strong sales backgrounds, including salespeople from long distance
companies, telecommunications equipment manufacturers, network systems integrators and the ILECs . The
Company has expanded its sales force from 98 salespeople at year end 1996 to 223 salespeople at
December 31, 1997 . The Company expects to further increase its sales force to approximately 350 salespeople
by year end 1998 . Salespeople are given incentives through a commission structure that targets 40% of a
salesperson's compensation to be based on performance . With respect to traditional CAP services, the
Company currently utilizes a national sales force to establish and expand long distance company access service
sales . Sales efforts for long distance carriers are centralized in order to provide a single point of contact for
these customers .

The Company anticipates that its enhanced communications service offerings will continue to be sold
across the country by its existing national sales force for these services . The Company has also augmented
these efforts with a separate, targeted, locally based sales force in each of its markets . The Company believes
that this approach to each market will provide revenues that are incremental to its local exchange operations .

The Company is augmenting its direct sales approach with superior customer care and support through
locally based customer care representatives . The Company is structuring its customer care organization in
such a manner that each customer will have a single point of contact for customer care who is responsible for
solving problems and responding to customer inquiries . The Company has expanded its customer care
organization from 36 customer care employees at year end 1996 to 162 customer care employees at
December 31, 1997. The Company seeks to provide a customer care group that has the ability and resources to
respond to and resolve customer problems as they arise. The Company believes that customer care
representatives will be the most effective if they are based in the community in which the Company is offering
services, which placement will allow, among other things, the opportunity for the representatives to visit the
customer's location .



ivet»ork Development

General

in developing its networks, the Company has generally executed a strategy of (i) acquiring fully or
partially constructed fiber optic networks and (ii) designing and constructing high capacity fiber optic
networks with broad coverage . The Company has recently entered into leased dark fiber and fiber capacity
arrangements which allow the Company, by, installing one or more switches and related electronics, to Inter a
market prior to completing construction of a fiber optic network. The Company regularly evaluates markets as
locations for expansion of the Company's current detworks and the development of additional networks . The
decision to build, acquire or utilize capacity of an existing network is not based on any single factor, but on a
combination of a number of factors including:

"

	

demographic, economic, telecommunications demand and business line characteristics of the market
and the surrounding markets;

"

	

level of capital expenditures relative to the number of business lines ;

availability of rights-of-way ;

"

	

actual and potential competitors ; and

"

	

potential for the Company to cluster additional networks in the region .

If a particular market targeted for development is deerned to present an attractive market opportunity,
the Company dttertnints whether acquisition opportunities are available, in some cases a large network can be
acquired_ and in other cases a small existing network can serve as a starting point for market entry. If the
Contpam decides to build a new network, or substantially expand a small acquired system, the Company
desil;ns a proposed new or expanded netwwork that can connect a large number of businesses, long distance
carriers points of presence and the ILEC's principal central offices in the area to be served, utilizing existing
rights-of-way and/or rights-of-way than the Company will develop. Concurrently, the Company's market
development personnel visit the location of the proposed network to begin discussions with city officials,
providers of rights-of-way, potential end users and long distance companies .

Based on the data developed during these preliminao studies and visits, the Company develops detailed
financial estimates of the costs of constructing a network, including the cost of fiber optic cable, transmission
and other electronic equipment, as s~cil as costs related to switching, engineering, building entrance
requirements and right-of-way acquisitions . If the financial estimates are satisfactory to the Company, the
Company's market development personnel prepare a detailed business and financial plan for the proposed
network, including competitive, regulatory and right-of-way analysts . Based upon its review of these analyses,
the Company determines whither to proceed. The Company anticipates continuing the expansion of its
networks into new,markets utilizing the market development analysis described above. The Company will seek
to continue to expand its operations in states where it has established one or more networks, by continuing to
construct or acquire networks in adjacent areas to leverage its existing networks, switches and telecommunica-
tions equipment, thereby establishing a cost effective and operationally efficient cluster of networks in various
geographic regions .



The Company's Networks

The following table provides information on the markets in which the Company has launched switched
local and long distance services .

Design

Network Architecture

The Company builds or acquires its own fiber optic networks because it believes that facilities-based full
service telecommunications companies whose networks are directly connected to their customers will have the
ability to respond more quickly to customer needs for capacity and services . Moreover, the Company believes
that facilities-based carriers develop a more knowledgeable, cooperative relationship with their customers,
improving their ability to provide new services and other telecommunications solutions, which should result in
higher long-term operating margins.

The Company believes that the future telecommunications market will be an interconnected network of
networks . The Company believes that calls will flow between local networks, with customers selecting their
service provider based on high quality and differentiated products, responsive customer service and price . In
some circumstances, depending in part upon regulatory conditions, the Company will utilize its own network
for one portion of a call and resell the services of another carrier for the remaining portion of a call . In other
instances, both the origination and termination of calls will take place on the Company's networks. The
Company's networks are designed to maximize connectivity directly with significant numbers of business end
users, and to easily interconnect and provide a least-cost routing flow of traffic between the Company's
network and other networks in the marketplace.

State Market
Launch Date for

Switched Local Senices

Tennessee . . . . . . . . Memphis July 1996
Nashville July 1996

Pennsylvania . . . . . . Allentown July 1996
Harrisburg July 1996
Lancaster July 1996
Reading July 1996
Philadelphia July 1997
Scranton/Wilkes Barre December 1997

Washington . . . . . . . Spokane July 1996
Utah . . . . . . . . . . . . . Salt Lake City January 1997

Orem/Provo September 1997
Nevada . . . . . . . . . . Las Vegas April 1997
Ohio . . . . . . . . . . . . . Cleveland April 1997

Columbus April 1997
California . . . . . . . . Anaheim July 1997

Costa Mesa July 1997
Fullerton July 1997
Garden Grove July 1997
Huntington Beach July 1997
Inglewood July 1997
Irvine July 1997
Long Beach July 1997
Los Angeles July 1997
Orange July 1997
Santa Ana July 1997

Illinois . . . . . . . . . . . Chicago February 1998



In general, the Company seeks to build wide, expansive networks, rather than a simple core ring in a
downtown metropolitan area . The Company believes that this type of broad coverage of the markets in which
it operates will result in the following advantages:

an increased number of buildings that can be directly connected to the Company's network, which
should maximize the number of businesses to which the Company can offer its services ;

a higher volume of telecommunications traffic both originating and terminating on the Company's
network, which should result in improved operating margins;

the ability to leverage its investment in high capacity switching equipment and electronics ; and

the opportunity for the Company's network to provide backhaul Carriage for other telecommunica-
tions service providers such as long distance and wireless carriers.

The Company seeks to further utilize this network design to increase the number of buildings and
customers directly connected to its networks . The Company believes that as compared to the extensive use of
unbundled loops and pursuing a pure resale business strategy, having a direct connection to its customers will
provide the Company with the highest long-term operating margins, allow the Company to provide greater
feature and quality control as well as offer customer service that is both prompt and effective, because the
network to be serviced is controlled by the Company and not another service provider.

The Company seeks to build high capacity networks using a backbone density ranging between 72 and
240 strands. A single pair of glass fibers on the Company's networks can currently transmit 32.256
simultaneous voice conversations, whereas a typical pair of copper wires can currently carry a maximum of 24
digitized simultaneous voice conversations . The Company believes that installing high count fiber strands will
allow the Company to offer a higher volume of voice and broadband services without incurring significant
additional construction costs .

Construction

The construction period of a new network varies depending upon the scope of the activities, such as the
number of backbone route miles to be installed, whether the construction is underground or aerial, whether the
conduit is in place or requires construction, the initial number of buildings targeted for connection to the
network backbone and the general configuration for its deployment. After installing the network backbone, the
Company evaluates extensions to additional buildings and expansions to other areas of a market, based on
detailed assessments of market potential .

The Company's network backbones are installed in conduits that are either owned by the Company or
leased from third parties. The Company leases conduit or pole space from entities such as utilities, railroads,
long distance carriers, state highway authorities, local governments and transit authorities . These arrange
ments are generally for muiti "year terms with renewal options, and arc nonexclusive . The availability of these
arrangements is an important part of the Company's evaluation of a market, Cancellation of any of the
Company's material right-of-way agreements could have an adverse effect on the Company's business in that
ar-,a and could have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Office buildings are connected primarily by network backbone extensions to one of a number of physical
rings of fiber optic cable, which originate and terminate at the Company's central node. Alternatively, the
Company may access an end user's location through interconnection with the ILEC's central office . The
Company is also evaluating other alternatives for building connectivity, including wireless connections, for the
"last mile" of transport. Signals arc generally sent through a network backbone to the central node
simultaneously on both primary and alternate protection paths. Most buildings served have a discrete
Company presence (referred to as a "remote hub") located in the building. Within each building, Company
owned internal wiring connects the remote hub to the customer premise . Customer equipment is conn--cted to
Company-provided electronic equipment generally located in the remote hub, where customer transmissions
art digitized, combined and converted to an optical signal . The traffic is then transmitted through the network
backbone to the Company's central node where originating traffic is reconfigured for routing to its ultimate
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Uniform Technolo;J " Platform

destination . After completion of network construction, the Company employs maintenance and line crews that
are responsible for responding to outages and routine maintenance of the network.

In January 1998, the Company and Nextel Communications, Inc. ("Nextel") formed NEXTBAND
Communications, L.L.C .- ("NEXTBAND"), a joint venture which is owned 50% by the Company and 50%
by Nextel . On January 20, 1998, NEXTBAND filed an application with the FCC for which it paid a
$50.0 million refundable deposit to participate in the LMDS auction which began on February 18, 1998 . Of
the deposit amount, $25 .0 million was contributed by the Company. LMDS is a fixed broadband point-to-
multipoint service which the FCC and industry analysts anticipate will be used for the deployment of wireless
local loop, high-speed data transfer and video broadcasting services . Two licenses will be offered in each of
493 BTAs when the auction commences. Although the number of licenses that may be awarded to
NEXTBAND is limited by the amount of the deposit, NEXTBAND has applied for and is eligible to bid on
any of the markets being auctioned for the block A license (1,150 MHz of spectrum) and the block B license
(150 MHz of spectrum) .

The Company is exploring LMDS for two reasons. Depending upon the bidding and deployment costs,
LMDS may offer an economically efficient means to supplement the Company's fiber network build-out in
some localities . In addition, a wireless local loop alternative may create competitive pressure on high
unbundled loop costs in certain areas. There can be no assurance that NEXTBAND's participation in the
auction will result in the purchase of any LMDS licenses or that LMDS spectrum for wireless connectivity
will provide a cost-effective and efficiently engineered means to connect to end user locations .

In June 1997, the Company entered into an eight year exclusive agreement, which contains a five year
renewal option, with a company that has excess fiber capacity in each of Atlanta, Chicago, New York and
Newark (NJ) . In addition to this capacity arrangement, the Company also entered into a 20-year lease of
capacity over an existing 47-mile fiber network which extends from the Wall Street area north to midtown
Manhattan . In February 1998, the Company entered into an agreement for exclusive rights to multiple fibers
and innerducts for 20 years, with two 10 year renewals . The route covered by the agreement extends over 650
route miles from Manhattan to White Plains (NY), to Stamford (CT), to Newark (NJ) and south from
Manhattan through Philadelphia, Wilmington (DE), Baltimore, and to Washington (DC) . The route will
offer frequent splice points within metropolitan areas and splice points at least every 10,000 feet on routes
between metropolitan areas, as well as provide access to ILEC central and tandem switching offices .

The Company is implementing a consistent technology platform based on the Nortel DMS 500 switch
throughout its networks . Unlike a traditional long distance or local switch, the Nortel DMS 500 switch will
enable the Company to provide local and long distance services from a single platform . The Company believes
that havin; a standardized switch platform will enable it to (i) deploy features and functions quickly in all of
its networks, (ii) expand switch capacity in a cost effective manner and (iii) lower maintenance costs through
reduced training and spare parts requirements . In addition, the scalability and capacity of these switches will
allow- the Company to switch calls from more than one market, which enhances the Company's ability to use a
clustered approach to the building of its networks . For economic or strategic reasons, the Company may in the
future elect to utilize other switch vendors and may also acquire and utilize non-Novel switches in connection
with acquisitions of other companies .

The Company also is establishing a uniform transmission technology utilizing SONET design and
standardized digital access and cross connect systems ("DACCS") and other ancillary transmission
equipment . DACCS provide the ability to aggregate and disaggregate capacity along the fiber optic network.
Using DACCS, the capacity of 24 DS-Os can be aggregated to form a DS-1 and, again through the DACCS,
28 DS-Is can be aggregated to form a DS-3 .

The Company's NEXTLAB facility contains a fully functional Nortel DMS 500 switch in a configuration
that simulates the working environment of the Company's operational switches as well as distribution and
ancillary equipment . Located in Piano, Texas, NEXTLAB operates separate and apart from the Company's
operational switches as a testing facility and will serve as the Company's network operations control center



(NOCC). NEXTLA*ovides the Company with a means to test slit software and service configurations
prior to their release on the Company's networks. The Company believes that this process should :
(i) minimize network outages, (ii) save network operating and training costs and (iii) improve levels of
customer service .

Implementation of Local Telecommunications

A company preparing to offer local exchange services not only requires an installed switch, but also must
have numerous network and routing arrangements in place . NEXTLINK has established all of these
arrangements for Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Washington, Utah, Ohio, Nevada, California and Illinois . These
key elements include :

Interconnection. The Company has executed interconnection agreements for all of its current operating
networks: in Nashville and Memphis, Tennessee, with BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc . ; in Harrisburg,
Reading, Lancaster and Allentown, Pennsylvania, with Bell Atlantic-Pennsylvania, Inc . ; in New York,
New York with Bell Atlantic-New York, Inc . ; in Chicago, Illinois, and in Cleveland and Columbus, Ohio,
with a division of Ameritech ; in Spokane, Washington, and Salt Lake City and Provo/Orem, Utah with
U S WEST Communications, Inc . ; in Los Angeles, California and the surrounding markets, with Pacific Bell
and GTE Corporation ; and in Las Vegas, Nevada, with a division of Sprint . The Company is currently
negotiating with BellSouth for an interconnection agreement to cover Atlanta by the end of the third quarter
of 1998 . In addition, the Company believes that interconnection arrangements between the ILECs and other
CLECs or the Company will be in place in other markets that the Company may enter. The Company likely
will initially "piggy-back" on these other arrangements while pursuing more favorable long-term
arrangements.

The Company's approach to interconnection has been a two-step process . To accelerate its launch of
switched local services, the Company has entered into initial interconnection arrangements that allow for the
immediate exchange of local traffic with the ILEC. These arrangements allow the Company to commence
service immediately and then work to optimize its arrangements with the ILEC. The Company's ILEC
agreements are now being re-negotiated under Sections 251 and 252 of the Telecom Act . The actual operating
experience gained through the Company's initial interconnection agreements gives the Company critical
knowledge for negotiating longer term arrangements . In some cases, where agreement on a long-term
arrangement cannot be reached, the Company may pursue binding arbitration before the state utility
commissions as provided under the Telecom Act . The Company currently has arbitration proceedings pending
in Pennsylvania and Tennessee with Bell Atlantic and BellSouth, respectively. Negotiations are continuing
with both parties during the pendency of the arbitration proceedings . There can be no assurance, however, that
the Company will be able to negotiate longer term relationships on terms and conditions satisfactory to the
Company.

Telephone Numbers. The Company has been offered interim number portability arrangements by the
ILEC in each of its markets, and the Company also is engaged in industry negotiations to establish permanent
number portability . Number portability arrangements will allow ILEC customers to retain their telephone
numbers when changing local exchange service carriers . In addition, the Company has been allocated multiple
blocks of 10,000 telephone numbers for each of its Tennessee, Washington, Pennsylvania, Ohio, Utah,
Nevada, California and Illinois networks, and has applied for such numbers in New York, for use in assigning
new numbers to its customers . These numbers, known as NXX numbers, are the first three digits of a
customer's seven digit local phone number. In each of these cases, the NXX is fully loaded into the Local
Exchange Routing Guide or LERG, which instructs ILECs and other carriers to send a call using a
NEXTLINK NXX to the appropriate NEXTLINK switch, for delivery to the NEXTLINK customer .

SS7 Point Codes.

	

For each of the Company's switches, the Company has been assigned Point Codes for
use with the advanced signaling system known as SS7 which is a separate or "out of band" communications
channel used between telecommunications carriers to set up and control traffic on and between networks . The
Company has designed its network to fully utilize SS7 signaling, which improves call processing times and
frees capacity for voice, data, and video transmissions . The Company has entered into an agreement with a
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Regulatory Overview

Overview

Interconnection

Local Loop Unbundling

Reciprocal Compensation

Number Portability

Access to Phone Numbers

national SS7 service provider that will allow the Company to utilize SS7 signaling in its current and new
markets nationwide .

The Company's services are subject to varying degrees of federal, state and local regulation . The FCC
generally exercises jurisdiction over the facilities of, and services offered by, telecommunications common
carriers that provide interstate or international communications . The state regulatory commissions retain
jurisdiction over the same facilities and services to the extent they are used to provide intrastate communica-
tions . Local governments sometimes impose franchise or licensing requirements on local exchange and other
carriers and regulate street opening and construction activities.

The Telecom Act imposes on ILECs certain interconnection obligations that, taken together, grant
competitive entrants such as the Company what is commonly referred to as "co-carrier status ." In addition,
the Telecom Act generally preempts state or local legal requirements that prohibit or have the effect of
prohibiting any entity from providing telecommunications services . The Telecom Act allows state regulatory
authorities to continue to impose competitively neutral requirements designed to promote universal service,
protect public safety and welfare, maintain quality of service and safeguard the rights of consumers . The
Telecom Act also preserves the ability of state and local authorities to manage and require compensation for
the use of public rights-of-way by telecommunications providers including competitors of the ILECs in the
local market .

It is anticipated that co-carrier status and the preemption of state and local prohibitions on entry could
permit the Company to become a full service provider of switched telecommunications services anywhere in
the United States . The following table summarizes the interconnection rights granted by the Telecom Act that
are most important to the achievement of this goal and the Company's belief as to the anticipated effect of the
new requirements, if properly implemented .
Issue

	

Definition

	

Anticipated Effect

Efficient network interconnection
to transfer calls back and forth
between ILECs and competitive
networks (including 911, 0-t,
directory assistance, etc.)
Allows competitors to selectively
gain access to ILEC wires which
connect ILEC central offices with
customer premises
Mandates reciprocal
compensation for local traffic
exchange between ILECs and
competitors
Allows customers to change local
carriers without changing
numbers ; true portability allows
incoming calls to be routed
directly to a competitor. Interim
portability allows incoming calls
to be routed through the ILEC to
a competitor at the economic
equivalent of true portability
Mandates assignment of new
telephone numbers to competitive
telecommunications provider's
customers
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Allows a CLEC to service and
terminate calls to and from
customers connected to other
networks

Reduces the capital costs of a
CLEC to serve customers not
directly connected to its networks

Improves the CLEC's margins for
local service

Allows customers to switch to a
CLEC's local service without
changing phone numbers

Allows CLECs to provide
telephone numbers to new
customers on the same basis as
the ILEC



While the interconnection rights established in the Telecom Act are a necessary prerequisite to the
introduction of full local competition, they must be properly implemented to be effective. Significant
implementation issues remain to be resolved, including modifications to, and expansions of, the ILEC network
interface facilities, before the barriers to entry into the local telephone business are sufficiently lowered to
permit widespread competitive entry . See "Federal Legislation" below for a more complete explanation of the
potential effect of the Telecom Act on the Company's business .

Federal Legislation

The Telecom Act, enacted on February 8, 1996, substantially revised the Communications Act of 1934 .
The Telecom Act establishes a regulatory framework for the introduction of local competition throughout the
United States . Among other things, the Telecom Act preempts any state or local government from prohibiting
any entity from providing telecommunications service. This provision eliminated prohibitions on entry found in
almost half of the states in the country at the time the Telecom Act was passed . In addition, the Telecom Act
now requires that ILECs provide CLECs with physical collocation on rates, terms and conditions that are just
and reasonable, unless the ILEC can demonstrate to state regulators that physical collocation is not practical .
The Company believes that either physical or virtual collocation of its facilities in a timely fashion for
appropriate rates and terms will accommodate its purposes .

The Telecom Act also establishes a dual federal-state regulatory scheme for eliminating other barriers to
competition faced by competitors to the ILECs and other new entrants into the local telephone market .
Specifically, the Telecom Act imposes on ILECs certain interconnection obligations, some of which are to be
implemented by FCC regulations. The Telecom Act contemplates that states will apply the federal regulations
and oversee the implementation of all of the aspects of interconnection not subject to FCC jurisdiction as they
oversee interconnection negotiations between ILECs and their new competitors.

In addition, the Telecom Act provides that ILECs that are subsidiaries of RBOCs cannot combine in-
region, long distance services across LATAs with the local services they offer until they have demonstrated
that (i) they have entered into an approved interconnection agreement with a facilities-based CLEC or that
no such CLEC has requested interconnection as of a statutorily determined deadline, (ii) they have satisfied a
14-element checklist designed to ensure that the ILEC is offering access and interconnection to all local
exchange carriers on competitive terms and (iii) the FCC has determined that in-region, interLATA approval
is consistent with the public interest, convenience and necessity.

On July 2, 1997, SBC and its local exchange carrier subsidiaries filed a lawsuit in the United States
District Court for the Northern District of Texas challenging on Constitutional grounds the Telecom Act
restrictions applicable to the RBOCs only . On December 31, 1997, the District Court ruled in favor of SBC
and held that Sections 271 through 275 of the Telecom Act, including the long distance entry provisions, are
unconstitutional . On February 11, 1998, however, the District Court issued a stay of its December 31, 1997
decision pending appeal to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit. The appeal is
currently pending.

Federal Regulation

The FCC has significant responsibility in the manner in which the Telecom Act will be implemented
especially in the areas of universal service, access charges, numbering, number portability and price caps . The
details of the rules adopted by the FCC will have a significant effect in determining the extent to which
barriers to competition in local services are removed, as well as the time frame within which such barriers are
eliminated . The FCC may also grant ILECs increased pricing flexibility to enable them to respond to
competition for special access and private line services . To the extent such pricing flexibility is granted, the
Company's ability to compete for certain services may be adversely affected .

On August 8, 1996, the FCC issued an order containing rules providing guidance to the ILECs, CLECs,
long distance companies and state PUCs regarding several provisions of the Telecom Act. The rules include,
among other things, FCC guidance on (i) discounts for end-to-end resale of ILEC local exchange services
(which the FCC has suggested should be in the range of 17%-2590), (ii) availability of unbundled local loops
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and other unbundled ILEC network elements, (iii) the use of Total Element Long Run Incremental Costs
("TELRIC") in the pricing of these unbundled network elements, (iv) average default proxy prices for
unbundled local loops in each state, (v) mutual compensation proxy rates for termination of ILEC/CLEC
local calls and (vi) the ability of CLECs and other interconnectors to opt into portions of interconnection
agreements negotiated by the ILECs with other parties on a most favored nation (or a "pick and choose")
basis . See below for a discussion of the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals decision invalidating certain aspects
of this order.

On May 8, 1997, the FCC released an order establishing a significantly expanded federal telecommu-
nications subsidy regime. For example, the FCC established new subsidies for services provided to qualifying
schools and libraries with an annual cap of $2.25 billion and for services provided to rural health care providers
with an annual cap of $400 million . The FCC also expanded the federal subsidies to low income consumers.
Providers of interstate telecommunications services, such as the Company, as well as certain other entities,
must pay for these programs. The Company's share of the schools, libraries and rural health care funds will be
based on its share of the total industry telecommunications service and certain defined telecommunications
end user revenues . The Company's share of all other federal subsidy funds will be based on its share of the
total interstate telecommunications service and certain defined telecommunications end user revenues. The
Company intends to make all subsidy payments required by law . In the May 8 order, the FCC also announced
that it will soon revise its rules for subsidizing service provided to consumers in high cost areas . Several parties
have appealed the May 8 order. Such appeals have been consolidated and transferred to the United States
Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit where they are currently pending . In addition, on July 3, 1997, several
1LECs filed a petition for stay of the May 8 order with the FCC. That petition is also pending .

In a combined Report and Order and Notice of Proposed Rulemaking released on December 24, 1996,
the FCC made changes and proposed further changes in the interstate access charge structure . In the Report
and Order, the FCC removed restrictions on ILECs' ability to lower access prices and relaxed the regulation
of new switched access services in those markets where there are other providers of access services. If this
increased pricing flexibility is not effectively monitored by federal regulators, it could have a material adverse
effect on the Company's ability to compete in providing interstate access services . On May 16, 1997, the FCC
released an order revising its access charge rate structure . The new rules substantially increase the costs that
(LECs subject to the FCC's price cap rules ("price cap LECs") recover through monthly, no-traffic sensitive
access charges and substantially decrease the costs that price cap LECs recover through traffic sensitive access
charges . In the May 16 order, the FCC also announced its plan to bring interstate access rate levels more in
line with cost . The plan will include rules to be established sometime this year that grant price cap LECs
increased pricing flexibility upon demonstrations of increased competition (or potential competition) in
relevant markets . The manner in which the FCC implements this approach to lowering access charge levels
will have a material effect on the Company's ability to compete in providing interstate access services . Several
parties have appealed the May 16 order. Those appeals have been consolidated and transferred to the United
States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit where they are currently pending .

As part of its overall plan to lower interstate access rates, the FCC also released an order on May 21,
1997, in which the FCC revised its price cap rules . In the order, the FCC increased the so-called X-Factor
(the percentage by which price cap LECs must lower their interstate access charges every year, net of inflation
and exogenous cost increases) and made it uniform for all price cap LECs. The results of these rule changes
will be both a one-time overall reduction in price cap ILEC interstate access charges and an increase in the
rate at which those charges will be reduced in the future . Several parties have appealed the May 21 order .
Those appeals were consolidated and transferred to the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit .
They have been subsequently transferred to the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia
where they are currently pending .

On January 2, 1997, Ameritech of Michigan became the first RBOC to apply for authority to provide in-
region interLATA service pursuant to Section 271 of the Telecom Act . The application was withdrawn and
refiled on May 21, 1997 . That application was denied on August 19, 1997 . In denying the application, the FCC
established specific and substantial criteria that must be met before future Section 271 applications will be
granted.
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On April 11, 1997, SBC Communications, Inc. ("SBC") applied to the FCC for authority to provide
in-region interLATA service in the state of Oklahoma . On June 26, 1997, the FCC released an order rejecting
SBC's application on the grounds that SBC had not demonstrated either that SBC had entered into an
approved interconnection agreement with a facilities-based CLEC or that no CLEC had requested intercon-
nection as of the statutory deadline . On July 3, 1997, SBC filed an appeal of the June 26 order with the United
States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. On March 20, 1998, the Court of Appeals upheld the
FCC's order.

In September and November 1997, BellSouth Corporation ("BellSouth") filed applications for authori-
zation to provide in-region interLATA service in the states of South Carolina and Louisiana. On Decem-
ber 24, 1997 and February 4, 1998, respectively, the FCC released orders rejecting BellSouth's applications
which conclude that BellSouth had not yet demonstrated that it generally offered each of the items of the
competitive checklist set forth in the Telecom Act. On January 13, 1998, BellSouth filed an appeal for the
December 24, 1997 ruling with the United States District Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia . That
appeal is currently pending.

The Company anticipates that RBOCs will continue to apply for authority to provide in-region
interLATA services in markets where the Company operates or plans to operate . The Company also expects
that the FCC will initiate a number of additional proceedings, on its own initiative and as a result of requests
from CLECs and others, as a result of the Telecom Act. While the Eighth Circuit's recent decision in the
appeal of the August 8, 1996 order limits the FCC's jurisdiction over the local competition provisions of the
Telecom Act, such proceedings may nonetheless further define and construe the Telecom Act's terms.

Court of Appeals Decision

Various parties, including ILECs and state PUCs. filed appeals of the FCC's August 8, 1996 order in
various U. S . Courts of Appeal, and several parties petitioned the FCC and the courts to stay the efrectiveness
of the FCC's rules included in the FCC's order, pending a ruling on the appeals . Many of the appeals were
consolidated and transferred to the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit. On July 18, 1997,
the Eighth Circuit overturned the pricing rules established in the August 8, 1996 order, except those
applicable to commercial mobile radio service providers . The Eighth Circuit held that, in general, the FCC
does not have jurisdiction over prices for interconnection, resale, leased unbundled network elements and
traffic termination. The Eighth Circuit also overturned the FCC's "pick and choose" rules as well as certain
other FCC rules implementing the Telecom Act's local competition provisions . In addition, the Eighth Circuit
decision substantially limits the FCC's authority to enforce the local competition provisions of the Telecom
Act.

On October 14, 1997, the Eighth Circuit vacated the FCC's rule prohibiting ILECs from separating
unbundled network elements that are already combined, except al the request of CLECs. In addition, under
the decision, ILECs are not required to recombine unbundled network elements, but must make such
elements available for CLECs to recombine on their own.

On January 22, 1998, the Eighth Circuit issued a writ of mandamus ordering the FCC to follow the
court's July 1997 decision in addressing certain pricing issues in the context of RBOC Section 271 in-region
interLATA entry applications .

On January 26, 1998, the United States Supreme Court agreed to hear challenges to the Eighth Circuit's
July 18, 1997 and October 14, 1997 decisions. The Court has agreed to review all issues raised by the
government, the RBOCs, and competitors. These include whether the FCC has authority (i) to set prices that
ILECs charge CLECs for access to local networks, (ii) to require ILECs to allow CLECs to use provisions of
existing interconnection agreements in their own agreements and (iii) to force ILECs to offer existing
combinations of unbundled network elements needed to provide local service. Because the Court will hear the
consolidated cases in its next term which begins in October, a decision is not expected until next year.
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In the short term the Company believes that the Eighth Circuit decisions will not have a material adverse
effect on it, because the Company already has interconnection agreements in place, or expects to have such
agreements in place, under the provisions of the FCC's order and the Telecom Act which were not invalidated
by the Court . The decision does not delay the implementation of the Telecom Act by the parties and by the
state PUCs, but rather eliminates the guidance on pricing and most favored nation procedures as well as other
issues that the FCC sought to provide to parties and the state PUCs.

In the long term, the Eighth Circuit's decisions make it more likely that the rules governing local
competition will vary from state to state . Most states have already begun to establish rules for local
competition that are consistent with the FCC rules overturned by the Eighth Circuit . If a patchwork of state
regulations were to develop, it could increase the Company's costs of regulatory compliance and could make
competitive entry in some markets more difficult and expensive than in others .

State Regulation

The Company expects that as it offers local exchange and other intrastate services in an increasing
number of states, it will be subject to direct state public utility commission ("PUC") regulation in most, if not
all, such states. In states where the Company desires to offier its services, the Company may be required to
obtain authorization from the appropriate state commission, including certification as a CLEC. In all states
where the Company is operational and certification as a CLEC is currently required, the Company's operating
subsidiaries are certificated . In those markets where the Company anticipates launching services in 1998, it
has received or applied for such certification .

In most states, the Company is required to file tariffs or price lists setting forth the terms, conditions and
prices for services which are classified as intrastate . In some states, the Company's tariff can list a range of
prices for particular services, and in others, such prices can be set on an individual customer basis . The
Company is not subject to price cap or to rate of return regulation in any state in which it currently provides
services .

As noted above, as a result of the July 18, 1997 Eighth Circuit decision, PUCs have an even more
significant responsibility in implementing the Telecom Act . Specifically, the states have authority to establish
interconnection pricing, including unbundled loop charges, reciprocal compensation and wholesale pricing .
The states are also charged under the Telecom Act with overseeing the arbitration process for resolving
interconnection negotiation disputes between CLECs and the ILECs . The Telecom Act allows state
regulatory authorities to continue to impose competitively neutral requirements designed to promote universal
service, protect public safety and welfare, maintain quality of service and safeguard the rights of consumers .

Local Gorernrnent Authorization

In certain locations, the Company is required to obtain local franchises, licenses or other operating rights
and street opening and construction permits to install, expand and operate its fiber-optic networks . In some of
the areas where the Company provides network services, the Company's subsidiaries pay license or franchise
fees based on a percentage of gross revenues or on a per linear foot basis . There is no assurance that certain
cities that do not currently impose fees will not seek to impose such fees in the future, nor is there any
assurance that, following the expiration of existing franchises, fees will remain at their current levels . Under
the Telecom Act, state and local governments retain the right to manage the public rights-of-way and to
require fair and reasonable compensation from telecommunications providers, on a competitively neutral and
nondiscriminatory basis, for use of public rights-of-way .

If any of the Company's existing franchise or license agreements were terminated prior to its expiration
date and the Company were forced to remove its fiber from the streets or abandon its network in place, such
termination would have a material adverse effect on the Company's subsidiary in that area and could have a
material adverse effect on the Company . The Company believes that the provisions of the Telecom Act
barring state and local requirements that prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting any entity from providing
telecommunications service should be construed to limit any such action. However, there can be no assurance
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that one or more local authorities will not attempt to take such action . Nor is it clear that the Company would
prevail in any judicial or regulatory proceeding to resolve such a dispute .

Competition

As noted above, the regulatory environment in which the Company operates is changing rapidly . The
passage of the Telecom Act combined with other actions by the FCC and state regulatory authorities
continues to promote competition in the provision of telecommunications services .

IL£Cs

In each market served by its networks . the Company faces, and expects to continue to face, significant
competition from the ILECs, which currently dominate their local telecommunications markets .

The Company competes with the ILECs in its markets for local exchange services on the basis of product
offerings, reliability, state-of-the-art technology, price, route diversity, ease of ordering and customer service .
However, the ILECs have long-standing relationships with their customers and provide those customers with
various transmission and switching services that the Company, in many cases, does not currently offer. The
Company has sought, and will continue to seek, to achieve parity with the ILECs in order to become able to
provide a full range of local telecommunications services . See "Regulatory Overview" for additional
information concerning the regulatory environment in which the Company operates . Existing competition for
private line and special access services is based primarily on quality, capacity and reliability of network
facilities, customer service, response to customer needs, service features and price, and is not based on any
proprietary technology . As a result of the comparatively recent installation of the Company's fiber optic
networks, its dual path architectures and the state-of-the-art technology used in its networks, the Company
may have cost and service quality advantages over some currently available ILEC networks .

Other Competitors

The Company also faces . and expects to continue to face, competition from other potential competitors in
certain of the markets in which the Company offers its services . In addition to the ILECs and CAPS, potential
competitors capable of offering switched local and long distance services include long distance carriers such as
AT&T, MCI Communications Corporation ("MCI"), Sprint Corporation ("Sprint") and WorldCom, Inc .
("WorldCom"), cable television companies such as TeleCommunications, Inc . and Time Warner, Inc .,
electric utilities, microwave carriers, wireless telephone system operators and private networks built by large
end users .

The Company believes that the Telecom Act, as well as a recent series of completed and proposed
transactions between ILECs and long distance companies and cable companies, increases the likelihood that
barriers to local exchange competition will be removed. The Telecom Act states that entry barriers must be
lowered in the areas served by ILECs that are subsidiaries of RBOCs before such ILECs are permitted to
provide in-region, interLATA services . When ILECs that are RBOC subsidiaries are permitted to provide
such services, they will be in a position to offer single source service . ILECs that are not RBOC subsidiaries
may offer single source service presently.

In some cases, cable television companies are upgrading their networks with fiber optics and installing
facilities to provide fully interactive transmission of broadband voice, video and data communications . In
addition, under the Telecom Act, electric utilities may install fiber optic telecommunications cable and may
facilitate provision of telecommunications services by electric utilities over those networks if granted
regulatory authority to do so . Cellular and PCS providers may also be a source of competitive local telephone
service .

The Company also competes with equipment vendors and installers, and telecommunications manage-
ment companies, with respect to certain portions of its business .

A continuing trend towards business combinations and alliances in the telecommunications industry may
create significant new competitors to the Company . In addition, many of the Company's existing and potential
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competitors have financial, personnel and other resources, including name recognition, significantly greater
than those of the Company.

The Company also competes with long distance carriers in the provision of long distance services .
Although the long distance market is dominated by four major competitors, AT&T, MCI, Sprint and
WorldCom, hundreds of other companies also compete in the long distance marketplace .

With respect to the Company's enhanced communications service offerings, each is subject to competi-
tion . For example, there are several competitors that offer IVR services, such as Call Interactive, which the
Company believes focuses its sales efforts on large volume IVR service users . Another competitor, Telemedia,
which is owned by Sprint, also offers significant call volume capacity. With respect to Magic Number, the
Company's virtual communications center, there are numerous competitors with product offerings that include
some or all of the services offered by Magic Number.

Purchasing and Distribution

With respect to the Company's fiber optic networks, which constitute the Company's most significant
capital investments, the Company has entered into general purchase agreements with key equipment suppliers
for fiber and fiber optic transmission equipment, with Nortel for telecommunications switches, and with other
suppliers for various other components of each system . These agreements provide the basic framework under
which purchase orders for these system components will be made. The specific purchases made for each
network depend upon the configuration and other factors related to the network, such as the prospective
customer base and location and the services to be offered over the network . Once these decisions are made,
purchase orders for the appropriate fiber and selected equipment types are placed under the general purchase
agreements . In connection with the Company's provision of long distance services, it purchases capacity at
wholesale rates from long distance carriers .

Employees

As of December 31, 1997, the Company employed 1,327 people, including full-time and part-time
employees . The Company considers its employee relations to be good . None of the employees of the Company
is covered by a collective bargaining agreement .

Trademarks and Trade Names

The Company uses the name "NEXTLINK" as its primary business name . In July 1995, the Company
filed for federal trademark protection of this name and received its notice of allowance from the U .S . Patent
and Trademark Office (the "PTO") on July 1, 1997 . In addition, the Company has received a notice of
allowance from the PTO of its distinctive floating "X" and related marks as protected trademarks under
federal law . The Company from time to time receives requests to consider licensing certain patents held by
third parties that may have bearing on its IVR and virtual communications center services . The Company
considers such requests on their merits, but has not to date entered into any such license agreements .

Glossary

Addressable business lines-In accordance with industry practice, the Company includes in its
calculation of actual and targeted addressable business lines all business lines currently in active use through
any service provider in each market area in which the Company has or plans to build a network .

CAP (competitive access provider) - A company that provides its customers with an alternative to the
ILEC for local private line and special access telecommunications services.

Central offices -The switching centers or central switching facilities of the LECs.

CLEC (competitive local exchange carrier) - A company providing local telephone services in competi-
tion with the ILEC.
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Co-carrier staiuso regulatory scheme under which the ILECrequired to integrate new, competing
providers of local exchange service . such as the Company, into the systems of traffic exchange, inter-carrier
compensation, and other inter-carrier relationships that already exist among ILECs in most jurisdictions .

Collocation -The ability of a CLEC such as the Company to connect its network to the ILECs' central
offices . Physical collocation occurs when a CLEC places its network connection equipment inside the ILEC's
central offices . Virtual collocation is an alternative to physical collocation pursuant to which the ILEC permits
a CLEC to connect its network to the ILEC's central offices on comparable terms, even though the CLEC's
network connection equipment is not physically located inside the central offices .

Dark fiber-Unused fiber through which no light is transmitted . Dark fiber is provided with the
customer expected to supply the required electronics and signals .

Dedicated-Telecommunications lines dedicated or reserved for use by particular customers and
charged on a flat, usually monthly, basis .

DS-0, DS-1, DS-3-The standard circuit capacity classifications . Each of these transmission services can
be provided using the same type of fiber optic cable, but offer different bandwidth (that is, capacity),
depending upon the individual needs of the end user. A DS-0 is a dedicated circuit that is considered to meet
the requirements of usual business communications, with transmission capacity of up to 64 kilobits of
bandwidth per second (that is, a voice grade equivalent circuit) . This service offers a basic low capacity
dedicated digital line for connecting telephones, fax machines, personal computers and other telecommunica-
tions equipment . A DS-1 is a high speed digital circuit typically linking high volume customer locations to
long distance carriers or other customer locations . Typically utilized for voice transmissions as well as the
interconnection of LANs. DS-1 service accommodates transmission speeds of up to 1 .544 megabits per
second, which is the equivalent of 24 voice grade equivalent circuits . DS-3 service provides a very high
capacity digital circuit with transmission capacity of 45 megabits per second, which is equivalent to 28 DS-1
circuits or 672 voice grade equivalent circuits . This is a digital service used by long distance carriers for central
office connections and by some large commercial users to link multiple sites .

	

-

FCC-The United States Federal Communications Commission .

FDDI IJiher dirtribttted data interface) -Based on fiber optics, FDDI is a 100 megabit per second local
area network technology used to connect computers . printers, and workstations at very high speeds . FDDI is
also used as backbone technology to interconnect other LANs.

Fiber mile-The number of route miles installed (excluding pending installations) along a telecommu-
nications path multiplied by the number of fibers along that path . See the definition of "route mile" below,

ILEC (incumbent local exchange carrier) - A company that was providing local exchange service prior
to the entr) of the CLECs.

Local Exchange-A geographic area determined by the appropriate state regulatory authority in «hich
calls generally are transmitted without toll charges to the calling or called party .

Line-An electrical path between an ILEC central office and a subscriber .

Lon, distance carriers (inierexchange carriers) - Long distance carriers provide services between local
exchanges on an interstate or intrastate basis . A long distance carrier may offer services over its own or another
carrier's facilities .

Number Portability-The abiliq of an end user to change local exchange carriers while retaining the
same telephone number.

POPS (points of presence)-Locations where a long distance carrier has installed transmission
equipment in a service area that serves as, or relays calls to, a network switching center of that long distance
carrier .

PUC (public mili *v contntission) - A state regulatory body, established in most states, which regulates
utilities . including telephone companies, providing intrastate services .
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Private line -A disted telecommunications connection bet%veerTend user locations .

Reciprocal compensation -The compensation paid to and from a new, competitive local exchange carrier
and the ILEC for termination of a local call on each other's networks .

Route mile-The number of miles of the telecommunications path in which the Company-owned or
leased fiber optic cables are installed .

Special access services-The lease of private, dedicated telecommunications lines or "circuits" along the
network of an ILEC or a CAP, which lines or circuits run to or from the long distance carrier POPS. Examples
of special access services are telecommunications lines running between POPS of a single long distance carrier,
from one long distance carrier POP to the POP of another long distance carrier or from an end user to a long
distance carrier POP.

Switch -A device that opens or closes circuits or selects the paths or circuits to be used for transmission
of information. Switching is a process of interconnecting circuits to form a transmission path between users.

Switched services-Transmission of switched calls through the local switched network.

Item 2. Description of Properties

The Company owns or leases, in its operating territories, telephone property which includes : fiber optic
backbone and distribution network facilities ; point-to-point distribution capacity: central office switching
equipment; connecting lines between customers' premises and the central offices ; and customer premise
equipment .

The fiber optic backbone and distribution network and connecting lines include aerial and underground
cable, conduit, and poles and wires . These facilities are located on public streets and highways or on privately
owned land . The Company has permission to use these lands pursuant to consent or lease, permit, easement,
or other agreements . The central office switching equipment includes electronic switches and peripheral
equipment.

The Company and its subsidiaries lease facilities for their administrative and sales offices, network nodes
and warehouse space. The various leases expire in years ranging from 1998 to 2028 . Most have renewal
options. Additional office space and equipment rooms will be leased as the Company's operations and
networks are expanded and as new networks are constructed.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not currently a party to any legal proceedings, other than regulatory and other
proceedings that are in the normal course of its business .

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended December 31, 1997 .

Market Information

PART IT

Item 5. Afarket for Registrants' Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company's Class A Common Stock began trading on the Nasdaq National Market on Septem-
ber 26. 1997, under the symbol "NXLK". Prior to that date, the Company's Class A Common Stock was not
publicly traded . The following table shows, for the periods indicated, the high and low- bid prices for the
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Company's Class A Common Stock as reported by the Nasdaq National Market tier of The Nasdaq Stock
Market .

There is no public trading market for the Company's Class B Common Stock or NEXTLINK Capital's
common equity .

As of March 6, 1998, the approximate number of shareholders of record of the Company's Class A and
Class B Common Stock was 218 and 15, respectively. The Company is the sole holder of record of
NEXTLINK Capital's Common Stock.

Use of Proceeds

High Low

1997 :
Third Quarter (since September 26, 1997) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

525.50

	

$23.13
Fourth Quarter . 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

527.75

	

$19.50

The Company filed a registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-32001) which became effective
on September 26, 1997, whereby 15.200,000 shares of Class A Common Stock , $0.02 par value per share,
were sold in an initial public offering at a price of $ 17 per share . Of the 15,200,000 shares of Class A Common
Stock sold, 12,000,000 shares were sold by the Company and 3,200,000 shares were sold by a selling
shareholder. The Company did not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling
shareholder. In addition, the underwriters of the 1PO, led by Salomon Smith Barney, exercised an option to
purchase 2,280,000 additional shares of Class A Common Stock at the same price per share . Net proceeds to
the Company from the 1PO totaled approximately 5226.8 million, after deducting underwriting discounts,
advisor fees and expenses aggregating approximately 516.0 million . The Company intends to use substantially
all of the net proceeds from the IPO for expenditures relating to the expansion of existing networks and
services, the development and acquisition of new networks and services and the funding of operating losses and
working capital . None of the net proceeds from the IPO had been used by the Company as of December 31,
1997 .

The Company filed a registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-32003) which became effective
on September 26, 1997, whereby the Company sold 5400 million aggregate principal amount of 9 51 '#%6 Senior
Notes due 2007 ("95,496 Senior Notes") . The offering was led by Salomon Smith Barney . Net proceeds from
the sale of the 9%'s% Senior Notes totaled approximately 5388.5 million, after deducting issuance costs
aggregating approximately 511'.5 million . relating to undenvriting discounts . advisory fees and expenses . The
use of proceeds from the debt offering are substantially the same as the Company's IPO . None of the net
proceeds from the sale of 9 5/s% Senior Notes had been used by the Company as of December 31, 1997 .

Ditidends

Neither the Company nor NEXTLINK Capital have declared a cash dividend on any of their respective
equity securities . Covenants in the indentures pursuant to which the Company's and NEXTLINK Capital's
Senior Notes have been issued restrict the ability of the Company to pay cash dividends on its capital stock .

Sales of Unregistered Securities

None .

Item 6. Afanagentent's Discussion and Anaij, sis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Oven iew

Since its inception in 1994, the Company has executed a strategy of developing fiber optic nervorks and
acquiring related telecommunications businesses . Over this period, the Company has pursued this strategy by
constructing, acquiring, leasing fibers or capacity on, and entering into agreements to acquire telecommunica-
tions networks .
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The table provides selected key operational data :

The Company's primary focus is providing switched local and long distance and enhanced communica-
tions services to small and medium-sized commercial end user customers . The Company plans to acquire,
build or develop networks in new areas . expand its current networks, and also explore the acquisition or
licensing of additional enhanced communications services and other telecommunications service providers .
These efforts should allow the Company to increase its presence in the marketplace, and facilitate providing a
single source solution for the telecommunications needs of its customers.

As of December 31.
1997 1996

(1) The operating data include the statistics of the Las Vegas network, which the Company manages and in
which the Company has a 40'90 membership interest .

(2) Route miles refers to the number of miles of the telecommunications path in which the Company-owned
or leased fiber optic cables are installed .

Fiber miles refers to the number of route miles installed along a telecommunications path, multiplied by
the Company's estimate of the number of fibers along that path .

(4) Represents buildings physically connected to the Company's networks, excluding those connected by
unbundled incumbent local exchange (ILEC) facilities .

(5) Represents buildings connected to the Company's networks through leased or unbundled ILEC facilities .

(6) Represents the number of access lines in service, including those lines which are provided through resale
of Centrex services, for which the Company is billing services .

The Company builds its networks to encompass the significant business concentrations in each area it
serves, focusing on direct connections to end user locations and ILEC central offices . The Company employs a
uniform technology platform for each of its local exchange networks that is based on the Nortel DMS 500
digital local and long distance combination switching platform and associated distribution technology. As of
January 31, 1998, the Company had 12 operational Nortek DMS 500 switches, including one switch in its
NEXTLAB facility, and currently plans to install three additional switches by the end of the second quarter of
1998 . NEXTLAB is a fully functional model of one of the Company's networks, which serves as a testing
facility for switch software and the Company's products and services and will serve as the Company's network
operations control center.

The Company also provides enhanced communications services including interactive voice response
("IVR") services, which provide an interface between the Company's clients and their customers for a variety
of applications . Historically, the Company has derived a substantial proportion of its revenues from these IVR
services . As local and long distance revenues are expected to grow more rapidly than revenues for the
Company's enhanced communications services, the Company anticipates that, over the next five years, local
and long distance revenues will account for a significantly higher percentage of total revenues.

The development of the Company's businesses and the construction, acquisition and expansion of its
networks require significant expenditures, a substantial portion of which are incurred before the realization of
revenues . These expenditures, together with the associated early operating expenses, result in negative cash
flow until an adequate customer base is established . However, as the customer base grows, the Company
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Operating data (1) :
Route miles(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,897 1,080
Fiber miles(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 133,224 66,046
On-net buildings connected(4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 513 403
Off-set buildings connected(5) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3.504 -
Switches installed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 9
Access lines in service(6) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . : . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50,131 8,511
Employees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,327 568



expects that incremental revenues can be generated with decreasing incremental operating expenses, which
may provide positive contributions to cash flow . The Company has made the strategic decision to build high
capacity networks with broad market coverage, which initially increases its level of capital expenditures and
operating losses . The Company believes that over the long term this will enhance the Company's financial
performance by increasing the traffic flow over the Company's networks. The Company has recently entered
into leased dark fiber and fiber capacity arrangements, which allow the Company, by installing one or more
switches and related electronics, to enter a market prior to completing construction of its own fiber optic
network .

Prior to January 31, 1997, the Company was a limited liability company that was classified and taxed as a
partnership for federal and state income tax purposes. As of January 31, 1997, the Company was subject to
federal and state income tax.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 1997 Compared with Year Ended Decentber 31, 1996

Revenue increased 124% to $57.6 million in 1997 from $25.7 million in the same period in 1996 . The
increase was primarily due to 45% growth in the Company's local and long distance services (both switched
and resale), dedicated services and enhanced communications services, as well as due to recording a full yeais
revenue from ITC, a switch-based long distance reseller acquired in December 1996 . To a lesser extent, the
acquisitions of Start Technologies Corporation ("Start") and Chadwick Telecommunications Corporation
("Chadwick") in the fourth quarter of 1997 also contributed to the increase in revenue. Revenues reported in
1997 included 538.9 million derived from local and long distance, competitive access, dedicated line services
and shared tenant services and 518.7 million derived from enhanced communications services, primarily 1VR.
The Company's I1'R subsidiary contributed 2748 and 52% of the Company's revenues during 1997 and 1996,
respectively . The revenues generated by this subsidiary have tended to fluctuate on a quarter to quarter basis
as the revenues are generally event driven and seasonal in nature .

The Company began offering switched local and long distance services in seven of its markets in
July 1996 . and in 18 additional markets during 1997 . In addition, the Company has offered dedicated line
services since January 1995 and has resold Centres access lines since April 1995 . The Company increased its
quarterly customer access line installation rate from 1,604 in the fourth quarter of 1996 to 19,187 during the
fourth quarter of 1997 . As of December 31 . 1997, the Company had 50,131 access lines in service, compared
to 8,511 us of December 31, 1996 . Revenues from the provision of such services are expected to continue to
increase as a component of total revenues over future periods. Access lines in service includes those lines
which are provided through resale of Centrcx services, the number of which is decreasing over time as the
Company converts those customers to its own network.

Operating expenses consist of costs directly related to providing facilities-based network and enhanced
communications services and also include salaries and benefits and related costs of operations and engineering
personnel . Operating expenses increased 115% in 1997 to $54.0 million, an increase of $28.9 million over the
same period in 1996. These increases were attributed to factors that include an increase in network costs
related to the provision of increased volumes of local, long distance and enhanced communications services
and the Company's increase in employees as well as other related costs primarily to expand the Company's
switched local and long distance service businesses in its existing and planned markets . Additionally, the
effects of the ITC acquisition in December 1996 and the two acquisitions in the fourth quarter of 1997 further
resulted in an increase in 1997 operating expenses over those of the prior year.

Selling . general and administrative expenses ("SG&A") include salaries and related personnel costs,
facilities expenses, sales and marketing, consulting and legal fees and equity in loss of affiliates . SG&A
increased 142% for the year ended December 31, 1997 as compared to the corresponding period in 1996 . The
increase was primarily due to the Company's increase in employees and other costs associated with the
expansion of the Company's switched local and long distance service businesses in its existing and planned
markets. as well as the ITC acquisition .
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Deferred compensation expense was recorded in connection with the Company's Equity Option Plan until
April 1997, and in connection with the Company's Stock Option Plan (the "Plan"), which replaced the
Equity Option Plan, subsequent to April 1997 . The stock options granted under the Equity Option Plan were
considered compensatory and were accounted for on a basis similar to that for stock appreciation rights . All
options outstanding under the Equity Option Plan were regranted under the new Plan with terms and
conditions substantially the same as under the Equity Option Plan . As such, the Company continues to record
deferred compensation expense for those compensatory stock options issued, as well as for compensatory stock
options issued subsequent to the Plan conversion date. Compensation expense is recognized over the vesting
periods based on the excess of the fair value of the stock options at the date of grant over the exercise price.

Depreciation expense increased primarily due to placement in service of additional telecommunications
network assets, including switches, fiber optic cable, network electronics and related equipment . Amortization
of intangible assets increased primarily as a result of the ITC acquisition in December 1996, as well as the
acquisitions of Linkatel, Start and Chadwick in 1997 .

	

,

Interest expense increased 76% in 1997 over the prior year due to an increase in the Company's average
outstanding indebtedness over the respective periods, primarily relating to the 12 1/2% and 9%% Senior Notes
issued in April 1996 and October 1997, respectively . See "-Liquidity and Capital Resources." Pursuant to
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No . 34, the Company capitalizes a portion of its interest costs
as part of the construction cost of its communications networks . Capitalized interest during 1997 totaled
$1 .8 million. Interest income results from investment of excess cash and certain securities that have been
pledged as collateral for interest payments on the 12~fi% Senior Notes. The increase in interest income in 1997
over 1996 corresponded to the increase in the Company's average outstanding cash balances .

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The competitive local telecommunications service business is a capital intensne business . The Com-

pany's existing operations have required and will continue to require substantial capital investment for the
acquisition and installation of fiber, electronics and related equipment in order to provide switched services in
the Company's networks and the funding of operating losses during the start-up phase of each market . In
addition, the Company's strategic plan calls for expansion into additional market areas . Such expansion will
require significant additional capital for. potential acquisitions of businesses or assets ; design, development and
construction of new networks; and the funding of operating losses during the start-up phase of each market .
During 1997, the Company used $94.5 million in cash for operating activities, compared to 540.6 million in
1996 . The increase was primarily due to a substantial increase in the Company's activities associated with the
development and initiation of switched local and long distance services . In addition, during 1997, the
Company invested an additional $210.5 million in cash in property and equipment, acquisitions of telecommu-
nications businesses and equity investments in telecommunications businesses . During 1996, the Company
invested $78.0 million in cash in property and equipment, acquisitions of telecommunications assets and
businesses and equity investments in telecommunications businesses .

In February 1998, the Company signed a definitive agreement with Metromedia Fiber Network for
exclusive rights to multiple fibers and innerducts for 20 years, with two 10 year renewals . The route covered by
the agreement extends over 650 route miles from Manhattan to White Plains (NY), to Stamford (CT), to
Newark (NJ) and south from Manhattan through Philadelphia, Wilmington (DE), Baltimore, and to
Washington (DC) . The route will offer frequent splice points within metropolitan areas and splice points at
least every 10,000 feet on routes between metropolitan areas, as well as provide access to ILEC central and
tandem switching offices . The Company will pay $92.0 million in cash for the transaction, of which
$80.3 million will be placed into escrow, to be released as segments of the route are constructed and delivered
to the Company.

In January 1998, the Company and Nextel formed NEXTBAND, ajoint venture which is owned 50% by
the Company and 50% by Nextei . On January 20, 1998, NEXTBAND filed an application with the FCC for
which it paid a $50.0 million refundable deposit to participate in the FCC's LMDS auction which began on
February 18, 1998 . Of the deposit amount, $25.0 million was contributed by the Company. LMDS is a fixed
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broadband point-to-multipoint service which the FCC and industry analysts anticipate will be used for the
deployment of wireless local loop, high-speed data transfer and video broadcasting services . Two licenses will
be awarded in each of 493 BTAs when the auction is concluded . Although the number of licenses that may be
awarded to NEXTBAND is limited by the amount of the deposit, NEXTBAND has applied for and is eligible
to bid on any of the markets being auctioned for the block A license (1,150 MHz of spectrum) and the block
B license (150 MHz of spectrum) .

The Company is exploring LMDS for two reasons. Depending upon the bidding and deployment costs,
LMDS may offer an economically efficient means to supplement the Company's fiber network build-out in
some localities . In addition, a wireless local loop - alternative may create competitive pressure on high
unbundled loop costs in certain areas . There can be no assurance that NEXTBAND's participation in the
auction will result in the purchase of any LMDS licenses or that LMDS spectrum for wireless connectivity
will provide a cost-effective and efficiently engineered means to connect to end user locations . If
NEXTLINX's bids are successful, the purchase price of the licenses and the costs of building out any such
wireless systems could be substantial,

In November 1997, the Company acquired all outstanding shares of Start, a shared tenant services
provider serving commercial buildings in Dallas, Austin and Corpus Christi, Texas and Phoenix, Arizona.
Services offered by Start include local and long distance services, Internet access and customer premise
equipment management . Start currently provides services under long term contracts to 600 corporate
customers, or approximately 13,000 end users. The Company paid consideration for the transaction consisting
of $20.0 million in cash, 441,336 shares of Class A common stock and the assumption of approximately
S5.3 million of liabilities, the majority of which were repaid .

In October 1997, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of Chadwick, a switch-based long
distance reseller in central Pennsylvania . through a merger transaction between Chadwick and a wholly owned
subsidiary of NEXTLINK. Chadwick serves approximately 11 .500 customers throughout the central and
eastern Pennsylvania regions. The Company issued consideration for the transaction consisting Or a promissory
note payable in the aggregate principal amount of 55.0 million (which was repaid in full in January 1998),
257,151 shares of Class A Common Stock and the repayment of long term debt and other liabilities totaling
$6.6 million . The merger agreement also provides for additional payments of up to a maximum of 192,863
shares of Class A Common Stock over a two year period, with these payments being contingent upon the
acquired operation achieving specified performance goals .

In September 1997, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to acquire certain telecommunica-
tions assets of Unicorn Thermal Technologies, Inc . ("UT-), including two existing route miles of network
plus 13 miles of conduit in downtown Chicago. The Company also has the right to participate in the ongoing
expansion of UTT's network in Chicago. The existing network currently provides connectivity to 28 buildings.
The Company agreed to pay $2.5 million in cash, plus up to an additional $560,000 for the acquisition of
certain additional telecommunications facilities . The Company will also be required to pay certain additional
consideration to UTT for a portion of the network expansion costs, up to S3.4 million in cash plus the issuance
of up to 60,022 shares of Class A Common Stock.

In June 1997, the Company entered into an eight year exclusive agreement, with an option to renew for
five additional years, with a company that has excess fiber capacity in each of Atlanta, Chicago, New York
City, Newark (NJ) and Philadelphia which it agreed to make available to the Company in each of those
markets at a substantial discount to the wholesale rates charged by other vendors of capacity. In addition to
the capacity arrangement described above, the Company also has entered into a 20-year lease of capacity over
an existing 47-mile fiber network in Now York City, which extends from the Wall Street area north to
midtown Manhattan . In June 1997, the Company paid $11 million in full satisfaction of its obligations under
this lease, $6 million of which was placed in escrow pending completion of certain building connections by the
lessor. As of December 31, 1997, $4.1 million remained in escrow. These arrangements will allow the
Company to accelerate its entry into each of these markets by enabling the Company to avoid a significant
portion of the infrastructure development and construction time that would otherwise be required to launch
switched local and long distance services in these markets . Although these agreements have reduced the initial
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capital expenditures necessary to enter these markets, the Company has not, as a result, reduced its overall
planned capital expenditures through 1999 .

In June 1997, the Company also executed a definitive agreement to acquire an existing fiber optic
network in downtown Philadelphia in order to extend its existing network in Pennsylvania. The acquisition is
subject to regulatory and other consents and is anticipated to be consummated by the end of the second
quarter in 1998 . During the interim period prior to closing, the Company is operating under a 36 fiber capacity
agreement with the seller.

On February 4, 1997, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Linkatel,
a Los Angeles-based competitive access telecommunications provider. At the time of acquisition, Linkatel
operated an 80 mile fiber optic telecommunications network covering several markets in the Orange and Los
Angeles county areas. The total purchase price of $42.5 million consisted of a cash payment of $36.1 million
(including the release of $6.0 million which was deposited into escrow during 1996) plus the repayment of
debt of $5.6 million and the assumption of net liabilities totaling $0.8 million.

In January 1997, the Company obtained rights-of-way to expand its existing Salt Lake City network into
Provo and Orem, Utah . The Company has completed the expansion of this network to Provo and Orem and
began providing switched local and long distance services in Provo and Orem in September 1997 .

Prior to April 1996, the Company funded its expenditures with approximately $55 .0 million of cash equity
investments from two entities that are controlled by Craig O. McCaw. On April 25, 1996, the Company raised
gross proceeds of $350.0 million through the issuance of 12 1/2% Senior Notes due April 15, 2006 ("1216%
Senior Notes") . The Company used $117.7 million of the gross proceeds to purchase and hold in escrow U.S.
government securities . representing funds sufficient to provide for payment in full of interest on the 126%
Senior Notes through April 15, 1999, and used an additional $32.2 million to repay certain advances and
accrued interest from Eagle River, a company majority-owned and controlled by Mr. McCaw. In addition, the
Company incurred costs of $9.8 million in connection with the financing . Interest payments on the 12'/2%
Senior Notes are due semi-annually,

On January 31, 1997, the Company completed the sale of 5285 million aggregate liquidation preference
of 14% senior exchangeable redeemable preferred shares ("Preferred Shares") which, after deducting
issuance costs, resulted in net proceeds to the Company of approximately $274 million. The Preferred Shares
accrue dividends at the rate of 14% per annum . On or before February I, 2002, dividends may, at the option of
the Company, be paid in cash or by issuing additional Preferred Shares with an aggregate liquidation
preference equal to the amount of such dividends . After February 1, 2002, dividends must be paid in cash . As
of December 31, 1997, the Company had issued an additional 622,031 shares of Preferred Shares in
satisfaction of the first three quarterly dividends.

Since inception and through December 1996, the Company has also issued Class A Units valued at
$15.5 million primarily for the acquisition of certain telecommunications assets and businesses, which Units
were converted to shares or Class B Common Stock of the Company on January 31, 1997 .

On October 1 . 1997, the Company completed an initial public offering ("IPO") of 12,000,000 shares of
Class A Common Stock at a price of $17 per share . In addition, the underwriters of the IPO exercised an
option to purchase 2,280,000 additional shares of Class A Common Stock at the same price per share . Gross
proceeds from the IPO totaled $242.8 million, and proceeds net of underwriting discounts, advisory fees and
estimated expenses aggregated approximately $226.8 million . Concurrently with the IPO, the Company sold
$400 million in aggregate principal amount of 9Vs% Senior Notes due 2007, which, after deducting estimated
issue costs, resulted in net proceeds to the Company of approximately $388.5 million. Interest payments on the
9%% Senior Notes are due semi-annually .

On March 3, 1998, the Company completed the sale of $335 million in aggregate principal amount of 9%
Senior Notes due 2008 ("9% Senior Notes"), Proceeds from the sale, net of discounts, underwriting
commissions, advisory fees and expenses, totaled approximately $326.5 million . Interest payments on the 9%
Senior Notes are due semi-annually, beginning September 1998.
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The Company will use the remaining proceeds from the sale or Class A Common Stock. 95A% Senior
Notes and 9% Senior Notes and existing unrestricted cash balanc=s for expenditures relating to the
construction . acquisition and operation of telecommunications networks and service providers and the offering
of telecommunications services in those areas where the Company currently operates or intends to operate .
Expenditures for the construction and operation of networks include (i) the purchase and installation of
switches and related electronics in existing networks and in networks to be constructed or acquired in new or
adjacent markets; (ii) the purchase and installation of fiber optic cable and electronics to expand existing
networks and develop new networks, including the connection of new buildings; (iii) spectrum that may be
purchased during the LMDS auction that is currently ongoing; (iv) the development of its comprehensive
information technology platform and (v) the funding of operating losses and working capital. The Company
may also acquire or invest in businesses that consist of existing networks or companies engaged in businesses
similar to those engaged in by the Company and its subsidiaries or other complementary businesses.

As of December 31, 1997, the Company had unrestricted cash and investments of $742.4 million and
S 1,068.9 million on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the sale of the 9% Senior Notes. The Company's
current plan contemplates an aggressive expansion into a number of new markets throughout the United
States . The Company may pursue various alternatives for achieving its growth strategy, including : additional
network construction; additional leases of network capacity from third party providers; acquisitions of existing
networks; and spectrum that may be purchased during the LMDS auction that is currently ongoing and
associated facilities construction and deployment if any spectrum is purchased . The Company also anticipates
that a substantial amount of additional capital expenditures will be made in 1999 and beyond. The funding of
these capital expenditures is expected to be provided by existing cash balances, future vendor and/or credit
facilities, future public or private sales of debt securities, future sales of public or private capital stock and joint
ventures. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will be successful in raising sufficient
additional capital on terms that it will consider acceptable or that the Company's operations will produce
positive consolidated cash flow in sufficient amounts to meet its interest and dividend obligations on
outstanding securities . Failure to raise and generate sufficient funds may require the Company to delay or
abandon sonic of its planned future expansion or expenditures, which could have a material adverse effect on
the Company's growth and its ability to compete in the telecommunications services industry .

In addition, the Company's operating flexibility with respect to certain business matters is, and will
continue to be, limited by covenants associated with the 121h% Senior Notes, the 9s/s% Senior Notes and the
9% Senior Notes. Among other things, these covenants limit the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to
incur additional indebtedness, create liens upon assets, apply the proceeds from the disposal of assets, make
dividend payments and other distributions on capital stock and redeem capital stock . In addition, the terms of
the Preferred Shares contain certain covenants that may limit the Company's operating flexibility with respect
to the incurrence of indebtedness and issuance of additional preferred shares . There can be no assurance that
such covenants will not adversely affect the Company's ability to finance its future operations or capital needs
or to engage in other business activities that may be in the interest of the Company. The Company was in
compliance with all covenants associated with the 121/2% Senior Notes, the 93%% Senior Notes and the
Preferred Shares as of December 31, 1997 .

Impact of Year 2000
Certain of the Company's older computer systems and applications were written to define a given year

with abbreviated dates using the last two digits in a year rather than the entire four digits . As a result, those
systems and applications have time-sensitive software that recognize an abbreviated year "00" as the year
1900 rather than the year 2000. This could cause a system failure or miscalculations resulting in disruptions of
operations including, among other things, a temporary inability to process transactions, send invoices or engage
in other normal business activities .

The Company has received positive confirmation from its vendor that the Company's Nortel DAIS 500
switches and related telecommunications equipment are Year 2000 compliant. The Company is currently
assessing the extent of replacements or modifications necessary to certain of its older computer systems and
applications so that such systems and applications will properly utilize dates beyond December 31, 1999 . The
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Company believes that the impact of upgrading or modifying existing software and converting to new software
(the "Year 2000 Project") will not be material to the Company operations or financial position . Costs incurred
in connection with the Year 2000 project will be expensed as incurred unless new software is purchased, in
which case such costs will be capitalized . The Company has not incurred significant Year 2000 project costs to
date . The Company plans to complete the Year 2000 project no later than December 31, 1998 .

Outlook: Issues and Uncertainties

The Company does not provide forecasts of future financial performance. This Report, however, does
contain statements that are not historical facts and are forward-looking. Actual events or results may differ
materially from events or results indicated, whether expressed or implied . Although the Company's
management is optimistic about the Company's long-term prospects, the following issues and uncertainties,
among others, should be considered in evaluating its outlook.

Negative Cash Flow and Operating Losses, Lintited History of Operations

The development of the Company's businesses and the installation and expansion of its networks require
significant expenditures, a substantial portion of which must be made before any revenues may be realized .
Certain of the expenditures are expensed as incurred, while certain other expenditures are capitalized . These
expenditures, together with the associated early operating expenses, result in negative cash flow and operating
losses until an adequate revenue base is established . There can be no assurance that an adequate revenue base
will be established for any of the Company's networks. The Company's operations have resulted in net losses
of $12.7 million, $71 .1 million and $129.0 million for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1996 and 1997,
respectively . The Company will continue to incur significant expenditures in the future in connection with the
acquisition, development and expansion of its networks, services and customer base . There can be no
assurance that the Company will achieve or sustain profitability or generate positive cash flow in the future .

The Company was formed in September 1994. A significant . but declining. portion of the Company's
revenue for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1996 and 1997, was derived from the operations of the
Company's IVR enhanced service offering, which operations were acquired by the Company in September
1995 . Prospective investors, therefore, have limited historical financial information upon which to base an
evaluation of the Company's performance in the business which will be its principal focus in the future. The
Company has only recently commenced operations as a single source service provider of telecommunications
services . Given the Company's limited operating history, there can be no assurance that it twill be able to
complete successfully in the telecommunications business and to generate positive cash flow in the future .

Significant Future Capital Requirements, Substantial Indebtedness

Expansion of the Company's existing networks and services and the development and acquisition of new
networks and services will require significant capital expenditures . The Company will also continue to evaluate
additional revenue opportunities in each of its markets and, as and when attractive additional opportunities
develop, the Company plans to make capital investments in its networks that might be required to pursue such
opportunities . The Company expects to meet its additional capital needs with the proceeds from credit
facilities and other borrowings, the proceeds from public or private sales of debt securities, the sale or issuance
of equity securities and through joint ventures . There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will be
successful in raising sufficient additional capital on terms that it will consider acceptable or that the
Company's operations will produce positive cash flow in sufficient amounts to service its debt and to pay cash
dividends on the 1490 Preferred Shares . Failure to raise and generate sufficient funds may require the
Company to delay or abandon some of its planned future expansion or expenditures, which could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's growth and its ability to compete in the telecommunications services
industry . See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations-
Liquidity and Capital Resources."

The Company expects to incur substantial additional indebtedness (including secured indebtedness)
during the next few years to finance the acquisition, construction and expansion of networks, the potential
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acquisition of telecommunications companies, the possible acquisition of LMDS spectrum and the construc-
tion and deployment of associated facilities, if such spectrum is purchased, the purchase of additional
switches, the offering of switched local and long distance services, the introduction of other new service
offerings and the development and implementation of a comprehensive information technology platform . The
Indenture does not limit the amount the Company may invest in Restricted Subsidiaries or certain joint
ventures engaged in one or more Telecommunications Businesses (including the joint venture through which
the Company is participating in the LMDS auction) or the amount of Debt the Company may incur to fund
investments in Restricted Subsidiaries or such joint ventures . As of December 31, 1997, after giving pro forma
effect to the Offering, the amount of total consolidated liabilities of the Company would have been
approximately $1,164.7 million .

The future funding requirements discussed above are based on the Company's current estimates . There
can be no assurance that actual expenditures and funding requirements will not be significantly higher or
lower.

Risk Associated with Implementation of Growth Strategy

The expansion and development of the Company's operations (including the construction and acquisition
of additional networks) will depend on, among other things, the Company's ability to assess markets, identify,
finance and complete suitable acquisitions, design fiber optic network backbone routes, install fiber optic cable
and facilities, including switches, and obtain rights-of-way, building access rights and any required government
authorizations, franchises and permits, all in a timely manner, at reasonable costs and on satisfactory terms
and conditions . In addition, the Company has experienced rapid growth since its inception, and the Company
believes that sustained grototh places a strain on operational, human and financial resources. In order to
manage its growth . NEXTLINK must continue to improve its operating and administrative systems including
the continued development of effective systems relating to ordering. provisioning and billing for telecommuni-
cations services . NEXTLINK must also continue to attract and retain qualified managerial, professional and
technical personnel . As a result, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to implement and
manage successfully its grototh strategy . The Company's grototh strategy also involves the following risks :

Qualified Personnel.

	

NEXTLINK believes that a critical component for its success will be the attraction
and retention of qualified managerial, professional and technical personnel . During 1997 the Company has
experienced significant competition in the attraction and retention of personnel that possess the skill sets that
the Company is seeking . Although the Company has been successful in attracting and retaining qualified
personnel, there can be no assurance that NEXTLINK will not experience a shortage of qualified personnel in
the future .

Switch and Equipment Installation. An essential element of the Company's current strategy is the
provision of switched local service . There can be no assurance that the installation of the required switches,
fiber optic cable and associated electronics necessary to implement the Company's business plan will continue
to be completed on time or that, during the testing of these switches and related equipment, the Company will
not experience technological problems that cannot be resolved . The failure of the Company to install and
operate successfully additional switches and other network equipment could have a material adverse effect
upon the Company's ability to enter additional markets as a single source provider of telecommunications
services.

Interconnection Agreements. The Company has agreements or is currently negotiating agreements for
the interconnection of its networks with the networks of the ILEC covering each market in which
NEXTLINK either has or is constructing a network. NEXTLINK may be required to negotiate new, or
renegotiate existing interconnection agreements as it enters new markets in the future. There can be no
assurance that the Company will successfully negotiate such other agreements for interconnection with the
ILEC or renewals of existing interconnection agreements. The failure to negotiate required interconnection
agreements could have a material adverse effect upon the Company's ability to enter rapidly the telecommuni-
cations market as a single source provider of telecommunications services.
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Ordering, Provisioning and Billing. The Company has developed processes and procedures and is
working with external vendors, including the ILECs, in the implementation of customer orders for services,
the provisioning, installation and delivery of such services and monthly billing for those services . In connection
with its development of a comprehensive information technology platform, the Company is developing and
implementing automated internal systems for processing customer orders and provisioning . Billing is provided
by unaffiliated third-party vendors . The failure to develop effective internal processes and systems for these
service elements or the failure of the Company's current vendors or the ILECs to deliver effectively ordering,
provisioning (including establishing sufficient capacity and facilities on the ILEC's networks to service the
Company) and billing services could have a material adverse effect upon the Company's ability to achieve its
growth strategy.

Products and Services.

	

The Company expects to continue to enhance its systems in order to offer its
customers switched local services and other enhanced products and services in all of its networks as quickly as
practicable and as permitted by applicable regulations. The Company believes its ability to offer, market and
sell these additional products and services will be important to the Company's ability to meet its long-term
strategic growth objectives, but is dependent on the Company's ability to obtain the needed capital, additional
favorable regulatory developments and the acceptance of such products and services by the Company's
customers. No assurance can be given that the Company will be able to obtain such capital or that such
developments or acceptance will occur.

Acquisitions. The Company intends to use the net proceeds of the Offering to expand its networks and
service offerings through internal developments and acquisitions, which could be material . Such acquisitions,
if made, could divert the resources and management time of the Company and would require integration with
the Company's existing networks and services . There can be no assurance that any such acquisitions will occur
or that any such acquisitions, if made, would be on terms favorable to the Company or would be successfully
integrated into the Company's operations .

Need To Obtain And Maintain Franchises, Perntits And Rights-Of-Way

In order to acquire and develop its networks the Company must obtain local franchises and other permits,
as well as rights to utilize underground conduit and aerial pole space and other rights-of-way and fiber capacity
from entities such as ILECs and other utilities, railroads, long distance companies, state highway authorities,
local governments and transit authorities . There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to
maintain its existing franchises, permits and rights or to obtain and maintain the other franchises, permits and
rights needed to implement its business plan on acceptable terms. Although the Company does not believe
that any of the existing arrangements will be canceled or will not be renewed as needed in the near future,
cancellation or non-renewal of certain of such arrangements could materially adversely affect the Company's
business in the affected metropolitan area . In addition, the failure to enter into and maintain any such required
arrangements for a particular network, including a network which is already under development, may affect
the Company's ability to acquire or develop that network. See "Business- Company Network Architecture."

Competition

In each of the markets served by the Company's networks, the Company competes principally with the
ILEC serving that area . ILECs arc established providers of local telephone services to all or virtually all
telephone subscribers within their respective service areas . ILECs also have long-standing relationships with
regulatory authorities at the federal and state levels . While recent FCC administrative decisions and initiatives
provide increased business opportunities to telecommunications providers such as the Company, they also
provide the ILECs with increased pricing flexibility for their private line and special access and switched
access services . In addition, with respect to competitive access services (as opposed to switched local
exchange services), the FCC recently proposed a rule that would provide for increased ILEC pricing flexibility
and deregulation for such access services either automatically or after certain competitive levels are reached .
If the ILECs are allowed by regulators to offer discounts to large customers through contract tariffs, engage in
aggressive volume and term discount pricing practices for their customers, and/or seek to charge competitors
excessive fees for interconnection to their networks, the income of competitors to the ILECs, including the
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Regulation
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Company, could be materially adversely affected . If future regulatory decisions afford the ILECs increased
access services, pricing flexibility or other regulatory relief, such decisions could also have a material adverse
effect on competitors to the ILEC, including the Company.

The Company also faces, and expects to continue to face, competition from other current and potential
market entrants, including long distance carriers seeking to enter, reenter or expand entry into the local
exchange market place such as AT&T Corp. ("AT&T"), MCI Communications Corporation ("MCI"),
Sprint Corporation ("Sprint") and WorIdCom, Inc . .("WorIdCom"), and from other CLECs, competitive
access providers ("CAPs"), cable television companies, electric utilities, microwave carriers, wireless
telephone system operators and private networks built by large end-users . In addition, a continuing trend
toward combinations and strategic alliances in the telecommunications industry could give rise to significant
new competitors . The Telecom Act includes provisions which impose certain regulatory requirements on all
local exchange carriers, including competitors such as the Company, while granting the FCC expanded
authority to reduce the level of regulation applicable to any or all telecommunications carriers, including
ILECs . The manner in which these provisions of the Telecom Act are implemented and enforced could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's ability to successfully compete against ILECs and other telecom-
munications service providers . The Company also competes with equipment vendors and installers, and
telecommunications management companies with respect to certain portions of its business. Many of the
Company's current and potential competitors have financial, personnel and other resources, including brand
name recognition, substantially greater than those of the Company, as well as other competitive advantages
over the Company .

The Company also competes with long distance carriers in the provision of long distance services .
Although the long distance market is dominated by four major competitors, AT&T, MCI, Sprint and
WorIdCom, hundreds of other companies also compete in the long distance marketplace .

The Company is subject to varying degrees of federal, state and local regulation . In each state in which
the Company desires to offer its services, the Company is required to obtain authorization from the
appropriate state commission . Although the Company has received such authorization for each of its
operational markets, there can be no' assurance that the Company will receive such authorization for markets
to be launched in the future. The Company is not currently subject to price cap or rate of return regulation,
nor is it currently required to obtain FCC authorization for the installation, acquisition or operation of its
network facilities . Further, the FCC has determined that non-dominant carriers, such as the Company and its
subsidiaries, are not required to file interstate tariffs for interstate access and domestic long distance service on
an ongoing basis . On February 13, 1997, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia
granted motions for a stay on the FCC detariffing order pending judicial review of that order. The result of this
stay is that carriers must continue to file tariffs for interstate long distance services . The FCC requires the
Company and its subsidiaries to file interstate tariffs on an ongoing basis for interstate and international inter-
exchange traffic . The Company's subsidiaries that provide or will provide intrastate services are also generally
subject to certification and tariff or price list filing requirements by state regulators . Although passage of the
Telecom Act should result in increased opportunities for companies that are competing with the ILECs, no
assurance can be given that changes in current or future regulations adopted by the FCC or state regulators or
other legislative or judicial initiatives relating to the telecommunications industry would not have a material
adverse effect on the Company. In addition, although the Telecom Act provides incentives to the ILECs that
are subsidiaries of Regional Bell Operating Companies ("RBOCs") to enter the long distance service market,
there can be no assurance that these ILECs will negotiate quickly with competitors such as the Company for
the required interconnection of the competitors networks with those of the ILEC. On July 2, 1997, SBC
Communications Inc. ("SBC") and its local exchange carrier subsidiaries filed a lawsuit in the United States
District Court for the Northern District of Texas challenging on Constitutional grounds the Telecom Act
restrictions applicable to the RBOCs only. The plaintiffs in the case seek both a declaratory judgment and an
injunction against the enforcement of the challenged provisions . See "Business- Regulatory Overview ."



On December 31, 1997, the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas issued a
decision holding that Sections 271 through 275, including the long distance entry provisions, of the Telecom
Act are unconstitutional because they violate the separation of powers principles and bill of attainder provision
of the U.S . Constitution . On February 11, 1998, the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Texas granted the CLECs request for a stay of the December 31, 1997 decision pending appeal to the United
States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit . That appeal is currently pending . If the stay is lifted, or if the
Fifth Circuit upholds the district court's ruling, then the RBOCs would be free to enter the long distance
market, providing additional competition to the Company's bundled service offering . In addition, the district
court's ruling would eliminate the long distance entry incentives under the Telecom Act that were designed to
promote interconnection between the ILEC and new competitors. The district court's decision has been
appealed by the U.S . government and a number of other intervenors .

On May 8, 1997, the FCC released an order establishing a significantly expanded federal telecommunica-
tions subsidy regime which both increase the size of existing subsidies and created new subsidy funds . In the
May 8 order, the FCC also announced that it will soon revise its rules for subsidizing service provided to
consumers in high cost areas. The Company intends to make all subsidy payments required by law . See
"Business-Regulatory Overview."

On July 18, 1997, the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit overturned many of the rules
the FCC had established pursuant to the Telecom Act governing the terms under which CLECs may, among
other things, interconnect with ILECs, resell ILEC services, lease unbundled ILEC network elements and
terminate traffic on ILEC networks . On October 14, 1997, the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth
Circuit vacated the FCC's rule prohibiting ILECs from separating unbundled network elements that are
already combined, except at the request of the CLECs. These eighth Circuit decisions substantially limit the
FCC's jurisdiction and expands the state regulators' jurisdiction to set and enforce rules governing the
development of local competition . As a result, it is more likely that the rules governing local competition will
vary substantially from state to state . Most states, however, have already begun to establish rules for local
competition that are consistent with the FCC rules overturned by the Eighth Circuit . If a patchwork of state
regulations were to develop, it could increase the Company's costs of regulatory compliance and could make
competitive entry in some markets more difficult and expensive than in others . See "Business - Regulatory
Overview ."

Dependence on Large Customers

To date the Company has derived a substantial proportion of its revenues from certain large customers of
its competitive access services and its IVR enhanced communication service offerings, the loss of one or more
of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's operating results . The Company's 10 largest
customers accounted for approximately 2596, 51% and 6696 of the Company's revenues in 1997, 1996 and
1995, respectively. The Company does not have long-term service contracts with most of these customers . The
Company will continue to be dependent upon a small number of customers for a substantial portion of its
revenues until such time, if at all, as the Company generates substantial revenues from the provision of
switched local and long distance communications services.

Rapid Technological Changes, Licenses

The telecommunications industry is subject to rapid and significant changes in technology . The effect on
the Company of technological changes, including changes relating to emerging wireline and wireless
transmission and switching technologies, cannot be predicted. In addition, the Company from time to time
receives requests to consider licensing certain patents held by third parties that may have bearing on its IVR
and virtual communications center services . The Company considers such requests on their merits, but has not
to date entered into any such license agreements . Should the Company be required to pay license fees in the
future, such payments, if substantial, could have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of
operations .
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Dependence on Key Personnel

The Company's businesses are managed by a small number of key executive officers, the loss of certain of
whom could have a material adverse effect on the Company . The Company believes that its future success NN ill
depend in large part on its ability to develop a large and sophisticated sales force and its ability to attract and
retain highly skilled and qualified personnel . Most of the executive officers of the Company, including the
presidents of its operating subsidiaries, do not have employment agreements . Although the Company has been
successful in attracting and retaining qualified personnel, there can be no assurance that NEXTLINK will not
experience a shortage of qualified personnel in the future .

Variability of Quarterly Operating Results

As a result of the significant expenses associated with the expansion and development of its networks and
services and the variability of the level of revenues generated through sales of NEXTLINK's IVR enhanced
communications services, the Company anticipates that its operating results could vary significantly from
period to period .

Control by Mr. Craig O. McCaw, Potential Conflicts of Interests

Craig O. McCaw, primarily through his majority ownership and .control of Eagle River Investments,
L.L.C ., a Washington limited liability company ("Eagle River'), controls approximately 52% of the
Company's total voting power . As a result, Mr . McCaw has the ability to control the direction and future
operations of the Company . Mr. McCaw is not an executive officer of the Company and . i n addition to his
investment in the Company through Eagle River, Mr . McCaw has significant investments in other
communications companies, including Nextel Communications, Inc ., Teledesic Corporation and Cable Plus
Inc ., some of which could compete with the Company as a single source provider of telecommunications
services or act as a supplier to the Company of certain telecommunications services . The Company does not
have a noncompetition agreement with either Mr. McCaw or Eagle River . Mr. McCaw is not bound by any
contractual restrictions against sales of the Company's common stock.

Potential Volatility of Stock Price

The market price of the Company's common stock has been, and is likely to continue to be . volatile . The
market price of the common stock could be subject to significant fluctuations in response to a number of
factors, such as actual or anticipated variations in the Company's quarterly operating results, the introduction
of nesv products by the Company or its competitors, changes in other conditions or trends in the Company's
industry, changes in governmental regulations, changes in securities analysts' estimates of the Company's, or
its competitors' or industry's, future performance or general market conditions . In addition, stock markets
have experienced extreme price and volume volatility in recent years, which has had a substantial effect on the
market prices of securities of many smaller public companies for reasons frequently unrelated to the operating
performance of such companies .

Item 7. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements of the Company are filed under this Item, beginning on page 44 of
this Report, and of NEXTLINK Capital are filed under this Item, beginning on Page 61 of this Report .

Item 8 . Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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PART III

Item 9. Directors and Executive. Officers of the Company

The following table sets forth the names, ages and positions of the executive officers and members of the
Company's board of directors. Their respective backgrounds are described following the table .

Name Age

MANAGEMENT

Position

Member of the Executive Committee
Member of the Compensation Committee
hlcmbcr of the Audit Committee

The following persons are the presidents of the Company's operating subsidiaries:

Directors of the Company are elected annually at the annual meeting of shareholders . The next annual
meeting of shareholders is scheduled for May 1998 . All of the officers identified above serve at the discretion
of the Board of Directors of the Company . There are no family relationships between any person identified
above .

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the services provided by the Company's independent
auditors, consulting with the independent auditors on audits and proposed audits of the Company and
reviewing the need for internal auditing procedures and the adequacy of internal controls . The Compensation
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Steven W. Hooper(3) . . . . . 45 Chairman of the Board of Directors
Wayne M. Perry(I) . . . . . . . 48 Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
James F . Voelker(l) . . . . . . 47 President and Director
George M. Tronsrue III . . . 41 Chief Operating Officer
Jan Loichle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50 Vice President, Chief of Local Exchange

Operations
Kathleen H. Iskra . . . . . . . . 41 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and

Treasurer
R. Bruce Easter, Jr . . . . . . . . 40 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Charles P. Daniels . . . . . . . . 41 Vice President, Chief Technology Officer
Michael J . McHale, Jr . . . . . 41 Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer
R . Gerard Salemme . . . . . . . 44 Vice President, External Affairs and Industry

Relations
Craig O. McCaw . . . . . . . . . 48 Director
Dennis Weibling(1)(2)(3) 46 Director
Scot Jarvis(2) . . : . . . . . . . . . 37 Director
William A. Hoglund(1)(2) 44 Director
Sharon L . Nelson(3) . . . . . . 5t Director
Jeffrey S . Raikes . . . . . . . . . 39 Director

Name Age Position

Hugh C. Cathey . . . . . . . . . . 47 President of NEXTLINK Ohio, L.L.C .
Don Hillenmeyer . . . . . . . . . 52 President of NEXTLINK Tennessee, L.L.C.
Jeff C . Stone . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40 President of NEXTLINK Interactive, L.L.C .
Dwayne Nielson . . . . . . . . . . 43 President of NEXTLINK Utah, L.L.C .
Gary Rawding . . . . . . . . . . . . 46 President of NEXTLINK Pennsylvania, L.P .
Donald W. Sessamen . . . . . . 64 President of NEXTLINK California, L.L.C .
Richard Kingston . . . . . . . . . 38 President of NEXTLINK Illinois, Inc .



Committee determines executive compensation and stock option awards, The Executive Committee exercises,
to the maximum extent permitted by law, all powers of the Board of Directors between board meetings, except
those functions assigned to specific committees. The Board of Directors may establish additional committees
from time to time .

The following are brief biographies of persons identified above.

Steven W. Hooper. Mr. Hooper has been Chairman of the Board since July 21, 1997. Prior to that,
Mr. Hooper was Vice Chairman of the Company since June 16, 1997. Mr. Hooper was formerly President and
Chief Executive Officer of AT&T wireless Services, Inc ., following the merger with McCaw Cellular. Prior to
being appointed President and Chief Executive Offcer, he served as Chief Financial Officer for two years.
This was preceded by five years as Regional President for Cellular One's Pacific Northwest/Rocky Mountain
region, where his responsibilities included managing the cellular operations in six western states and Alaska.
Mr. Hooper is a member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

WatweH Perry . Mr. Perry has been Chief Executive Officer of the Company since July 21, 1997 and
Vice Chairman of the Company since June 16, 1997. Mr. Pony was formerly Vice Chairman of AT&T
Wireless Services, Inc, since September 1994, following the merger with McCaw Cellular. Prior to the
merger, he served as Vice Chairman of the Board of McCaw Cellular since June 1989, and before that served
as President since December 1985 . Prior to becoming President of McCaw Cellular, Mr. Peny served as
Executive Vice President and General Counsel and was primary legal officer from 1976 to 1985 . Mt, Perry was
appointed Vice Chairman of the Board of LIN Broadcasting Corporation on March 5, 19W He also served as
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Cellular Telecommunications Industry Association, the nationwide
wireless industry association, for the 1993/94 term . Mr. Perry is a member of the Executive Committee of the
Board of Directors.

James F. Voefker. Mr . Voelker has been the President of NEXTLINK since April 1995 and is
responsible for developing the company vision and guiding overall operations . He is recognized as one of the
early entrepreneurs in the business of building and delivering competitive local exchange service.
Mr . Voelker's career in telecommunications spans almost two decades and includes experience in very
different segments of the industry in a variety of executive positions. From 1981 to 1984 he served as Vice
President or Sales, Marketing and Customer Service for Lexitel Corporation, the forerunner of Allnet
Communications . Mr. Vodker co-founded Digital Signal Inc . and served as Chief Operating Officer and
Chief Executive Officer from 1985 through the company's sale to SP Telecom in 1990 . Digital Signal operated
a nationwide fiber optic nettrork supplying capacity, engineering, provisioning and operational support to over
one hundred interexchange carriers . In the CAP arena, Mr. Voelker became Vice Chairman of City Signal
Inc. i n 1992, «hick constructed and operated networks in six markets. Subsequently, he served as its Chief
Executive Officer after the company merged with its sister company Teledial America to form U.S. Signal .
Based in Grand Rapids, Michigan, U.S . Signal was one of the first fully certified CLECs in the country.
Mr, Voelker has served as Vice Chairman of ALTS, the industry Association of Local Telephone Service
providers and as a director of Phoenix Network Inc ., a publicly held long distance company. Mr, Voelker is
also a member-of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors.

George M. Troosme 111. Mr. Tronsrue has been Chief Operating Officer of NEXTLINK since
October 1997 . Prior to that, Mr, Tronsrue was part of the initial management team of ACSI from
February 1994 to September 1997, and was responsible for planning and overseeing the operations of ACSI
for its first three years serving as Chief Operating Officer, President, Strategy and Technology Development
Division and Executive Vice President, Planning and Development . Prior to that, Mr, Ttonsrue served as the
Regional Vice President of the Central Region of Toleport Communications Group ("TCG"), and as Vice
President, Emerging Markets overseeing the start-up of TCG's initial eight cable television partnerships .
Before TCG, Mr. Tronsrue was at MFS Communications from its inception in 1987 until 1992. At MM
Mr. Tronsrue served as Vice President, Corporate Planning and Information Management; Vice President,
Field Sales; Vice President and General Manager for MFS New York during its first year of operations and
Executive Vice President, MFS lnternet. Prior to MFS, Mr, Tronsrue served at MCI from 1983 to 1986 in a
variety of engineering and operations roles, culminating as Director of Operations, Michigan and Ohio.
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Jan Loichle . Ms . Loichle has been Vice President, Chief of Local Exchange Operations of NEXTLINK
since October 1996. Prior to that, Ms. Loichle was the President of NEXTLINK Solutions (the virtual
communications center) from July 1995 . Prior to joining NEXTLINK, Ms. Loichle was Executive Vice
President at U.S . Signal in Detroit and Grand Rapids, Michigan from April 1993 to July 1995 . At U .S . Signal
Ms. Loichle led the development of an enhanced service platform (Magic Number) from concept through
production system and implementation. From 1990 to 1993, Ms. Loichle was Assistant Vice President of
Finance for SP Telecom in San Francisco. Prior to that, Ms. Loichle was Vice President of Financial
Operations for Lexitel/Allnet/ALC in Birmingham, Michigan from December 1980 to October 1989 .

Kathleen H. Iskra . Ms. Iskra has been Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of
NEXTLINK since January 1996. Prior to that, she was President and Chief Executive Officer of Horizon Air,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Alaska Air Group. Prior to her appointment at Horizon Air, Ms. Iskra served as
staff Vice President of Finance and Controller of Alaska Airlines and Alaska Air Group. Ms. Iskra's service
with Alaska began in 1987, when she was appointed Controller. Prior to joining,Alaska, she was an audit
manager with Arthur Andersen .

R . Bruce Easter, Jr, Mr . Easter has been Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of
NEXTLINK since January 1995 . From 1986 to December 1994, Mr. Easter was an associate and then
partner in the law firm of Davis Wright Tremaine in Seattle, Washington, where he focused on communica-
tions law and media matters.

Charles P. Daniels.

	

Mr. Daniels has been Vice President, Chief Technology Officer since July 1997 .
Prior to that, Mr. Daniels was Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer of NEXTLINK from November 1995 .
From 1992 to 1995, Mr. Daniels worked for MCI where he was the founder and Program Manager of the
network MCI Developers Lab . Mr. Daniels was also a founding member of MCI's Advanced Technology
Group . Prior to joining MCI, Mr. Daniels worked for Manufacturers Hanover Trust from 1989 to 1992 as
Vice President/Strategic Technology and Research, where he was responsible for evaluating and implement-
ing new technologies that either reduced costs or generated new revenue .

Michael J . McHale, Jr . Mr . McHale has been Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer since Novem-
ber 1997 . Prior to joining NEXTLINK, Mr. McHale served as Vice President and General Manager of the
Phoenix market and Regional Vice President at Teleport Communications Group, Inc . from 1993, developing
the Phoenix market from its inception . Prior to that, from 1991 to 1993 . he was Vice President, Product
Marketing and Development at MFS Intelenet, Inc . and was responsible for planning and implementing
MFS's initial introduction of switched services in New York City.

R . Gerard Salenvne .

	

Mr. Salemme has been Vice President, External Affairs and Industry Relations
since July 1997 . Prior to joining NEXTLINK, Mr. Salemme was Vice President, Government Affairs at
AT&T Corp . from December 1994 . Prior to joining AT&T Corp., Mr . Salemme was Senior Vice President,
External Affairs at McCaw Cellular from 1991 to December 1994.

- Craig O. McCaw.

	

Mr. McCaw has been a director of the Company since September 1994 and was Chief
Executive Officer of NEXTLINK from September 1994 to July 21, 1997 . Mr . McCaw is also Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Eagle River, a company formed and owned by Mr. McCaw to make strategic
investments in telecommunications ventures . Mr. McCaw was the founder, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of McCaw Cellular, the nation's leading provider of wireless communications services, until the
company was sold to AT&T in August 1994. Prior to entering the cellular telephone business in 1983,
Mr. McCaw was requested by his family to assume responsibility for the daily operations of a small cable
television operation in Centralia, Washington, that he and his three brothers owned . The one-system operation
serving 4,000 subscribers eventually grew to be the nation's 20th largest cable operator serving 450,000
subscribers. In 1974, the cable company's services expanded by entering the paging and conventional mobile
telephone industries . The company eventually became the fifth largest paging operator in the country, serving
approximately 320,000 subscribers in 13 states . In 1981, the company began to develop broad-based cellular
telephone services . Later, McCaw Cellular became the nation's largest cellular telephone operator, with
cellular system positions in more than 100 U.S . cities, representing more than 100 million potential customers .
The company also had interests in wireless data transmissions, personal communications services, air-to-
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ground phone systems and satellite communications at the time of its sale to AT&T. Mr. McCaw is one of the
two principal owners of Teledesic Corporation, which in March 1994 announced plans for a worldwide
satellite-based telecommunications system . Mr. McCaw is indirectly a significant stockholder, a director and
Chairman of the Operating Committee of Nextel Communications, Inc ., a provider of wireless telecommuni-
cations services. Mr. McCaw is also a director of Cable Plus, Inc .

Dennis Weibling.

	

Mr. Weibling has been a director of the Company since January 1997 and had been
Executive Vice President of NEXTLINK since September 1994. Mr. Weibling is also President of Eagle
River, Inc ., since October 1993 . Mr. Weibling is a director and member of Nextel Communications, Inv .'s
Board of Directors and operations, audit and- compensation committees . Nextel is a leading provider of
integrated wireless communications services for teams of mobile workers . Mr. Weibling serves on the board
and executive committee of Teledesic Corporation, a satellite telecommunications company backed by
Mr. McCaw and Microsoft founder Mr. William Gates. Mr. Weibling is a director of Cable Plus, one of the
leading providers of private cable television and telephony service to residential apartment complexes .
A licensed certified public accountant in Washington, Mr. Weibling is a member of the American Society of
Certified Public Accountants and the Washington Society of Certified Public Accountants. In addition,
Mr. Weibling is a licensed attorney in Ohio and a member of the American Bar Association and Ohio State
Bar Association. Mr. Weibling is also a member of the Executive, Compensation and Audit Committees of
the Board of Directors .

Scot Jarvis.

	

Mr. Jarvis has been a director of the Company since January 1997 and, prior to that, had
been Executive Vice President of NEXTLINK since September 1994, and was a Vice President of Eagle
River, Inc. from October 1994 through April 1996 . Mr. Jarvis is the co-founder and since March 1997 has
been a member of Cedar Grove Partners, L.L.C . Prior to that . Mr . Jarvis was the acting President of the
Company from September 1994 to April 1995 . Prior to joining Eagle River, Inc ., Mr. Jarvis served as Vice
President of McCaw Development Corporation from 1993 to 1994 and of McCa%% Cellular from 1985 through
1994 . During his tenure at McCaw Cellular, Mr . Jarvis served in the positions of General Manager from 1990
to 1993, Vice President of Acquisitions and Development from 1988 to 1990 and Assistant Vice President
from 1985 to 1988 . Mr. Jarvis also recently served on the Board of Directors or executive committees of:
NEXTEL Communications, Inc ., PriCellular Corporation, Horizon Cellular Group, Los Angeles Cellular
Telephone Company, Cellular 2000 Partnership, Cybertel Cellular Telephone Company (St . Louis), North-
west Cellular Partnership, and Movitel del Noroeste (Mexico Region) . Mr. Jarvis has also served as the
President of the Iberia Cellular Telephone Company from 1991 to 1994 . Mr. Jarvis is also a member of the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors .

William A. Hoghrnd . Mr. Hoglund has been a director of the Company since January 1997 and, prior to
that, had been Executive Vice President of NEXTLINK since February 1996 . Mr. Hoglund is also Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Eagle River, Inc. since January 1996. Prior to joining Eagle River,
Inc ., Mr. Hoglund was Managing Director of J .P. Morgan & Co. i n its investment banking group.
Mr. Hoglund was employed by J .P . Morgan & Co . from 1977 through 1995, focusing for the past nine years on
clients in the telecommunications, cable and media industries. Mr . Hoglund is also a member of the Executive
and Compensation Committees of the Board of Directors .

Sharon L . Nelson .

	

Ms. Nelson has been director of the Company since September 1997 and, prior to
that, was Chairman of the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission ("WUTC") from Febru-
ary 11, 1985 until her resignation on August 15, 1997. Prior to serving on the WUTC, Ms. Nelson served as
staff coordinator for the Washington State Legislature's Joint Select Committee on Telecommunications
(1983 to 1985), an attorney in private practice (1982 to 1983), legislative counsel to the Consumers Union of
the United States (1978 to 1981), staff counsel to the Commerce Committee of the U.S . Senate (1976 to
1978) and secondary school teacher of history and anthropology (1969 to 1973) . Ms., Nelson is also the past
president of the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners. Ms. Nelson also served on the
Federal-State Joint Board on Universal Service created under the Telecom Act and as one of the 20-member
negotiating team appointed by the Governors of Washington, Idaho, Oregon and Montana to review the
Northwest electric power system . Ms. Nelson is also a member of the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors .
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Jeffrey S. Raikes.

	

Mr. Raikes has been a director of the Company since September 1997. He is also a
member of the Executive Committee and the Group Vice President, Sales and Marketing of Microsoft
Corporation . As Group Vice President, Mr. Raikes has responsibility for Microsoft's worldwide customer units
as well as sales, marketing, support and service in the United States and Canada. Prior to joining the
Executive Committee in July 1996, Mr . Raises was Senior Vice President of Microsoft North America since
1993 . Prior to serving as Senior Vice President of Microsoft North America, from 1990, Mr. Raikes was Vice
President of Office Systems, where he was responsible for the development and marketing ofword processing,
workgroup applications and pen computing . From 1984 to 1990, Mr. Raikes was the Director of Applications
Marketing, where he was the chief strategist behind Microsoft's graphical applications for the Apple
Macintosh and Microsoft Windows as well as leading the product strategy and design of Microsoft Office .
Mr. Raises is also a member of the University of Nebraska Foundation and a Trustee of the Washington State
University Foundation

The following individuals are the senior management of the Company's subsidiaries .

Hugh C. Cathey. Mr. Cathey has been the President of NEXTLINK Ohio since August 1996 . Prior to
joining NEXTLINK, Mr. Cathey had nearly 20 years of experience in the telecommunications industry.
Mr . Cathey was President and Chief Executive Officer of Digital Network, Inc ., a publicly traded, facilities
based long distance company based in Dallas, Texas. From 1989 to 1993, Mr. Cathey served as President and
Chief Executive Officer of United Telemanagement, Inc . Prior to that, Mr. Cathey held sales and product
management positions of increasing responsibility with AT&T, culminating as the senior executive of a
business unit of AT&T with annual revenues of approximately $100 million . During Mr. Cathey's tenure at
United Telemanagement, Inc . . that company filed a petition under the Federal bankruptcy laws.

Dar Hillenrnerer. Mr. Hillenmeyer has been the President of NEXTLINK Tennessee since
March 1995 . Prior tojoining NEXTLINK in March of 1995 . Mr. Hillenmeyer was president of MCMG, Inc .,
a Nashville-based wireless communications management consulting and operations firm specializing in
running Rural Service Areas for independent cellular telephone owners . Before founding MCMG, Inc .,
Mr . Hillenmeyer held various senior management positions at McCaw Cellular and was responsible for
13 southern states from August 1986 to February 1990 .

Je.# C. Stone.

	

Mr. Stone has been the President of NEXTLINK Interactive (the IVR subsidiary) since
August I, 1997 . Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Stone was Vice President and General Manager for the
Western Region of WorldCom. Inc . (previously MFS Telecom . Inc .) from 1994 to July 1997 . Prior to that,
from 1989 to 1994 . Mr. Stone was the Director of Sales and Marketing of Associated Communications of
Los Angeles .

Divavne Nielson.

	

Mr. Nielson has been President of NEXTLINK Utah since February 1996 . Prior to
joining NEXTLINK, Mr. Nielson was Assistant Vice President, Consumer and Small Business Market, at
Sprint Corporation from October 1994 to February 1996 . Prior to that, from August 1985 through
October 1994 . Mr. Nielson held a variety of sales and marketing positions at Sprint and United Telephone .

Gart' Ran cling. Mr. Rawding has been President of NEXTLINK Pennsylvania since September 1994 .
Prior to founding Penns Light Communications, Inc . . certain assets of which were acquired by the Company
in September 1994. he served as Vice President of Sales and Marketing at Eastern TeleLogic Corporation
from 1989 until 1993 . Prior to joining Eastern TeleLogic, Mr. Rawding held various positions with Bell
Atlantic Corporation.

Donald W. Sessamen . Mr. Sessamen has been President of NEXTLINK California since Novem-
ber 1996 . Prior to that, Mr . Sessamen acted as a consultant to NEXTLINK. Prior to acting as a consultant to
the Company, Mr. Sessamen joined Brooks Fiber California in 1994 as President, after the company acquired
Phoenix Fiberlink . At Brooks Fiber California, Mr. Sessamen completed the installation of the San Jose
system and managed the entry into switched services in the Sacramento market . From 1991 to 1994,
Mr. Sessamen was Executive Vice President of Operations, Engineering and MIS at SP Telecom, a fiber optic
systems construction and wholesale transmission company using Southern Pacific Railroad rights-of-way east
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of the Mississippi River. At SP Telecom, Mr. Sessamen led SP Telecom's entry into switch-based products
utilizing the Northern Telecom DMS 250 Super Node, introducing innovative switch-based products .

Richard Kingston .

	

Mr. Kingston has been the President of NEXTLINK Illinois since July 1997 . Prior
to joining NEXTLINK, Mr. Kingston was the Western Regional Vice President/General Manager of
American Communications Services, Inc. from April 1994 to July 1997 . Prior to that, Mr. Kingston operated
his own telecommunications company, King Communications, Inc. from January 1992 to January 1994 . From
December 1990 to January 1992, Mr. Kingston was West Region Agent Manager for Telesphere Communica-
tions, Inc. and from 1988 to December 1990, Mr . Kingston was Director of Carrier Sales at MFS Communi-
cations Company, Inc.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Information regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is set forth
under the caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in the Company's Proxy
Statement relating to the Company's annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 20, 1998, and is
incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy Statement will be filed within 120 days of the Company's year
end.

Item 10 . Executive Compensation

Information called for by Part 111 . Item 10 . is included in the Company's Proxy Statement relating to the
Company's annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 20, 1998, and is incorporated herein by
reference . The information appears in the Proxy Statement under the caption "Compensation of Executive
Officers ." Such Proxy Statement will be filed within 120 days of the Company's year end.

Item 11 . Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Afanagernent

Information called for b) Part 111, Item 11, is included in the Company's Proxy Statement relating to the
Company's annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 20, 1998, and is incorporated herein by
reference. The information appears in the Proxy Statement under the caption "Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners ." Such Proxy Statement mill be filed within 120 days of the Company's year end.

Item 12 . Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information called for b) " Part III, Item 12 . is included in the Company's Proxy Statement relating to the
Company's annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 20, 1998, and is incorporated herein by
reference. The information appears in the Proxy Statement under the caption "Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions ." Such Proxy Statement will be filed within 120 days of the Company's year end.



Item 13. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Financial Statements
NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.
Report of Independent Public Accountants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

43
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

44
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 1997
and 1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

45
Consolidate Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity (Deficit) for the Years Ended
December 31, 1997 and 1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .- . . . . . . . . . . .

	

46
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 1997 and

1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

48

NEXTLINK Capital, Inc.
Report of Independent Public Accountants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

60
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

61
Note to Balance Sheets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

62

(b) List of Exhibits.
Exhibit No.

	

Description

3 .1

	

Articles of Incorporation of NEXTLINK Communications lnc.(2)
3 .2

	

By-laws of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.(2)
3.3

	

Articles of Incorporation of NEXTLINK Capital . Inc.(])
3.4

	

By-laws of NEXTLINK Capital, Incj])
4.1

	

Form of Exchange Note Indenture, by and among NEXTLINK Communications.
Inc . and United States Trust Company of New York, as trustee . relating to the
Exchange Notes, including form of Exchange Notes.(2)

4.2

	

Certificate of Designations of the Powers, Preferences and Relative . Participating.
Optional and Other Special Rights of 14% Senior Exchangeable Redeemable
Preferred Shares and Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof.(2)

4.3

	

Form of stock certificate of 14% Senior Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred
S harts . (2 )

4.4

	

Indenture, dated as of April 25 . 1996, by and among NEXTLINK Communications .
Inc., NEXTLINK Capital, Inc. and United States Trust Company of New York, as
Trustee, relating to 12'h%a Senior Notes due April 15, 2006, including form of global
note . ( I )

4 .5

	

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 31, 1997, by and among the
Company, NEXTLINK Communications, L.L.C ., NEXTLINK Capital and United
States Trust Company of New York, as Trustee.(2)

4.6

	

Form of Indenture between United States Trust Company, as Trustee and
NEXTLINK Communications, Inc ., relating to the 9 3/s% Senior Notes due 2007.(3)

4.7

	

Form of Indenture between United States Trust Company, as Trustee and
NEXTLINK Communications, Inc ., relating to the 9% Senior Notes Due 2008.

10.1

	

Stock Option Plan of the Company.(2)
10.2

	

First Amendment to Stock Option Plan of the Company.
10.3

	

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 15, 1997, between the Company
and the signatories listed therein.(2)
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Exhibit No .

	

Description

10.4

	

Preferred Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of January 31,
1997, by and among the Company and the Initial Purchasers.(2)

10.5

	

Fiber Lease and Innerduct Use Agreement, dated as of February 23, 1998, by and
between NEXTLINK Communications, Inc . and Metromedia Fiber Network,
Inc.(4)

10.6

	

Amendment No. I to Fiber Lease and Innerduct Use Agreement, dated as of
March 4, 1998, by and between NEXTLINK Communications, Inc . and Metromedia
Fiber Network, lnc.(4)

21

	

Subsidiaries of the Registrants .
27.1

	

Financial Data Schedule for the year ended December 31, 1997 .
27.2

	

Financial Data Schedule, restated for the periods ended December 31, 1996, June 30,

(c) Reports on Form 8-K

None.

1997 and September 30, 1997 .

(1) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of
NEXTLINK Communications, L.L.C . (the predecessor of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.) and
NEXTLINK Capital, Inc . (Commission File No. 333-4603) .

(2) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with the Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the
year ended December 31, 1996 of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc . and NEXTLINK Capital, Inc .
(Commission File Nos . 333-03603 and 333-04603-01) .

(3) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with the Registration Statement on Form S-1 of
NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. (Commission File No. 333-32003).

(4) Portions of this exhibit were omitted and filed separately with the Secretary of the Commission pursuant
to the Issuers Application Requesting Confidential Treatment under Rule 24(b)-2 of the Securities
Exchange Act of1934 .



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc . :

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc .
(a Washington Corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1997 and 1996. and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in shareholders' equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years then ended .
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits .

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards . Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement . An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements . An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation . We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion .

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1997 and 1996,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles .

Seattle . Washington,
March 12, 1998

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP



NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

ASSETS

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements .
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Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,217,153 $390,683

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 26,776 $ 18,622
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,082 4,112
Notes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,234 -
Accrued interest payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,880 9,250
Current portion of capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,610 1,194
Payable to affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - 1,500

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69,582 34,678
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7$0,000 350,000
Capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,640 6,262
Deferred compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - 10,289
Other long-term liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.179 2,850

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 830,401 404,079
Commitments and contingencies
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 308
Redeemable preferred stock (par value $0.01 per share, aggregate liquidation

preference $323,478 ; 6,322,031 and 0 shares issued and outstanding in 1997
and 1996,respectively) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 313.319 -

Class B common stock, subject to redemption (par value $0.02 per share, 519,950
and 0 shares issued and outstanding in 1997 and 1996, respectively) . . . . . . . . . . . 4,950 -

Equity units subject to redemption (0 and 397,202 units outstanding in 1997
and 1996,respectively) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - 4,950

Shareholders' equity (deficit) :
Common stock, par value $0.02 per share, stated at amounts paid in ; Class A,

110,334,000 shares authorized, 19,167,899 and 0 shares issued and
outstanding in 1997 and 1996, respectively; Class B, 44,133,600 shares
authorized, 33,746,573 and 0 shares issued and outstanding in 1997 and
1996, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 330,561 -

Deferred compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (9,596) -
Accumulated deficit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (252,505) (84,181)
Members' capital (28,154,509 units, all of which are outstanding in 1996) . . . - 65,527

Total shareholders' equity (deficit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 68,460 1(8,654 )
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity (deficit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,217,153 $390,683

December 31,
1997 1996

Current assets :
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 389,074 $ 76,807
Marketable secunties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 353,283 47,713
Accounts receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,955 7,008
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,530 607
Pledged securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41,425 39,770

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 811,267 171,905
Pledged securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,185 61,668
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 253,653 97,784
Goodwill,net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52,278 24,110
Other assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 78,770 35,216



NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements .
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Year Ended
1997

December 31,
1996

Revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 57,579 $ 25,686
Costs and expenses :

Operating . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54,031 25,094
Selling, general and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75,732 31,353
Deferred compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,247 9,914
Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . . . . . . . . . . � 18,851 6,640
Amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,339 3,700

Total costs and expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 160,200 76,701
Loss from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . ., . . . . . . ., . . . . . . ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (102,621) (51,015)
Interest income . . . . . . . ., . . . . . . � . �� ., ., ., ., ., . . �� . . . . . . . � ., . . ., . . � . . . . 27,827 10,446
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54,495) (30,876 )
Loss before minority interests . . . . ., . . . . . . ., . . ., . . . . . ., . ., . . ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (129,289) (71,445)
Minority interests in loss of consolidated subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 285 344
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (129,004 ) $ (71,101 )
Preferred stock dividends and accretion of preferred stock redemption obligation,

including issue costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (39,320 )
Net loss applicable to common shares . , . , . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . , , , . , . . . . . . . . . $ (168,324 ) $ (71,101 )
Pro forma :

Net loss per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . S (3.91 ) S (1 .81 )
Shares used in computation of pro forma net loss per share (1996 amounts have

been adjusted for conversion of membership units into shares of the Company's
Class A and Class B common stock upon incorporation; see Note 9) . . . . . . . . . . 43,055,885 39,312,482



NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES
IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(Dollars in thousands)
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements .

Shares
Class A

Common Stock

Class B Amount
Deferred

Compensation
Accumulated

Deficit
Members'
Capital Total

Balance at December 31, 1995 . . . . . . . . . . . . . - - $ - S - S (13,080) 249,799 S 36,719
Contributed capital . . . . . . . . . . . - 9,502 9,502
Issuance of units for NEXTLINK Ohio

acquisition . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - - - - - 652 652
Impact of recapitalization and merger of
'affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - - - - - 5,574 5,574
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - (71,101 ) (71,101 )

Balance at December 31, 1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . - - - - (84,181) 65,527 (18,654)
Merger of NEXTLINK Communications,
L.L.C with and into NEXTLINK
Communications, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - 36,165.259 65,527 - - (65,527) -

Conversion of Equity Option Plan into
Employee Stock Option Plan . . . . . . . . 15,363 (4,234) - - 11,129

Issuance of compensatory stock options . . . - - 4,872 (4,872) - - -
Compensation attributable to stock options

vesting ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - - - 2,335 - - 2,335
Issuance of common stock under leasing
arrangement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 176.534 - 1,400 - - - 1,400

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 672.878 921 .314 115 - - - 115

Issuance of common stock in initial public
offering . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . 14,280,000 - 226,760 - - - 226,760

Sale of common stock by selling
shareholder in initial public offering . . . . 3,200,000 (3,200,000) - - - - -

Issuance of common stock in acquisitions 698,487 - 16,524 - - - 16,524
Conversion of Class B common stock into

Class A common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 140.000 (140,000) - - - - -
Loans to officers for income taxes paid
upon exercise of stock options . . . . . . . . . - - - (2,825) - - (2.825)

Cumulative redeemable preferred stock
dividends and accretion of preferred
stock redemption obligation, including
issue costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - - - - (39,320) - (39,320)

Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - (129,004 ) (129,004 )
Balance at December 31, 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,167,899 33,746,573 5330,561 S(9,596) S(252.505) S - S 68,460



NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements .
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Year Ended December 31,
1997 1996

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(129,004) S (71,101)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities :

Deferred compensation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,247 9,914
Equity in loss of affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,544 1,100
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,190 10,340
Minority interests in loss of consolidated subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (285) (344)

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions :
Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (11,206) (1,659)
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,953) (42)
Other long-term assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,208) (1,430)
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,116 993
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,434 2,416
Accrued interest payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,630 9,250

Net cash used in operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (94,495) (40,563)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (142,170) (51 .920)
Investment in assets of acquired businesses (net of cash acquired) . . . . . . . . . . . (61,609) (15,169)
Cash withdrawn from (placed into) escrow to be used in business acquisition . . 6,000 (6,000)
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,766) (4,953)
Purchase of pledged securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . . . ., . . ., . . . . . . . . - (117.688)
Maturity of pledged securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39,920 16,431
Purchase of marketable securities, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3(05,570 ) (47,713 )
Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (470,195) (227,012)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from issuance of redeemable preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 274,000 -
Capital contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . . . . . . . ., . . . . . . . . . - 9,935
Proceeds from payable to affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - 28,766
Repayment of payable to affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,500) (33,703)
Repayment of capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,939) (771)
Repayment of notes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5,926) -
Bank overdraft . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - (1,373)
Net proceeds from sale of common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 226,760 -
Proceeds from sale of senior notes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 400,000 350,000
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options . . . . . . . 115 -
Costs incurred in connection with financing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (11,728) (9,822)
Loans to officers for income taxes paid upon exercise of stock options . . . . . . . . . (2,825 ) -
Net cash provided by financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.
. . . . . . . . . . 876,957 343,032

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
.

. . . . . . . . . . . 312,267 75,457
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 76,807 1,350
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 389,074 ' S 76,807



1 . Organization and Description of Business

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc., a
Washington corporation, and its majority-owned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Company) . The
Company, through predecessor entities, was formed'on September 16, 1994 and, through its subsidiaries,
provides competitive local, long distance and enhanced telecommunications services in selected markets in the
United States . The Company is a majority-owned subsidiary of Eagle River Investments, L.L.C . (Eagle
River) .

The competitive local telecommunications service business is a capital intensive business. The develop-
ment of the Company's businesses and the installation and expansion of its networks require significant
expenditures, a substantial portion of which must be made before any revenues may be realized . These
expenditures, together with the associated early operating expenses, have resulted in negative cash flow and
operating losses, which have been substantially financed with the proceeds from public sales of debt and equity
securities .

2 . Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidarion

The Company's financial statements include 100% of the assets, liabilities and results of operations of
subsidiaries in which the Company has a controlling interest of greater than 50% . The ownership interests of
the other members or partners in such subsidiaries are reflected as minority interests . The Company's
investment in Telecommunications of Nevada, L.L.C ., (Nevada L.L.C.) a limited liability company in which
the Company has a 40% interest and which operates a network that is managed by the Company in Las Vegas,
Nevada . i s accounted for on the equity method . Investments in entities in which the Company has voting
interests of not more than 20% are accounted for on the cost method . All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated .

Cash and Cash Equivalents

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 1997 and 1996

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less at the time
of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist of U.S . government and other securities with original maturities beyond
three months . Marketable securities are stated at cost, adjusted for discount accretion and premium
amortization . The securities in the Company's portfolio are classified as "held to maturity," as management
has the intent and ability to hold those securities to maturity. The fair value of the Company's marketable
securities approximates the carrying value .

Pledged Securities

In connection with the sale of 12Th% Senior Notes (see Note 6), a portion of the net proceeds was
utilized to purchase a portfolio consisting of U.S . government securities, which mature at dates sufficient to
provide for payment in full of interest on the 12rfe% Senior Notes through April 15, 1999 . The pledged
securities are stated at cost, adjusted for premium amortization and accrued interest . The fair value of the
pledged securities approximates the carrying value .
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Property end Equipment

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 1997 and 1996

Property and equipment are stated at cost . Direct costs of construction are capitalized, including
81,793,000 and $853,000 of interest costs related to construction during 1997 and 1996, respectively .
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets .

Estimated useful lives of property and equipment are as follows :

Intangible Assets

Telecommunications networks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

5-20 years
Office equipment, furniture and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

3-5 years
Leaschold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

the lesser of the
estimated useful lives
or the terms of the
leases

Intangible assets primarily represent costs allocated in acquisitions to customer bases and contracts,
software and related intellectual property and goodwill . Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows :

Customer contracts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

term of the contracts
Customer bases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

5 years
Software and related intellectual property . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

5 years
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

15-20 years

Costs incurred in connection with securing the Company's debt facilities, including underwriting and
advisory fees and other such costs, are deferred and amortized over the term of the financing using the
straight-line method .

Income Taxes

Prior to January 31, 1997, the Company was organized and operated as a limited liability company that
was classified and taxed as a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes . Effective February 1, 1997,
the Company became subject to federal and state income taxes directly as a C corporation .

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes" (SEAS 109), which requires that deferred
income taxes be determined based on the estimated future tax effects of differences between the financial
statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities given the provisions of the enacted tax laws .

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue on telecommunications and enhanced communications services in the
period that services are provided .

Pro Forma Net Loss Per Share

Pro forma net loss per share has been computed using the number of shares of common stock and
common stock equivalents outstanding.,Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 98 (SAB 98), issued in February 1998, nominal issuances of shares during the twelve-month
period preceding the date of the initial filing of the Registration Statement have been included in the
calculation of common stock equivalent shares as if such shares and options were outstanding for all periods

49
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presented . The provisions of SAB 98 require retroactive application ; as such, pro forma net loss per share
amounts and shares used in computation of pro forma net loss per share for all prior periods have been
restated.

In February 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 128, "Earnings Per
Share" (SFAS 128), which revises the calculation and presentation provisions of Accounting Principles Board
(APB) Opinion No. IS and related interpretations. SFAS 128 is effective for the Company's fiscal year ending
December 31, 1997, and retroactive application is required . Implementation of SFAS 128 did not have a
material effect on the Company's earnings per share amounts reported prior to that date.

Stock-Based Compensation
As allowed by Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" (SFAS 123), the

Company has chosen to account for compensation cost associated with its stock option plans in accordance
with APB Opinion No. 25 .

Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist

primarily of trade receivables . The Company's trade receivables are geographically dispersed and include
customers in many different industries . Management believes that any risk of loss is significantly reduced due
to the diversity of its customers and geographic sales areas . The Company continually evaluates the
creditworthiness of its customers; however, it generally does not require collateral . The Company's allowance
for doubtful accounts is based on historical trends, current market conditions and other relevant factors .

Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes . Actual results could differ from those estimates .

Reclassifications

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts in order to conform to the current year
presentation .

3 . Acquisitions

On November 1, 1997, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of Start Technologies
Corporation (Start), . a shared tenant services provider offering local and long distance services, Internet access
and customer premise equipment management in Texas and Arizona. The Company paid consideration for the
transaction consisting of $20.0 million in cash, 441,336 shares of Class A common stock, and the assumption
of approximately $5.3 million of liabilities, the majority of which were repaid .

On October 1, 1997, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of Chadwick Telecommunica-
tions Corporation (Chadwick), a switch-based long distance reseller in central Pennsylvania, through a
merger transaction between Chadwick and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company . The purchase price of
the transaction consisted of a $5.0 million promissory note payable, due January I, 1998, issuance of 257,151
shares of Class A common stock, and the repayment of long-term debt and other liabilities totaling
$6.6 million. The merger agreement also provides for additional payments of up to a maximum of 192,863
shares of Class A common stock over a two-year period, with these payments being contingent upon the
acquired operation achieving specified performance goals .
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On February 4, 1997, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Linkatel Pacific, L.P .
(Linkatel), a Los Angeles-based competitive access telecommunications provider. At the time of the
acquisition, Linkatel operated an 80 mile fiber optic telecommunications network covering several markets
from the downtown Los Angeles area to the city of Irvine in Orange County. As part of the assets acquired,
the Company obtained access to approximately 250 route miles of right-of-way, of which 183 miles have been
completed, creating one network in Los Angeles and one network in the Orange County area . The Company
has been providing competitive access services over these networks since the acquisition date and launched
switched local and long distance services in July 1997 . The total purchase price of $42.5 million consisted of a
cash payment of $36.1 million, the repayment of debt of $5.6 million and the assumption of net liabilities of
50.8 million .

In December 1996, the Company acquired ITC, a switched-based long distance reseller based in Salt
Lake City, Utah. Consideration for the acquisition of ITC consisted of a cash payment of $4.0 million, of
which $2.6 million was placed into escrow to be paid during 1998, plus the issuance of 397,202 Class A Units
of the Company valued at approximately $5.0 million, which were subsequently converted into 519,950 shares
of the Company's Class B common stock . The Company has granted the seller an option requiring the
Company to repurchase such shares at $19.92 per share beginning in the fourth quarter of 1999 . This
repurchase obligation will terminate if during the three-year period commencing March 25, 1998 . the average
daily closing price of the Class A common stock during any consecutive 60 trading day period is greater than
$19.92.

In January 1996, the Company acquired certain assets of FoneNet, Inc . and U .S . Network, Inc . through
NEXTLINK Ohio, L.L.C . Consideration for the purchase consisted of a cash payment of S9.6 million, the
issuance of 287,721 Class A Units of the Company, valued at $651,933, plus the assumption of capital lease
obligations of S6.1 million .

The above acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the
results of operations of the acquired companies have been included in the Company's consolidated financial
statements since the effective dates of acquisition . The aggregate purchase price for the acquisitions occurring
in 1997 and 1996 were allocated based on fair values as follows (in thousands) :

1997 1996

The following unaudited condensed pro forma information presents the results of operations of the
Company for the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 as if the above transactions had occurred on
January 1, 1996 (in thousands, except per share amounts) :

5 1

The unaudited pro forma information is provided for informational purposes only and is not necessarily
indicative of the results of operations that would have occurred bad the purchases been made on January 1,
1996, or of the future anticipated results of operations of the combined companies .

Fair value of tangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 512,525 $12,579

Fair value of intangible assets acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70,705 16,425
583,230 $29,004

Purchase price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $83,230 $29,004

1997 19%

Revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 79,070 $ 58,050
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . ., . . . . . . . . . � . ., . . . . . $(134,404) $(74,423)
Net loss per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (3.12) $ (1 .89)



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4. Property and Equipment

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

Property and equipment consisted of the following components (in thousands) :

5. Other Assets

Other assets consisted of the following components (in thousands) :
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December 31,
1997 1996

In June 1997, the Company entered into an eight-year operating lease agreement, with an option to renew
for five additional years, with a company that has excess fiber capacity in Atlanta, Chicago, New York City,
Newark, Ncw Jersey, and Philadelphia which it agreed to make available to the Company in each of those
markets. Payment in exchange for use of the leased network will be based on monthly charges for actual
services provided . In connection with this lease agreement, the Company also issued to the lessor 176,534
shares of Class A common stock in June 1997 for certain exclusivity rights to the excess capacity .

In addition to the capacity arrangement described above, in June 1997, the Company entered into a
20-pear capital lease over an existing 47-mile fiber network in New York City . In connection with this
arrangement, the Company paid $1 I million in full satisfaction of its obligation under the lease, 56 million of
which was placed in escrow pending completion of certain building connections by the lessor . As of
December 31, 1997, 54 .1 million remained in escrow .

Deeember 31,
1997 1996

The Company's equity investments include (i) a 4090 investment in Nevada L.L.C ., which operates a
fiber optic telecommunications network serving the Las Vegas market and (ii) a 53.7 million investment in
convertible preferred 'stock of Intermind Corporation (Intermind) . Intermind has developed and patented an
interactive communications tool for the World Wide Web and intranet applications .

Customer bases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 553,033 512,003
Equity investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,021 3,853
Financing costs ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,552 9,822
Cash held in escrow for acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - 8,682
Advances to business to be acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - 1,490
Other noncurrent assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,415 4,627

91,021 40,477
Less accumulated amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,251 5,261

578,770 535,216

Telecommunications networks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $189,629 $66,762
Office equipment, leasehold improvements, furniture

and other . . . . . . . ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . . . 38,979 18,097
228,608 84,859

Less accumulated depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36,417 8,369
192,191 76,490

Network construction in progress . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61,462 21,294
5253.653 597,784



6 . Long-Term Debt
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On October 1, 1997, the Company sold $400 million in aggregate principal amount of 9%% Senior Notes
due October 1, 2007, which, after deducting issue costs, resulted in net proceeds to the Company of
$388.5 million. Interest payments on the 9%% Senior Notes are due semi-annually. The 9%% Senior Notes
are redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at any time on or after October 1, 2002 at
established redemption prices which decline to 100% of the stated principal amount thereof by October 1,
2005.

On April 25, 1996, the Company completed the sale and issuance of$350 million in principal amount of
121/2% Senior Notes due April 15, 2006 . The Company used $117.7 million of the gross proceeds to purchase
U.S . government securities, representing funds sufficient to provide for payment in full ofinterest on the 12'/2%
Senior Notes through April 15, 1999 and used an additional $32.2 million to repay advances and accrued
interest from Eagle River . In addition, the Company incurred costs of $9.8 million in connection with the
financing (including underwriter discounts and commissions) . Interest payments on the 121/% Senior Notes
are due semi-annually. The 12 1/2% Senior Notes are redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in
part, at any time on or after April 15, 2001 at established redemption prices which decline to 100% of the
stated principal amount thereof by April 15, 2004. As of December 31, 1997, the approximate fair value of the
12 1/2% Senior Notes was $402.5 million, based on quoted market prices.

The indentures pursuant to which the 9%% and 121/2% Senior Notes (the Notes) are issued contain
certain covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to incur
additional indebtedness, issue stock in subsidiaries, pay dividends or make other distributions, repurchase
equity interests or subordinated indebtedness, engage in sale and leaseback transactions, create certain liens,
enter into certain transactions with affiliates, sell assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, and enter into
certain mergers and consolidations .

In the event of a change in control of the Company as defined in the indentures, holders of the Notes will
have the right to require the Company to purchase their Notes, in whole or in part, at a price equal to 101 % of
the stated principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, thereon to the date of purchase .
The Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company, and are subordinated to all current and future
indebtedness of the Company's subsidiaries, including trade payables.

7. Redeemable Preferred Stock

On January 31, 1997, the Company completed the sale of 5.7 million units consisting of (i) 1446 senior
exchangeable redeemable preferred shares (Preferred Shares), liquidation preference $50 per share, and
(ii) contingent warrants to acquire in the aggregate 5% of each class ofoutstandingjunior shares (as defined)
of the Company on a fully diluted basis as of February 1, 1998, which resulted in gross proceeds to the
Company of $285 million, and proceeds net of underwriting discounts, advisory fees and expenses of
$274 million . The contingent warrants expired unused on October 31, 1997 (30 days after the Company's
initial public offering of its Class A common stock) . Dividends on the Preferred Shares accrue from
January 31, 1997 and are payable quarterly, commencing on May l, 1997, at an annual rate of 14% of the
liquidation preference thereof. Dividends may be paid, at the Company's option, on any dividend payment
date occurring on or prior to February 1, 2002, either in cash or by issuing additional Preferred Shires with an
aggregate liquidation preference equal to the amount of such dividends. The Company is required to redeem
all of the Preferred Shares outstanding on February 1, 2009 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
liquidation preference thereof, plus accumulated and unpaid dividends to the date of redemption . As of
December 31, 1997, the approximate fair value of the Preferred Shares was $345.1 million, based on quoted
market prices .
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8. Income Taxes
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Subject to certain conditions and the modifications of covenants, the Preferred Shares are exchangeable
in whole, but not in part, at the option of the Company, on any dividend' payment date, for 14% senior
subordinated notes (Senior Subordinated Notes) due February 1, 2009 of the Company . All terms and
conditions (other than interest, ranking and maturity) of the Senior Subordinated Notes would be substan-
tially the same as those of the Company's outstanding 12 1h% Senior Notes due April 15, 2006.

Prior to January 31, 1997, the Company was organized and operated as a limited liability company that
was classified and taxed as a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes . Effective February 1, 1997,
the Company became subject to federal and state income taxes directly as a C corporation, which resulted in
the Company recording a deferred tax liability and deferred tax provision at that time .

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of February 1, 1997 (date of conversion to a
C corporation) and December 31, 1997 are as follows (in thousands) :

During 1997; the valuation allowance increased 534.1 million, thereby fully reserving the Company's net
deferred tax assets as of December 31, 1997 .

As of December 31, 1997, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$119.3 million, which arc available to offset future federal and state taxable income, if any, through 2012 .

A reconciliation of the Company's effective income tax rate and the U.S . federal tax rate is as follows :
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Deferred tax assets :

Februarv
1997

I. December 31,
1997

Amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 994 S 1,116
Capitalized costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,076 6,508
Provisions not currently deductible . . . . . . . . . . . . 252 1,191
Net operating loss carryforwards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - 47.734

Total deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,322 56,549
Valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - (34.064 )

5,322 22,485
Deferred tax liabilities :

Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (705) (1,499)
Purchase acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,458) (20,374)
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (686) (612 )

Total deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (7,849 ) 2(2,485 )
Net deferred taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S(2,527 ) S -

Year Ended
December 31 . 1997

Statutory rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.0%
Conversion to C corporation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1 .9°'0)
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (26.1%)
Purchase acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (12.0%)
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9. Shareholders' Equity (Deficit)

On October 1, 1997, the Company completed an initial public offering (IPO) of 12,000,000 shares of
Class A common stock at a price of 517 per share . In addition, the undcrvriters of the IPO exercised an option
to purchase 2,280,000 additional shares of Class A common stock at the same price per share . Gross proceeds
from the IPO totaled approximately $242.8 million, and proceeds net of underwriting discounts, advisory fees
and expenses aggregated approximately $226.8 million .

On August 27, 1997, the Company effected a 0 .441336-for-I reverse stock split of the issued and
outstanding shares of Class A and Class B common stock . All common stock, membership units, and per
share amounts in the consolidated financial statements have been adjusted retroactively to give effect to the
reverse stock split .

From January 31, 1997, the Company had two classes of common stock outstanding . Class A common
stock and Class B common stock. The Company's Class A common stock and Class B common stock are
identical in dividend and liquidation rights, and vote together as a single class on all matters, except as
otherwise required by applicable lave, with the Class A shareholders entitled to cast one vote per share, and the
Class B shareholders entitled to cast 10 votes per share .

On January 31, 1997, NEXTLINK Communications, L.L.C . was merged with and into the Company in
a tax-free transaction . In that merger, the Class A membership interests of NEXTLINK Communications,
L.L .C . were converted into Class B common stock, options to acquire Class A membership interests were
converted into options to purchase Class B common stock, and options to purchase Class B membership
interests were converted into options to purchase Class A common stock . In calculating the number of shares
of the Company's Class B common stock that each of the Class A members received in the merger, the
Company applied a formula that reflected each member's revalued capital account balance as of January 31,
1997 . Options to purchase Class B membership interests were converted into the right to receive options to
purchase shares of Class A common stock on a one to one basis.

Prior to January 31, 1997, the Company's limited liability company agreement provided for both Class A
and Class B membership interests in the Company . Class A Unit holders were entitled to a preferred return on
their investment in the Company plus a return of their capital upon the dissolution of the Company . Class B
Units were granted in connection with the Company's Amended and Restated Equity Option Plan (EOP) .
Although Class B Units, when exercised, constituted an ownership interest in the Company, the interest was
limited to the appreciation in the value of the Company, or the distributable profits interest, if any, of the
Company . The valuation of the membership units was determined by the EOP Administrative Committee . As
of December 31, 1996, the value of the Class A Units %vas determined to be approximately S9.88, and the
appreciation interest per unit for Class B Units was approximately $7.93 .

Effective January 1, 1996, the Company merged four of its five operating subsidiaries with newly formed
entities owned by the Company . As a result of these mergers, the entities and individuals holding minority
interests in the subsidiaries exchanged these interests for 1,695,263 Class A Units of the Company
(representing an approximate 5 .9% ownership interest in the Company) which were valued at approximately
S5.6 million. NEXTLINK Washington, L.L.C. did not participate in the merger. The transaction was
accounted for as a purchase of minority interests . Accordingly, the S2.9 million excess of the purchase price
over the book value of the interests acquired was recorded as goodwill.

In addition to the exchange of equity interests, the Company exchanged options to acquire equity
interests in the subsidiaries for options to acquire Class B Units in the Company . In connection with this
transaction, the Company issued 862,219 options with exercise prices of 50.02 and four-year vesting schedules .
These options had substantially the same economic values and vesting schedules as the subsidiary options
which were exchanged .
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 1997 and 1996

10 . Pro Forma Net Loss Per Share

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc .

Shares used in the computation of net loss per share amounts were calculated as follows :
1997 1996

Subsequent to the Company's IPO and through December 31, 1997, options to purchase 307,164 shares
of common stock were issued but "ere not included in the computation of net loss per share, as these options
did not fall under the provisions of SAB 98 and inclusion of such options would have been amidilutive .

11 . Stock Options

Prior to February 1997, the Company maintained an Equity Option Plan which provided for the granting
of equity option interests in the Company. These option grants mere considered compensatory and were
accounted for similarly to stock appreciation rights . The Company recognized compensation expense over the
vesting periods based on the excess of the fair value of the equity option interests, as determined by the
Administrative Committee . over the exercise price of the option interests . Such expense was periodically
adjusted for changes in the fair value of the equity interest units . These option interests vested ratably over a
four-year period, although some retained vesting schedules of previous option plans which, in most cases,
vested 20Sc at employment and 20% at the end of each subsequent year.

In connection with the incorporation of the Company (see Note 9), the Company established the
NEXTLINK Communications . Inc . Stock Option Plan (the Plan) to replace the Equity Option Plan and to
provide a performance incentive for certain officers . employees and individuals or companies who provide
services to the Company . The Plan provides for the granting of qualified and non-qualified stock options . All
options outstanding under the Equity Option Plan were regranted under the new Plan with terms and
conditions substantially the same as under the Equity Option Plan, except that option holders will no longer
have the option to require the Company to repurchase units for cash upon exercise of such units, nor will the
Company have the option to repurchase exercised units for cash . The Company has reserved 4,413,360 shares
of Class A common stock for issuance under the Plan . The options generally vest ratably over four years and
expire no later than 10 years after the date of grant, with the exception of options originally granted under the
Equity Option Plan, which expire 15 years after the date of grant .

The exercise price of qualified stock options granted under the Plan may not be less than the fair market
value of the common shares on the date of grant . The exercise price of non-qualified stock options granted
under the Plan may be greater or less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant, as
determined at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Stock options granted at prices below fair market value
at the date of grant are considered compensatory, and compensation expense is deferred and recognized
ratably over the option vesting period based on the excess of the fair market value of the stock at the date of
grant over the exercise price of the option . In connection with the regranting of options under the new Plan,
the Company reclassified the deferred compensation liability relating to compensatory options issued under
the Equity Option Plan to common stock, stated at amounts paid in. The remaining, unrecognized
compensation expense attributable to these compensatory options was also recorded as deferred compensation,
a contra-equity balance, and will be recognized over the remaining vesting periods of the options .
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Weighted average common shares outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41,144,275 36,208,588
Nominal issuances during the 12 month period prior to the
Company's filing of its IPO, treated as if outstanding for all
periods presented . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 .911 .610 3.103,894

Shares used in computation of pro forma net loss per share . . . . . . . . 43,055.885 39.312 .482



NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 1997 and 1996

During 1997, the Company recorded approximately 52,355,000 and 5892,000 of deferred compensation
expense related to the Stock Option Plan and Equity Option Plan, respectively . For the year ended
December 31, 1996, the Company recorded approximately $9,914,000 of deferred compensation expense
related to the Equity Option Plan .

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123 . Had compensation costs been
recognized based on the fair value at the date of grant for options awarded under the Plans, the pro forma
amounts of the Company's net loss and net loss per share for the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1996
would have been as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts) :

1997 t996
Net loss applicable to common shares-as reported . . . . . . . .

	

5(168,324)

	

5(71,101)
Net loss applicable to common shares-pro forma . . . . . . . . .

	

5(182,571)

	

$(64,512)
Net loss per share - as reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

S

	

(3.91)

	

S

	

(1 .81)
Net loss per share - pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

S

	

(4.24)

	

S

	

(1 .64)

The fair value of each option grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions : risk-free interest rates of 5.31% to 7.05% ; expected option lives of 3
to 5 years ; expected volatility of 4590 ; and no expected dividends . The weighted average fair value of options
granted during 1997 and 1996 was 55.94 and $6.87, respectively.

Information with respect to the Equity Option Plan and Stock Option Plan is as follows :
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At December 31, 1997, 44,956 shares of Class A common stock were available for future grants . The
Board of Directors has authorized an increase of 5,441,336 in the number of shares that may be issued
pursuant to options under the Plan, subject to shareholder approval. The Company has received an irrevocable
proxy from its majority shareholder approving the increase .

Shares
Subject
to Option

Option Price
Range

Weighted
Aserage

Exercise Price
Options outstanding at December 31, 1995 . . . . . . 1,594,471 50.02 SO.02

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 455,018 50.02- 7.93 51 .93
Canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (44.843) 50.02 SO.02

Options outstanding at December 31, 1996 . . . . . . 2,004,646 50.02- 7.93 50.45
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,569,156 57.93-26.50 59.24
Canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (205,398) SO.02 - 21 .31 S1 .19
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (672.878) 50.02- 7.93 50.18

Options outstanding at December 31, 1997 . . . . . . 3.695,526 $0.02-26.50 56.45

Range of
Exercise Prices

Options
Outstanding

Options Outstanding
weighted
Aserage

Remaining
Contractual Life

weighted
Aserage

Exercise Price

Options

Options
Exercisable

Exercisable
weighted
Aserage

Exercise Price
$ 0.02-S 1 .00 1,146,886 12.54 S 0.23 411,470 S 0.10
S 1 .01 -$14.00 2,289,755 10.82 $ 7.95 103,256 S 7.93
514.01 -526.50 258,885 9.92 520.53 110,308 521 .94



NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

December 31, 1997 and 1996

12. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Supplemental disclosure of the Company's cash flow information is as follows (in thousands) :
fear Ended December 31,
1997 1996

13 . Commitments and Contingencies

Capitalized leases consist of leases of telecommunications equipment and fiber optic networks . The
Company is also leasing premises under various operating leases which, in addition to rental payments, require
payments for insurance, maintenance, property taxes and other executory costs related to the leases . The lease
aereenients have various expiration dates and renewal options through 2028 .

Future minimum payments required under capital and operating leases that have an initial or remaining
noncancelable lease term in excess of one year at December 31, 1997 were as follows (in thousands) :

Rent expense totaled approximately 56,376,000 and $2,248,000 in 1997 and 1996, respectively.

5 8

Noncash financing and investing activities were as follows:
Class A common stock issued under lease arrangement . . . . . S 1,400 S
Redeemable preferred stock dividends, paid in redeemable

preferred shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 531,102 $ -
Accrued redeemable preferred stock dividends, payable in

redeemable preferred shares, and accretion of preferred
stock redemption obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 8.218 S -

Issuance of notes payable and assumption of liabilities in
acquisitions . . . . . . ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 521,280 S 8,228

Issuance of Class A common stock in acquisitions . . . . . . . . . 516,524 $
Capital lease obligations assumed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4,725 S 1,377
Members' equity recorded in Recapitalization . . . . . . . . . . . . . S - S 5,574
Goodwill recorded in Recapitalization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S - S 2,907
Exchange of minority interests for Class A units . . . . . . . . . . . $ - S 2.667

Cash paid for interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $44,865 520,912

Year ending December 31,

Capital
Leases

Operating
Leases

1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 3,285 S 7,005
1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,199 7,269
2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,825 6,950
2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,209 6,461
2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,205 6,305
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,174 22,695
Total minimum lease payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,897
Less amounts representing interest . . . . . . . . . . .

.
. . . . . . 6,647

Present value of future minimum lease payments . . . . . . 10,250
Less amounts due in one year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,610

S 7,640
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Joint Venture

In January 1998, the Company and Nextel Communications, Inc. (Nextel) formed a joint venture called
NEXTBAND Communications, L.L.C . (NEXTBAND), which is owned 50% each by the Company and
Nextel . On January 28, 1998, NEXTBAND filed an application with the FCC for which it paid a $50 million
refundable deposit to participate in the FCC's Local Multipoint Distribution Service (LMDS) auction which
began on February 18, 1998. Of the deposit amount, $25 million was deposited by the Company. LMDS is a
fixed broadband point-to-multipoint service which the FCC and industry analysts anticipate will be used for
the deployment of wireless local loop, high-speed data transfer and video broadcasting service . NEXTBAND
has applied for and is eligible to bid on any of the markets being auctioned for the licenses, which could result
in additional funds being contributed by the Company to NEXTBAND.

Nenvork Lease

In February 1998, the Company entered into a 20-year capital lease for exclusive rights to multiple fibers
and innerducts extending over 650 route miles throughout New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, Pennsylvania,
Delaware, Maryland and Washington, D.C . The Company paid 592.0 million for the transaction, of which
580.3 million was placed into escrow pending completion and delivery of segments of the network route to the
Company . The Company has the option to renew the lease for two additional 10-year terms .

Financing

On March 3, 1998, the Company completed the sale of $335 million in aggregate principal amount of 9%
Senior Notes due March 15, 2008 . Proceeds from the sale net of discounts, underwriting commissions,
advisor fees and expenses, totaled approximately S326.5 million . The 9% Senior Notes are redeemable at the
option of the Company . in whole or in part, beginning March 15, 2003 at established redemption prices which
decline to 10017o of the stated principal amount thereof by March 15, 2006 .

The indenture pursuant to which the 9% Senior Notes are issued contains certain covenants that, among
other thins. limits the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness, issue stock
in subsidiaries, pay dividends or make other distributions, repurchase equity interests or subordinated
indebtedness, engage in sale and leaseback transactions, create certain liens, enter into certain transactions
with affiliates, sell assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, and enter into certain mergers and
consolidations .

In the event of a change in control of the Company as defined in the indenture, holders of the 9% Senior
Notes will have the right to require the Company to purchase their 9% Senior Notes, in whole or in part, at a
price equal to 101% of the stated principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, thereon to
the date of purchase. The 9% Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company, and are
subordinated to all current and future indebtedness of the Company's subsidiaries, including trade payables .



To NEXTLINK Capital, Inc .:

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of NEXTLINK Capital, Inc . (a Washington
corporation) as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 . These balance sheets are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these balance sheets based on our audits .

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards . Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the balance sheets
are free of material misstatement . An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the balance sheets . An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation . We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion .

In our opinion, the balance sheets referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NEXTLINK Capital, Inc . as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles .

Seattle, Washington,
March 12, 1998

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP



NEXTLINK Capital, Inc.

BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

See accompanying note to balance sheets.
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December 31 .
1997 1996

Cash in bank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5100 SI00

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Common stock, no par value,

1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5100 SI00



1 . Description

NEXTLINK Capital, Inc .

NOTE TO BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 1997 and 1996

NEXTLINK Capital, Inc . (NEXTLINK Capital) is a Washington corporation and a wholly owned
subsidiary of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc . (NEXTLINK) . NEXTLINK Capital %%as formed for the
sole purpose of obtaining financing from external sources and is a joint obligor on the 121/"_% Senior Notes due
April 15, 2006 of NEXTLINK. NEXTLINK Capital was initially funded with a 5100 contribution from
NEXTLINK and has had no operations to date. NEXTLINK Capital's sole source and repayment for the
12'/2% Senior Notes will be from the operations of NEXTLINK. Therefore, these balance sheets should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of NEXTLINK.
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PART 1.

	

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item I(a) .

	

Financial Statements

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
(Amounts as of September 30, 1998 are unaudited)

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements .

ASSETS

September 30,
1998

December 31,
1997

Current assets :
Cash and cash equivalents. . ... . ... . .. . . . . . . . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . . . ... . .. . . .. . . .. . . . . . . $ 392,350 $ 389,074
Marketable securities .. . ... . .. ... . ... . ... . . . . ... . . . . .. . . .. . . .. . . ... . .... . . ... . ... . ... . ... . . . . . .. . . 784,493 353,283
Accounts receivable, net ... . ... . .. . . . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . . ... .. . . ... . .. . . .. 29,525 22,955
Other. . ... . .. . . .. . .. . ... . ... . ... . .. ... . ... . ... . .. . .. . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .._ .. . . . ... .. .. . . . . . .. . . . 12,273 4,530
Pledged securities . .. ... . ... . ....__._..._ . . .. . ... ... ...._... . ... . ... . ._ ._. . . .» . ._ . .. . . .. . . .. 41992 41.425

Total current assets . ... . ... . .. ... . .. . . .. . . .. . ... .... . ... . . .. . . .. . .__.._.... ... . .. . . ... . .. 1,261,633 811,267
Pledged securities ... . ... . ... . ... .. . . .. . ... . ... . .. . . . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . ... .. .... . .. . .. . . .. . .. - 21.185
Property and equipment, net. . ... ... .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . . ... . . ... .... . ... . ... . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. 448,550 253,653
Goodwill, net . . . .. . ... . ... . .. . . . . ... . ... . .. . . .. .. . . .. . . .. . . . . . . .. ... . . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . . .. . . . . . .. . . .. . . .. 55,813 52,278
Other assets, net .. . ... . ... . .. . . .. . .. . ... . .. . . .. . .. . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . . . .. . .. . . . . . . .. . .. 260.182 78.770

Total assets . . . . . . .. . ... . ... . . . . .. . .. . . .. . . .. . . . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. L-202= S I U7-15v

LIABILITIESAND SHAREHOLDERS' EQvrrY (DEFICTI)
Current liabilities :

Accounts payable.. . ... . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . . .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . . . .. . ... . . ... . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. S 24,634 S 26,776
Accrued expenses .. . ... . .. . . . . . . . . .. . . .. . . .. . ... . . . ... . . .. . ... . . ... ... . . . . . . . ... . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. 32,119 13,082
Accrued interest payable . . .. . . .. . ... ......_.. . ... . ..__. . ... . .._ .... ... . ... .. . ... . ... . ..._.. 40,615 (8,880
Notes payable and currentportion ofcapital lease obligations .. . .. . . .. . . . . . 4.021 10.844

Total current liabilities . .. . . .. . . . . . . . . .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . . . . . . .. .. . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . 101,389 69,582
Long-term debt.. . ... . ... . .. . . . . . . . . .. . . .. . . .. . .. . .. . ... . ... . ... . . . . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . ... . ... . . .. . . .. . . . . . . .. . . 1,503,263 750,000
Capital lease obligations and other long-term liabilities .. . ... . ... . ... . . . . . . .. . . .. . . .. . . 16.096 10.842

Total liabilities .. . . . . . . . ... . .. . . .. . .. . .. . . .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . . . .. . . . . . . .. . . .. . 1,620,748 830,424
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable preferred stock, par value $0.01 per sharp, 25,000,000 shares

authorimd; t4*/oPreferred, aggregate liquidation preference 5358,646,
7,009,348 and 6,322,031 sham issued and outstanding in 1998 and 1997,
respectively; 6 %% Convertible Preferred, 4,000,000 and 0 sham issued
and outstanding in 1998 and 1997, respectively ... . . ... .... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... 543,258 313,319

Common stock subject to redemption, par value 50.02 per share, 519,950
Class Bsham issued and outstanding in 1997 .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . .... . ... . .. . . .. . . .. - 4,950

Shareholders' equity (deficit):
Common Stock, par value 50.02 per sham stated at amounts paid in;
ClassA.110,334,000 sham authadmd, 20,830,!69 and 19,(67,899
shares issued and outstanding in 1998 and 1997, respectively; Class
B, 44,133,600 sham authorized, 33,133,502 and 33,746,573 sham
issued and outstandingin 1998 and 1997, respectively ... . . .. . ... . . .. . ... . . 352,018 330,561

Deferred compensation .. . ..._.. ... ... . ... . ... ... . ... ..... .... .... . ... . ... . ... . . .. . ... . .... ... . . (12,894) (9,596)
Accumulated deficit . .. . ... . ._ . .. . .. . ... . ... . ... . .. . ... . .. .. . .. . ... . . ... . ... . ... . . .. . ... . . ... ... . . (476.9521 (252 .5051

Total shareholders' equity (deficit) . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . ... . . .... . ... . ... . ... . . (137.8281 68.460
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity (deficit) . .. . . . . . .... . ... . ... . .. . . . L-2026.12 s t 1=



Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

1999 1997 1999 1997

Revenue . . . . . . .. . ... . ... . .. . .. . . .. . ... . ... ... .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . S 37,817 S 13,390 S %,392 $ 35,058

Costs and expenses:
Operating... . .. . . .. ... . ... . .. . . . . . . . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . .. . .. . 32,828 13,916 85,448 35,857
Selling, general and administrative . ... . ... . 41,565 19,318 109,599 48,421
Deferred compensation . . .. . . .. . . .. . .. . ... .... ... . 1,720 334 3,104 1.449
Depreciation . ... ... ... . .. . . .. . ... . ._... ... . ... . ._. ... . 11 .334 3,898 26.243 9,952
Amortization ... . .. . ... . . . . .. . . .. . ... . . . ... . ... . ._. ... . 3-444 1,631 10,998 4.508

Total costs and expenses . ... . ... ...... .. 90,891 39,097 235,292 lo0,1a7

Lass from operations . . .. . . .. . . .. .. . ... . ... . ... . ... ... ... . .. (53,074) (25.707) (138.900) (65.129)

Interest income . . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . . . .. . ... . ... . .. .... . .. . ... . .. 21,559 4,868 56,116 15,560
Interest expense.. . .. . . . . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . ... . ... . ... . .. . ... . .. . . . (37,434) (10,746) (99,050) (32,787)

Net loss ... . ... . . . . . .. . . . . .. . . .. . . . . . .. . .. . ... . ... . ... ... . .. . . .. . .. (69-942) S r?,= 5(181 .8341 182-336)

Preferred stock dividends and accretion of
preferred stock redemption obligation,
including issue costs. .. . ... . .. . . . . ... . ... . ... . ... . .. fISJ341 (10.7981 (42.6131 (28.1511

Net loss applicable to common shares . . . . . .. . . .. . L_.134_6831 S (1 L=10 S!110-5071

Net loss per share . .. . ... . ... . .. . . . . ... . ... . ... .. . ... . ... . ... . S (1 .57) S 11 .08) f Mill) S 12.871
Shares used in computation ofnet loss per

share . . . . . . . . . .. . ... . ... . .. . . . . ... . ... . ... .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . 33 883 63 39-257-126 33 6= 38-536-851



-NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)

-Continued -

Nine Months
September

1998

Ended
30,

1997
OPERATINGACTNffffS:
Net loss .. . . .. . . . . . .. . ... . ... . .. . . . . ... . ... . .. . .. . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . ... . ... . . .. . . .. . ... . ... . $ (181 .834) I (82.356)

Adjustmentsto reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Deferred compensation expense .. . . .. . . .. . .... . .. .... . ....» . ... . .. . ... . ..... ... ... . ... . ... . 3.104 1.449
Equity in Ion of affiliates . . .. . . ._ . .. . .. . ... . ....... ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . 2.635 1,688
Depreciation and amortiation.. . .._.. . . .. .... .... ... .._ .... ... . . ... ... . .»..... ... . ... . ... . 37,141 14,460
Accretion ofinterest on senior notes .. ... . ...... . ... ... ._... . ... .... . ... ... . ... .... . 18,940 -

Changes in assets and liabilities, net ofeffects from acquisitions:
Accounts receivable.. . .. . . .. . ... . .._.. ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... .... . ... . ... ... ... . . . ... . ... . . . . .. . . . (6.570) (3.062)
Other assets . ... . ... . .. . ... .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . ... ... . .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... ... . . (10,588) (662)
Accounts payable. . . .. . . .. . . .. . ... ........ . ... . ... . ... . ... . . .. ... . .. . . ... . ... ... . . ... . .. . ... . ... . .. (8.016) (6.328)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ... . ... . ... . ... . ... .... . ... . ...... ._.. . ... ... . .. . .. 19,683 S,370
Accrued interest . . .. 21,735 10.208

Net cash used in operating activities .. . .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . .. . ... .... . .. . ... . . ... ... . ... . ... . .. (104,770) (59.233)

INVESTING ACfIVf17ES :
Purchase ofproperty and equipment .. . .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . .. . . .. . ... . . .. . .. . ... . . .. . . . .. ... . ... . .. (209.136) (89.146)
Net assets acquired in business and asset acquisitions (net of cash

acquired) . ... . ... . ... . .. ... . .. . . .. . ._ . ... .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . .. ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . .. - (41,239)
Cash withdrawn from escrow to be used in business acquisition .... . ... . .. . . . . ... . - 6.000
Assets acquired in network lease agreement. . ... .... ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . .. . . ... . ... . ... . .. . . .. (92.000) -
Contribution to NEXTBAND for purchase ofspectrum licenses .. . . . . . . .. . . .. . ... . (67,354) -
Investments in unconsolidated affliates . .. . .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . .. . . .. . . .. . . ... . ... . .. . . . . . .. . (13.337) (6.342)
Maturity of pledged securites ... . .. . .. . . .. . ... . ... . ... . .. . . .. . . . . . . . . . .. . . .. . . .. . ... . . .. . . .. . ... . .. . . 19 .636 18.049
Purchase of marketable securites.. . .. . ... . .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . .. . . .. .. . .. . .. . ... . ... . (3,347.468) (28.812)
Sale ofmarketable securites. . ... .. . ... . ... . ... . .. . ... . ... ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . 2.916.258 -
Net cash used in investing activites ..... ... . ... . ... . ... . .. . . . . ... . .. . . . .. . ... . ... . . .. . ... . ... . ... . (793,401) (141,490)



NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Cont'd)

(Dollars In thousands)
(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

1998

	

1997

See accompanying notes to unaudited taterim consolidated financial statements.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Net proceeds from issuance ofredeemable preferred scock.. . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . . I 193,824 S 274,000
Repayment ofnote payable and capital lease obligations. . ... . ... . ... . .... . .. . ... . ... . . (7,346) (1,380)
Repayment ofpayable to afTiliaU3 . . ... ... ... . ... . ... . ... . ..._.. . ... . ... . ..._.. . ... . ... . ... . ... . . - (1,500)
Proceeds from issuance ofcommon stock upon exercise of stockoptions... . . 2,021 111
Dividends paid on convertible preferred stock.... . ... . ...... .... ....... . ... . ._ . ... ... .. (6,500) -
Repayment (issuance) ofloans to related parties.. ... . ... ... . ... . ... ... . .... ... . ... . ... . . 2,357 (2,825)
Prods from issuance ofsenior notes (net ofdiscount). ....... .... .._. . ... . ... . ... .. 734,323 -
Costs incurred in connection with fwnciog. ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . . (17132) (4021
Net cash provided by financing activities. . ... . .. ... . . ... ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ..... ... . ... . . . . ... 901,447 268,004

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . .. . .. . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . . ... ... . .... ... 3,276 67,281

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning ofperiod . . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... 389,074 76,807

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofperiod ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . ... . .. . ... . . ... . ... . ... . ... L.V=
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLAW DISCLOSURES:
Noncash financing and investing activities :

Redeemable preferred stock dividends, paid in redeemable preferred
shares. . .. . .. . .. . ... . ... .. . ... . ... ... ... . ... . ... . .. . . .. . . .. .. . . ... . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . ... . .. . . .. . . . 34-366 20.413

Accrued redeemable preferred stock dividends, payable in redeemable
preferred shares, and accretion ofpreferred stock redemption
obligation and issue costs..... . . .. . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . . . . .. ... . ... . .. . . . . .. . ... . . . . .. . s 1 .747 L---=

Issuance ofClass B common stock for purchase ofminority interests . . . L---.LM
Capital lease obligations assumed . .. . . .. . .. . . ... ... . ... . .. . ... . . .. . ... . ... .. .. . . .. .. ... . .. . S 5.065 L 4.725
ClassAcommon stock issued under lease amngeinecir . ... . .._.. .... .._ ._ . S s 1400

Cash paid for interest. ......_. ... .. . . .._.. ... . ... ... . ... . ... . ._ . ... . ... .... .... .... ...._.. . ... . ... . ... . s SBB60 S 17579
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Basis of Presentation

2 . Financings

Debt

nsmgmoq-a

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc ., a Delaware
corporation, and its majority-owned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Company). The Company, through
predecessor entities, was formed on September 16, 1994 and, through its subsidiaries, provides competitive local
telecommunications services in selected markets in the United States. The Company is a majority-owned subsidiary
ofEagle River Investments, L.L.C . (Eagle River).

The Company's financial statements include 100% of the assets, liabilities and results of operations of
subsidiaries in which the Company has a controlling interest of greater than MOW The Company's investment in
Telecommunications of Nevada, L.L.C. (Nevada L.L.C.), a limited liability company in which the Company has a
40°/a interest and which operates a network that is managed by the Company in Las Vegas, Nevada, is accounted for
on the equity method All operational statistics of the Company included in this Report include 100% of the
operational statistics ofNevada L.L.C. Investments in entities in which the Company has voting interests ofnot more
than 20% are accounted for on the cost method All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated .

The interim financial statements are unaudited and have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission . Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in
financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or
omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations . These condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company's Form 10-
KSB as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 25, 1998.

The financial information included herein reflects all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments) which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to a fair presentation of the results for interim
periods. The results of operations for the three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 1998 are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.

On March 3, 1998, the Company completed the sale of $335.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 9%
Senior Notes due March 15, 2008 (9% Senior Notes). Proceeds from the sale act of discounts, underwriting
commissions, advisory feesand'expenses totaled approximately $326.5 million . Interest payments on the 9°h Senior
Notes are due semi-annually. The 9°/a Senior Notes are redeemable at the option ofthe Company, in whole or in part,
beginning March 15, 2003.

On April 1, 1998, the Company completed the sale of9.45% Senior Discount Notes (9.45% Notes), due April
15, 2008 . The 9.45% Notes were issued at a discount from their principal amount to generate aggregate gross
proceeds to the Company ofapproximately $400.0 million. Proceeds net ofunderwriting commissions, advisory fees
and expenses totaled $390.9 million . The 9.45% Notes accrete at a rate of9AS% compounded semi-annually, to an
aggregate principal amount of approximately $637.0 million by April 15, 2003. No cash interest will accrue on the
9.45% Notes until April 15, 2003 . Interest will become payable in cash semi-annually beginning on October 15,
2003 . The 9.45% Notes are redeemable at the option ofthe Company, in whole or in part, at any time after April 15,
2003 .

The indentures pursuant to which the 9"/a Senior Notes and the 9.45% Notes (the Notes) are issued contain
certain covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to incur additional
indebtedness, issue stock in subsidiaries, pay dividends or make other distributions, repurchase equity interests or
subordinated indebtedness, engage in sale and leaseback transactions, create certain liens, enter into certain



transactions with affiliates, sell assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, and enter into certain mergers and
consolidations .

In the event of a change in control or asset disposition of the Company as defined in the indentures, holders of
the Notes will have the right to require the Company to purchase their Notes, in whole or in part, at a price equal to
101% of the principal amount thereof; plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, thereon to the date of purchase. The
Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company, and are subordinated to all current and future indebtedness
ofthe Company's subsidiaries, including trade payables .

Redeemable Preferred Stock

On March 31, 1998, the Company completed the ale of 4,000,000 shares of 6'fg/a cumulative convertible
preferred stock (6Ya% Preferred Stock) with a liquidation preference of $50 per share . The sale generated gross
proceeds to the Company of$200.0 million, and proceeds net ofunderwriting discounts, advisory fees and expenses
of$193.8 million . Each share of6%°/a Preferred Stock is convertible, at the option ofthe holder, into 1 .145 shares of
the Company's Class A common stock (subject to adjustments in certain circumstances). The Company may cause
such conversion rights to expire if the closing price of the Class A common stock exceeds 120% of an implied
conversion price (as defined) for 20 days in a 30 consecutive day trading period at April 15, 2001 and through
April 15, 2006. Dividends on the 6%"h Preferred Stock accrue from March 31, 1998 and are payable in cash
quarterly, beginning on June 30, 1998, at an annual rate of6%"/e ofthe liquidation preference thereof. The Company
is required to redeem all ofthe 6'/i% Preferred Stock outstanding on March 31, 2010 at a redemption price equal to
100% ofthe liquidation preference thereof, plus accumulated and unpaid dividends to the date ofredemption .

3 .

	

Network Lease
In February 1998, the Company entered into a 20-year capital lease for exclusive rights to multiple fibers and

innerducts throughout New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, Delaware, Maryland and Washington
D.C . The Company paid $92.0 million in the transaction, of which $80.3 million was placed into escrow pending
completion and delivery ofsegments ofthe network route to the Company. The payment was recorded as a long-term
asset, and will be reclassified as property and equipment as portions ofthe network are completed The Company has
the option to renew the lease for two additional 10-year terms.

4.

	

Joint Ventures

NEXTBAND

In January 1998, the Company and Nextel Communications, Inc. (Nextel), a nationwide provider of wireless
telephone services, formed a joint venture called NEXTBAND Communications . L.L.C. (NEX'IBAND), which is
owned 500/9 each by the Company and Nextel . NEXTBAND was the successful bidder in 42 markets covering
approximately 105 million POPs, or persons located within the licensed area owned, m the FCC's local multipoint
distribution service (LMDS) auctions, which concluded in March 1998 . The Company has contributed $67.4 million
to NEXTBAND, representing its pro rata share ofNEXTBAND's total bid in the LMDS suctions. The Company is
evaluating means to use its access to NEXTBAND's LMDS spectrum to enhance its ability to connect customers to
its fiber rings, and to deploy wireless local loop technologies using LMDS frequencies where it determines it cost
effective to do so.

INTERNEXT

In July 1998, the Company announced the formation ofINT'ERNEXT L.L.C ., which is beneficially owned 50%
each by the Company and Eagle River. D47ERNEXT has entered into an agreement with Level 3 Communications,
LLC (Level 3). Level 3 is constructing a national fiber optic network that is expected to cover more than 16,000
route miles with six or more conduits and connect 50 cities in the United States and Canada Pursuant to this
agreement, INTERNEXT will receive an exclusive interest in 24 fibers in a shared, filled conduit, one entire empty
conduit and the right to 25% of the fibers pulled through the sixth and any additional conduits in the network.
INTERNEXT will pay $700.0 million in exchange for these rights, the majority of which will be payable as
segments of the network are completed and accepted by iNTERNEXT, which is expected to occur substantially
during 2000 and 2001. The Company has guaranteed 50% of the futancial obligations of INTERNEXT under this
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